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‘Quarterly Report

For the Quarterly Period Ended September 30, 2008

Texas Competitive Electric Holdings Company LLC is not required to file reports with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and therefore has not filed this quarterly report with
the SEC. While this quarterly report has been prepared in substantial conformity with Form 10-Q
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, it does not include all of the information contemplated
by Form 10-Q. .

As of November 4, 2008, all outstanding common membership interests in Texas Competitive Electric Holdings Company LLC
were held by Energy Future Competitive Holdings Company.
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This Quarterly Report and other reports of Texas Competitive Electric Holdings Company LLC and its
subsidiaries occasionally make references to TCEH, TXU Energy or Luminant when describing actions, rights or
obligations of their respective subsidiaries. These references reflect the fact that the subsidiaries are
consolidated with their respective parent companies for financial reporting purposes. However, these references
should not be interpreted to imply that the parent company is actually undertaking the action or has the rights or
obligations of the relevant subsidiary company or-that the subsidiary company is undertaking an action or has the
rights or obligations of its parent company or any other affiliate.



GLOSSARY

When the following terms and abbreviations appear in the text of this report, they have the meanings indicated
below.

2007 Annual Report TCEH’s Second Amended and Restated Annual Report for the year
ended December 31, 2007
Adjusted EBITDA Adjusted EBITDA means EBITDA adjusted to exclude non-cash

items, unusual items and other adjustments allowable under certain
debt arrangements of TCEH. See the definition of EBITDA  below.
Adjusted EBITDA and EBITDA are not recognized terms under
GAAP and, thus, are non-GAAP financial measures. TCEH is
providing Adjusted EBITDA in this Quarterly Report (see
reconciliation in Appendix B) solely because of the important role
that Adjusted EBITDA plays in respect of the certain covenants
contained in TCEH’s debt arrangements. TCEH does not intend for
Adjusted EBITDA (or EBITDA) to be an alternative to net income
as a measure of operating performance or an alternative to cash
flows from -operating activities as a measure of liquidity or an
alternative to any other measure of financial performance presented
in accordance with GAAP. Additionally, TCEH does not intend for
Adjusted EBITDA (or EBITDA) to be used as a measure of free
cash flow available for management’s discretionary use, as the
measure excludes certain cash requirements such as interest
payments, tax payments and other debt service requirements.
Because not all companies use identical calculations, TCEH’s
presentation of Adjusted EBITDA (and EBITDA) may not be
comparable to similarly titled measures of other companies.

Capgemini Capgemini Energy LP, a subsidiary of Cap Gemini North America
Inc. that provides business process support services to TCEH
EBITDA ) Refers to earnings (net income) before interest expense, income
. taxes, depreciation and amortization. See the definition of Adjusted
) EBITDA above. ,
EFC Holdings : Refers to Energy Future Competitive Holdings Company, a direct,

wholly-owned subsidiary of EFH Corp. and the direct parent of
TCEH, and/or its consolidated subsidiaries, depending on context.

EFH Corp. ' Refers to Energy Future Holdings Corp., a holding company, and/or
its consolidated subsidiaries, depending on context. Its major
subsidiaries include TCEH and Oncor.

EPA o [SN Envm)nmental Protection Agency
EPC ' englneermg, procurement and construction
ERCOT Electric Reliability Council of Texas, the independent system

operator and the regional coordmator of various electricity systems.
within Texas

FASB. . Financial Accounting Standards Board, the designated organization
in the private sector for establishing standards for financial
accounting and reporting :

FERC , ' US Federal Energy Regulatory Commission

il



FIN
FIN 39-1

FIN 48

Fitch
FSP
FSP SFAS 157-3

GAAP
GWh

historical service territory

Intermediate Holding

kWh
LIBOR

Luminant

Luminant Construction

Luminant Energy

Luminant Power

market heat rate

Merger

Merger Agreement

Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation

FASB Staff Position No. FIN 39-1, "Amendment of FASB
Interpretation No. 39," (Offsetting of Amounts Related to Certain
Contracts — an Interpretation of APB Opinion No. 10 and FASB
Statement No. 105) ‘

FIN No. 48 (as Amended), “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes”

-Fitch Ratings, Ltd. (a credit réting agency)

FASB Staff Position

FASB Staff Position SFAS 157-3, "Determining the Fair Value of a
Financial Asset When the Market for That Asset is Not Active"

generally accepted accounting principles
gigawatt-hours

the territory, largely in north Texas, being served by EFH Corp.’s
regulated electric utility subsidiary at the time of entermg retall
competition on January 1, 2002

Refers to Energy Future Intermediate Holding Company LLC, a
direct, wholly-owned subsidiary of EFH Corp. and the direct parent
of Oncor Holdings

kilowatt-hours

London Interbank Offered Rate. An interest rate at which banks
can borrow funds, in marketable size, from other banks in the
London interbank market.

Refers to wholly-owned subsidiaries of TCEH engaged in
competitive market activities consisting of electricity generation,
development and construction of new generation facilities,
wholesale energy sales and purchases as well as commodity risk
management and trading activities, all largely in Texas. These
entities include Luminant Construction, Luminant Energy and
Luminant Power.

Refers to the operations of TCEH established for the purpose of
developing and constructing new generation facilities.

Luminant Energy Company LLC, an indirect, wholly-owned
subsidiary of TCEH that engages in certain wholesale markets
activities

Refers to subsidiaries of TCEH engaged in electricity generation
activities -

Heat rate is a measure of the efficiency of converting a fuel source
to electricity. The market heat rate is based on the price offer of the
marginal supplier in Texas (generally natural gas plants) in
generating electricity and is calculated by dividing the wholesale
market price of electricity by the market price of natural gas.

The transaction referred to in "Merger Agreement" (defined
immediately below) that was completed on October 10, 2007.

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated February 25, 2007, under
which Texas Holdings agreed to acquire EFH Corp.

iii



Merger Sub

MMBtu
Moody’s
MW
MWh
NO,
NRC

Oncor

Oncor Holdings

OPEB
PUCT
PURA

Purchase accounting

REP
RRC

S&P

SEC

Securities Act

SFAS !
SFAS 34

SFAS 123R

SFAS 133

SFAS 140

SFAS 141

Texas Energy Future Merger Sub Corp, a Texas corporation and a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Texas Holdings that was merged into
EFH Corp. on October 10, 2007

million British thermal units

Moody’s Investors Services, Inc. (a credit rating agency)
megawatts »
megawatt-hours

nitrogen oxide

US Nuclear Regulatory Commission

Refers to Oncor Electric Delivery Company LLC, a direct
subsidiary of Oncor Holdings and indirect subsidiary of EFH Corp.,
and/or its consolidated bankruptcy-remote financing subsidiary,
Oncor Electric Delivery Transition Bond Company LLC, depending
on context, that is engaged in regulated electricity transmission and
distribution activities.

Refers to Oncor Electric Delivery Holdings Company LLC, a
direct, wholly-owned subsidiary of Intermediate Holding and a
direct parent of Oncor.

other postretirement employee benefit
Public Utility Commission of Texas
Texas Public Utility Regulatory Act

The purchase method of accounting for a business combination as
prescribed by SFAS 141 whereby the cost or "purchase price" of a
business combination, including the amount paid for the equity and
direct transaction costs are allocated to identifiable assets and
liabilities (including intangible assets) based upon their fair values.
The excess of the purchase price over the fair values of assets and
liabilities is recorded as goodwill.

retail electric provider

Railroad Commission of Texas, which has oversight of lignite
mining activity

Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services, a division of the McGraw-Hill
Companies Inc. (a credit rating agency)

US Securitiés and Exchange Commission

Securities Act of 1933, as amended

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards issued by the FASB
SFAS No. 34, "Capitalization of Interest Cost"

SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment”

SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities” as amended and interpreted

SFAS No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of
Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities, a replacement
of FASB Statement No. 125”

" SFAS No. 141, "Business Combinations"

v



SFAS 142
SFAS 144

SFAS 157
SFAS 161

SG&A
SO,

Sponsor Group

TCEH

TCEH Finance

TCEH Senior Secured Facilities

TCEQ
Texas Holdings

TXU Energy

US

SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”

SFAS 144, "Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets"

SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements”

SFAS No. 161, "Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities — an Amendment of FASB Statement 133"

selling, general and administrative
sulfur dioxide

Collectively, the investment funds affiliated with Kohlberg Kravis
Roberts & Co. L.P., TPG Capital, L.P. and GS Capital Partners, an
affiliate of Goldman Sachs & Co. (See Texas Holdings below.)

Refers to Texas Competitive Electric Holdings Company LLC, a
direct, wholly-owned subsidiary of EFC Holdings and an indirect,
wholly-owned subsidiary of EFH Corp., and/or its consolidated
subsidiaries, depending on context, that are engaged in electricity
generation, wholesale and retail energy markets and development
and construction activities. Its major subsidiaries include Luminant
and TXU Energy.

Refers to TCEH Finance, Inc., a direct, wholly-owned subsidiary of
TCEH, formed for the sole purpose of serving as co-issuer with
TCEH of certain debt securities:

Refers collectively to the TCEH Initial Term Loan Facility, TCEH
Delayed Draw Term Loan Facility, TCEH Revolving Credit
Facility, TCEH Letter of Credit Facility and TCEH Commodity
Collateral Posting Facility. See Note 7 to the Financial Statements
for details of these facilities. :

Texas Commission on Environmental Quality

Refers to Texas Energy Future Holdings Limited Partnership, a
Delaware limited partnership controlled by the Sponsor Group that
is the direct parent of EFH Corp.

Refers to TXU Energy Retail Company LLC, a direct, wholly- .
owned subsidiary of TCEH engaged in the retail sale of electricity
to residential and business customers. TXU Energy is .a REP in
competitive areas of ERCOT. .

United States of America
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ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PART 1. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
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TEXAS COMPETITIVE ELECTRIC HOLDINGS COMPANY LLC
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED INCOME (LOSS).

OPperating reVeNUES .........ceevveenioninictieiseseeissisniessesssneins
Fuel, purchased power costs and delivery fees .................
Net gain (loss) from commodity-hedging and

trading aCtVILIES......coovviemeccicenee e ereeenserenenene
OPETAtING COSS ..cevevriiririiicriiereseeceeereretetransseeeeesrnananaseerenes

Depreciation and amortization ..............

Selling, general and administrative expenses..........c.c.c....
Franchise and revenue-based taxes .........cocoecvveevvrenvnrennne }
Other inCome (NOE 5).....covvurreriiecirerireeiieeeerese e ererenes
(’)therdeductions (Note 5)
Interest income

Interest expense and related charges (Note 14).................
Income (loss) before inconl1e TAXES covvvvrrenrens s
Income tax (expense) benefit ........coovivovreriveeoveeriosisiiinens
Net income (10SS)..c.vvieeeererirriceiiree e rees

See Notes to Financial Statements

CONDENS‘ED STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED COMPREHENSIVE INCOM

Net inCOME (l0SS)...veiiieeereeiiieeiiiiieine e eceieiessessese s beneeens

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax effects:

Cash flow hedges:

Net increase (decrease) in fair value of derivatives
(net of tax benefit (expense) of $75, 3(5),
$98 and $155) ..o

Derivative value net (gains) losses related to
hedged transactions recognized during the
period and reported in net income (net of tax
(expense) benefit of $22, $(6), $45 and $(46))...

Total effect of cash flow hedges..........oovrreirnnnnns
Comprehensive income (1088) .......c.oovevenene ......................

See Notes to Financial Statements

(Unaudited)

(millions of dollars)

Successor Predecessor Successor Predecessor
Three Months Three Months Nine Months Nine Months
Ended Ended Ended Ended
September 30, September 30, September 30, September 30,
2008 2007 2008 2007
$ 3,258 $ 2,572 $ 7,809 $ 6,624

(1,923) (1,184) (4,646) (3,086)
6,045 462 (248) (607)
(157 (138 - - (501) (452)
. (296) (84) | (827) (245)
(172) (150) (496) (436)
26) - (25) (74) (78)
2 8 8 19
(531) 34 (550) . 20
20 97 45 - 260
581 17 ._(1,756) 310
5,639 1,475 (1,236) 1,709
(2.010) (501} 425 529
3 3,629 $._974 2 (811) £ 1,180
E (LOSS)
(Unaudited) -
" (millions of dollars) .

Successor Predecessér Successor Predecessor
Three Months Three Months Nine Months Nine Months
Ended Ended Ended Ended
September 30, September 30, September 30, September 30,
2008 2007 2008 ) 2007
$ 3,629 $ 974 $ @8ty - $ 1,180

(139) 7 (182) (290)

41 9 83 : (84)
—(9%) — — 99 . ' 374
$.3.531 $ 972 £ 0l $ 806



TEXAS COMPETITIVE ELECTRIC HOLDINGS COMPANY LLC
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited)
(millions of dollars)

Cash flows — operating activities:

NEt INCOME (JOSSY ...euvvivieeeierciieietecet et rese st sar ettt sebe st ebebsaesans

Adjustments to reconcile income (loss) to cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation and aMOTHZALION ..........ccouierurreeeeeeeeeereeee e sesese e e cseesresrsanens
Deferred income tax benefit — Net........cccoeeuriiiiirniicctee et srassns
Impairment of emission allowances intangible assets
Charge related to Lehman bankruptey .............cooceeene
Unrealized net losses from mark-to-market valuations...........c.cc.ocooovveeee.
Unrealized net gains from mark-to-market valuations of interest rate swaps
Credit related to impaired leases
Bad debt expense
Stock-based compensation expense ...
Other, net

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

P
Cash flows — financing activities:
Issuances of securities:
Pollution control revenue bonds . .
Other 10n-tErM AEDE ..ottt e atete s s eenaen
Retirements/repurchases of long-term debt
Pollution control revenue bonds TSP .
Other 1ong-term debt.........ooviiiiiiiii et reseenae
Change in short-term borrowings
Commercial PAPET ........c.evverorrerriieeeeienreereeeeneennes vt ee st
BANKS ..ottt eh bbbt ea e s ea e enean

Cash provided by financing activities...........ceueeunereionineinseccercrssesce s

Cash flows — investing activities:

Net (advances to) repayments from affiliates.......ccccooevieriiecriennnns .
Capital expenditures.........ccocvccrereiereeceeranns
Nuclear fuel purchases............cocoeceviirinenercnnns
Investments held in money market fund (Note 14).
Purchase of mining-related assets...................
Proceeds from sale of assets
Reduction of restricted cash related to pollution control revenue bonds

Transfer of cash collateral to custodian account .... FE O OO UTRRROTTION

Net change in cash and cash equivalents ...
Cash and cash equivalents — beginning balance
Cash and cash equivalents — ending balance

See Notes to Financial Statements

Successor

Nine Months

Ended
September 30,
2008

$ 811

1,153
(390)
501

26
221

Predecessor

Nine Months

Ended
September 30,
2007

$ 1,180

294
99
703
48)
42
6
17

(768)

' (596)
731

1,000

(143)
(15)

(623)




TEXAS COMPETITIVE ELECTRIC HOLDINGS COMPANY LLC
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Unaudited)
(milliens of dollars)

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash eQUIVAIENES ...........ccceririririeier sttt as s aes s sns st s s eereseae e
Investments held in money market fund (Note 14)
RESIFCIEA CASH ...ttt ettt s s et es bbb s s bbb ar st sbras st en
Trade accounts receivable — net (NOE 6) ......cccovuiurerercenieeiniicininiineieisseeses s cransrees
Notes receivable from PArents ..o iiieiiiie e e
Income taxes receivable from Parent..........cccccoimiiiicrniniiiciieii et e e
TNVENEOTIES.......oeemmrccrencinieteeete it rere et sasns e raans
Commodity and other derivative contractual assets (Note 10)..
Accumulated deferred income taxes.........occccevvvverennicrienrenenn,
Margin deposits related to commodity positions (NOte 10)..........ccccemerevririnennceccrinennmenrrennnnns
Other current assets

Total current asséts

RESIICIEA CASH ..ottt bbb bbb bbb et s
Investments
Property, plant and EQUIPIMENT — NL...................curmuernremssssmeassiesssssesssossssssesseseeesssosseseesseensenenrossees
GOOAWITT (INOLE 3) . .ceueeririieereeetetetr et etet ettt s s sa s sse i b bt s s b s be et s bamebasbeseneesna
INtANZIbIE ASSELS — NET (NOLE 3} ..vvvrreeeoeeveoeeeeeeeecesee e eeeeesese e seesesesesses o seseeseeeseees s eeeseseee
Commodity and other derivative contractual assets (Note 10).
Unamortized debt issuance costs and other noncurrent assets..

TOAL ASSELS ......euiencceieieneeser et es s e e b et s e et e s b e bt eb et st sas bt e b et eeeses b b eserensseseasetsessaes

LIABILITIES AND MEMBERSHIP INTERESTS

Current liabilities:
Short-term bOrrowings (INOTE 7) ...cccoovriiieieiniriririseiersiriissese e sesssssas e sssssesensssssesesnnes
Advances from parent...................
Long-term debt due currently (Note 7).
Trade accounts payable — nonaffiliates .......

Trade accounts and other payables to affiliates..............cccooiiriiiici s
Commodity and other derivative contractual liabilities (Note 10}......ccocvuvvirerereriirirereirsiciceenn,
Margin deposits related to commodity positions (Note 10} .......cc..ccoveueemrrinrerecnernrniirseennenns
Accrued taxes other than income
Accrued interest ..o
Other current liabilities ...
Total current liabilities

Accumulated deferred INCOME LAXES....cc.ccvoveiioririrecreierre e et es st se s e ss bbbt s bbb sas
Commodity and other derivative contractual liabilities (Note 10).........ccoceievevnnnvicrenerrnresenneeas
Notes or other liabilities due affiliates. ..........ccvceveeriiiiiieeiiiniiiee et es e b
Long-term debt, less amounts due currently (Note 7).
Other noncurrent liabilities and deferred credits ..... .

TOtal HADIIILIES. ... ettt ese et rae e en e bbb ase b babes s bns

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 8)

Membership interests (Note 9):
Capital account
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Total membership interests
Total liabilities and membership interests

See Notes to Financial Statements

Successor
September 30, December 31,

2008 2007
5 1,872 § 215
242 -
20 -
1,006 827
413 25
259 190
341 352
1,538 1,126
6 17
766 513
65 70
6,528 3,335
1,250 1,279
538 612
21,143 20,545
18,033 18,060
3,351 4,137
340 244
824 848
$52,007 $49,060
,
$ 2,470 $ 438
6 -
299 195
1,099 754
190 207
1,956 1,108
22 S
87 -56
529 349
243 239
6,901 3,351
5,413 5,919
2,456 2,452
263 289
29,210 28,409
2432 2,424
46.675 42.844
5,608 6,393
—(276) — (177
5332 6.216
£52,007 £49,060



TEXAS COMPETITIVE ELECTRIC HOLDINGS COMPANY LLC
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Unaudited)

1. BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Description of Business

TCEH is a Dallas-based holding company for subsidiaries engaged in competitive electricity market
activities largely in Texas, including Luminant, which is engaged in electricity generation, development and
construction of new generation facilities, wholesale energy sales and purchases and commodity risk management
and trading activities, and TXU Energy, which is engaged in retail electricity sales. Commodity risk
management and allocation of financial resources are performed at the TCEH level; therefore, there are no
reportable business segments. TCEH is a wholly-owned subsidiary of EFC Holdings, which is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of EFH Corp. While TCEH is a wholly-owned subsidiary of EFH Corp. and EFC Holdings, TCEH is
a separate legal entity from EFH Corp. and EFC Holdings and all of their other affiliates with its own assets and
liabilities.

On October 10, 2007, EFH Corp. completed its Merger with Merger Sub. As a result of the Merger, EFH
Corp. became a subsidiary of Texas Holdings, which is controlled by the Sponsor Group.

In connection with the Merger, certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of EFH Corp. established for the purpose
of developing and constructing new generation facilities became subsidiaries of TCEH, and certain assets and
liabilities of other such subsidiaries were transferred to TCEH and its subsidiaries. Those subsidiaries holding
impaired construction work-in-process assets related to eight canceled coal-fueled generation units did not
become subsidiaries of TCEH. In addition, a wholly-owned subsidiary of EFC Holdings representing a lease
trust holding certain combustion turbines became a subsidiary of TCEH. Because these transactions were
between entities under the common control of EFH Corp., TCEH accounted for the transactions in a manner
similar to a pooling of interests. As a result, historical operations, financial position and cash flows of TCEH
and the entities and other net assets contributed are presented on a combined basis for all periods presented. See
Note 4 for additional information.

Basis of Presentation

The condensed consolidated financial statements of TCEH have been prepared in accordance with US
GAAP and on the same basis as the audited financial statements included in its 2007 Annual Report, with the
exception of a change in classification to report the results of commodity hedging and trading activities on a
separate line item in the income statement instead of within operating revenues, as discussed below and certain
reclassifications in the condensed statements of comprehensive income (loss) to conform to current period
presentation. All adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals) necessary for a fair presentation of the
results of operations and financial position have been included therein. All intercompany items and transactions
have been eliminated in consolidation. Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in annual
consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with US GAAP have been omitted pursuant to the rules
"and regulations of the SEC. Because the condensed consolidated interim financial statements do not include all
of the information and footnotes required by US GAAP, they should be read in conjunction with the audited
financial statements and related notes included in the 2007 Annual Report. The results of operations for an
interim period may not give a true indication of results for a full year. All dollar amounts in the financial
statements and tables in the notes are stated in millions of US dollars unless otherwise indicated.

The accompanying condensed statements of consolidated income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss)
for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 and September 30, 2007 and consolidated cash flows
for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 and September 30, 2007 are presented as the “Successor” and the
“Predecessor,” and relate to periods succeeding and preceding the Merger, respectively. The consolidated
financial statements of the Successor reflect the application of purchase accounting in accordance with the
provisions of SFAS 141.



Change in Classification of Results from Commodity Hedging and Trading Activities — Effective April
1, 2008, TCEH changed its classification of realized and unrealized net gains and losses from commodity
hedging and trading activities such that the results from these activities are reported as a separate line on the
income statement. Prior to April 1, 2008, such amounts were included within operating revenues. TCEH
believes this change in classification provides users of the financial statements better transparency of underlying
revenue trends. Results from commodity hedging and trading activities are volatile as a substantial majority of
the activity involves natural gas financial instruments, which are used to economically hedge future cash flows
from electricity sales and are marked-to-market in net income. Comparative financial statements of prior periods
reflect this reclassification. The following table presents TCEH's operating revenues as previously reported and
reflects the change in classification. There is no effect on reported earnings, the balance sheet or the statement of
cash flows as a result of this change in presentation.

Predecessor
As As
Originally As Originally As
- Reported Reclassified Reported Reclassified
“Three Three Nine Nine
Months Months Months Months
Ended Ended Ended Ended
September September September September
30, 2007 30, 2007 30, 2007 30, 2007
Operating reVenues..................ooowvorevevesinenens $ 3,034 $ 2572 °§ 6017 $ 6,624
Net gain (loss) from commaodity
hedging and trading activities............... n/a 462 n/a (607)
NEtiNCOME ....vvimiiiiriniciccricceeereenenene 974 974 1,180 1,180
Use of Estimates

Preparation of TCEH's financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions about
future events that affect the reporting of assets and liabilities at the balance sheet dates and the reported amounts
of revenue and expense, including fair value measurements. In the event estimates and/or assumptions prove to
be different from actual amounts, adjustments are made in subsequent periods to reflect more current
information. No material adjustments, other than those disclosed elsewhere herein, were made to previous
estimates or assumptions during the current year.

Purchase Accounting

The Merger has been accounted for under purchase accounting, whereby the total purchase price of the
transaction was allocated to EFH Corp.'s identifiable tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities
assumed based on their fair values, and the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired
was recorded as goodwill. The allocation resulted in a significant amount of goodwill, an increase in the
carrying value of property, plant and equipment and deferred income tax liabilities as well as new identifiable
intangible assets and liabilities. Purchase accounting impacts, including goodwill recognition, have been
“pushed down”, resulting in the assets and liabilities of TCEH being recorded at their respective fair values as of
October 10, 2007. Reported earnings in periods subsequent to the Merger reflect increases in interest,
depreciation and amortization expense. See Note 2 for details regarding the effect of purchase accounting.



Changes in Accounting Standards

Effective January 1, 2008, TCEH adopted FSP FIN 39-1, "Amendment of FASB Interpretation No. 39."
This FSP provides additional ‘guidance regarding the offsetting in the balance sheet of cash collateral and
derivative fair value asset and liability amounts. As provided for by this new rule, for balance sheet presentation,
TCEH elected to not adopt netting of cash collateral, and further to discontinue netting of derivative assets and
liabilities under master netting agreements.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS 161, "Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities — an Amendment of FASB Statement 133." SFAS 161 enhances required disclosures regarding
derivatives and hedging activities to enable investors to better understand their effects on an entity’s financial
position, financial performance and cash flows. This statement is effective for fiscal years and interim periods
beginning after November 15, 2008, with early application encouraged. TCEH is evaluating the impact of this
statement on its financial statement disclosures.

In October 2008, the FASB issued FSP SFAS 157-3, “Determining the Fair Value of a Financial Asset
When the Market for That Asset is Not Active.” The FSP clarifies the application of SFAS 157 in a market that
is not active and provides an example to illustrate key considerations in determining the fair value of a financial
asset when the market for that financial asset is not active. The FSP does not change the fair value measurement
principles in SFAS 157. The FSP is effective upon issuance, including prior periods for which financial
statements have not been issued. TCEH has determined this FSP does not change its approach for measuring fair
value of financial assets. ) . '

2.  FINANCIAL STATEMENT EFFECTS OF THE MERGER

EFH Corp. accounted for the Merger under purchase accounting in accordance with the provisions of
SFAS 141, whereby the total purchase price of the transaction was allocated to EFH Corp.’s identifiable tangible
and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their fair values as of October 10, 2007. The fair
values were determined based upon assumptions related to future cash flows, discount rates, and asset lives as
well as factors more unique to EFH Corp., its industry and the competitive wholesale power market that include
forward natural gas price curves and market heat rates, retail customer attrition rates, generation plant operating -
and construction costs, and the effect on generation facility values of lignite fuel reserves and mining capabilities
using currently available information. The excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net assets acquired
was recorded by EFH Corp. as goodwill, which totaled $22.9 billion at September 30, 2008.

Purchase accounting impacts, including goodwill recognition, have been “pushed down”, resulting in the
assets and liabilities of TCEH being recorded at their fair values as of October 10, 2007. The assignment of
purchase price was based on the relative estimated enterprise value of TCEH's operations as of the date of the
Merger using discounted cash flow methodologies and resulted in TCEH recording $18.0 billion of goodwill.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed
(billions of dollars):

Purchase price assigned t0 TCEH ..o $ 28.3

Property, plant and €QUIPMENt ............evveerererirririereieeineenseveeesessesssbaseaenes 20.3

Intangible assets..........cccoueunnnn. 4.4
Other assets................ 38

Total assets acquir 28.5
Short-term borrowings and long-term debt...........cococcveiniieennnren e 5.9
Deferred tax liabilities.........ccocveereennnne 6.9
Other liabilities ................... 54

Total liabilities assumed............... 18.2

Net identifiable assets acquired. ... 10.3

GOOAWITL ottt ee e



Management believes the drivers of the goodwill amount include the incremental value of the future cash
flow potential of the baseload generation facilities, including facilities under construction, over the values
assigned to those assets under purchase accounting rules, considering the market-pricing mechanisms and
growth potential in the ERCOT market, as well as the value derived from the scale of the retail business.

The purchase price allocation at September 30, 2008 is substantially complete; however, additional analysis
with respect to the value of certain assets, contractual arrangements and contingent liabilities could result in a
change in the total amount of goodwill. SFAS 141 requires that the purchase price allocation be completed no
later than one year from the date of the Merger. In September 2008, additional exit liabilities totaling $10
million related to termination pursuant to the Merger of certain contractual agreements were recorded. This
amount is expected to be paid by the first quarter of 2009.

3. GOODWILL AND IDENTIFIABLE INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Goodwill

TCEH's goodwill as of September 30, 2008 totaled $18.0 billion and as of December 31, 2007 totaled
$18.1 billion, representing the allocated portion of the Merger purchase price over the fair value of TCEH's
assets and liabilities, as discussed in Note 2. None of this goodwill balance is being deducted for tax purposes.

Potential Impairment of Goodwill

Key measures in assessing the fair value of TCEH, including-equity values of comparable companies and
forward natural gas prices, experienced significant volatility and general declines in the third quarter as the credit
crisis has impacted worldwide markets. As a result of these market movements, management considered
whether an assessment of the carrying value of goodwill, in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 142, should
be performed as of September 30, 2008.

In consideration of long-term valuation drivers and trends specific to TCEH and recently completed and
proposed relevant transactions, management believes that the fundamental value of the business has not changed
materially, and considering the volatility in the markets during September 2008, determined that it would be
premature to conclude that market declines as of the end of the third quarter are other than temporary.
Management intends to reassess market conditions prior to the issuance of TCEH's year-end financial
statements. TCEH's annual goodwill assessment date under SFAS 142 falls in the fourth quarter.

Under the SFAS 142 goodwill impairment analysis, if at the assessment date, TCEH’s book value exceeded
its estimated enterprise value, then the estimated enterprise value would be compared to the estimated fair values
of TCEH’s operating assets (including identifiable intangible assets) and liabilities at the assessment date, and
the resultant implied goodwill amount would then be compared to the recorded goodwill amount. Any excess of
the recorded goodwill amount over the implied goodwill amount would be written off as an impairment charge.
Because any decline in enterprise value would likely be accompanied by a decline in the fair value of assets,
particularly generation plants, it is possible that implied goodwill would approximate recorded goodwill, and no
impairment would arise as a result of this analysis.



Identifiable Intangible Assets

Identifiable intangible assets are comprised of the following:

[

Successor

As of September 30, 2008

As of December 31, 2007

Gross

Carrying Accumulated

Gross
Carrying  Accumulated

Amount  Amortization Net Amount Amortization Net
Retail customer relationship ........ccccocccvninrnnnnees $ 463 $ 118 $ 345 $ 463 $ 79 $ 384
Favorable purchase and sales contracts . 715 197 518 702 68 634
Capitalized in-service software.............. 50 10 40 41 3 38
Environmental allowances and credits .. . 984 96 888 1,525 19 1,506
Mining development COSIS .......coceeoirrrrinerecnrnreree 11 1 10 - - -
Total intangible assets subject to amortization .. $2,223 $ 422 1,801 32,731 $ 169 2,562
Trade name (not subject to amortization).............. 1,436 . 1,436
Mineral interests (not currently subject
10 AMOTtIZAtION) ..cecoervvirieiiiircici et 114 139
Total intangible assets ..........ccocevvercccinireccnns $3,351 : $4,137
Amortization expense related to identifiable intangible assets consisted of:
Successor Predecessor Successor Predecessor
Three Months Three Months . Nine Months Nine Months
Ended Ended Ended - Ended
September 30, September 30, September 30, September 30,
2008 2007 2008 2007
. . 3 !
Retail customer relationship....c......cceeecvvevvrieiciniineenes $ 13 $ - $ 39 s -
Favorable purchase and sales contracts............c.cececeeiuinne 9 - 115 -
Capitalized in-service software ............cccceeceerirnecncrcnnne 2 2 8 4
Environmental allowances and credits.............cccoecceiiine 28 - 77 -
Total amortization expense 352 s 2 5 239 § 4

As discussed in Note 2, purchase accounting impacts have been “pushed down”, resulting in the assets and |
liabilities of TCEH being recorded at their fair values as of October 10, 2007. As part of that process, TCEH

identified the following separately identifiable and previously unrecognized intangible assets acquired:

Retail Customer Relationship — Retail customer relationship intangible asset represents the value of
TXU Energy’s non-contracted customer base and is being amortized using an accelerated method based
on customer attrition rates and reflecting the pattern in which economic benefits are realized over their
estimated useful life. Amortization expense related to the retail customer relationship intangible asset is
reported as part of depreciation and amortization expense in the income statement.

Favorable Purchase and Sales Contracts — Favorable purchase and sales contracts intangible asset
primarily represents the above market value of commodity contracts for which: 1) TCEH has made the
“normal” purchase or sale election allowed by SFAS 133 or 2) the contracts did not meet the definition
of a derivative. The amortization pertods of these intangible assets are based on the terms of the
contracts, and the expense is reported as part of revenues or fuel and purchased power costs in the
income statement as appropriate. Unfavorable purchase and sales contracts are recorded as other
noncurrent liabilities and deferred credits (see Note 14).

Trade name — The trade name intangible asset represents the value of the TXU Energy trade name, and
. as an indefinite-lived asset is not subject to amortization. This intangible asset will be evaluated for
impairment at least annually (as of October !) in accordance with SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets.”



o Environmental Allowances and Credits — This intangible asset represents the fair value of .
environmental allowances and credits held by TCEH, substantially all of which were expected to be
used in its power generation activity. These credits will be amortized to fuel and purchased power costs
utilizing a units-of-production method.

Impairment of Certain Intangible Assets

In March 2005, the EPA issued regulations called the Clean Air Interstate Rule (CAIR) for 28 states,
including Texas, where TCEH's generation facilities are located. CAIR required reductions of SO, and NOx
emissions from power generation facilities in such states. The SO, reductions were beyond the reductions
required under the Clean Air Act’s existing acid rain cap-and-trade program (the Acid Rain Program). CAIR
also established a new regional cap-and-trade program for NOx emissions reductions.

In July 2008, the US Court of Appeals for the D.C. Circuit (the D.C. Circuit Court) invalidated CAIR. The
D.C. Circuit Court did not overturn the existing cap-and-trade program for SO, reductions under the Acid Rain
Program.

In the second quarter of 2008, TCEH determined that certain of its SO, allowances had decreased
materially in value, likely driven by litigation that resulted in the July 2008 decision from the D.C. Circuit Court
invalidating CAIR. Accordingly, TCEH recorded a $2 million (before deferred income tax benefit) impairment
of certain SO, allowances.

Based on the D.C. Circuit Court’s ruling, TCEH recorded a non-cash impairment charge to earnings in the .
third quarter of 2008. TCEH impaired NOx allowances in the amount of $401 million (before deferred income
tax benefit). As a result of the D.C. Circuit Court’s decision, as it stands, NOx allowances would no longer be
needed, and thus there would not be an actively traded market for such allowances. Consequently, the NOx-
allowances held by TCEH would likely have very little value absent reversal of the D.C. Circuit Court’s decision
or promulgation of new rules by the EPA. In addition, TCEH impaired SO, allowances in the amount of $98
million (before deferred income tax benefit). While the D.C. Circuit Court did not invalidate the Acid Rain
- Program, TCEH would have more SO, allowances than it would need to comply with the Acid Rain Program.
While there continues to be a market for SO, allowances, the D.C. Circuit Court’s decision has resulted in a
material decrease in the market price of SO, allowances.

The impairment amounts recorded in the second and third quarters of 2008 were reported in other
deductions.

" At this time TCEH cannot'predict the final outcome of the D.C. Circuit Court’s decision, including whether
the D.C. Circuit Court will grant the EPA’s request for rehearing or revise its decision to allow CAIR to remain
in place during any Court-ordered revision of CAIR by the EPA.

Estimated Amortization of Intangible Assets — The estimated aggregate amortization expense of
intangible assets for each of the five succeeding fiscal years from December 31, 2007 is as follows:

Year Successor
2008 $336
443
258
213
152




4, CONTRIBUTIONS OF ENTITIES AND NET ASSETS TO TCEH '

In connection with the Merger, EFH Corp. or EFC Holdings contributed all of the outstanding equity of
certain subsidiaries to TCEH, and EFH Corp. subsidiaries contributed certain assets and liabilities to TCEH.
These contributions consisted largely of assets and liabilities associated with the three new lignite-fueled
generation units currently under development, certain natural gas hedge positions and a lease trust holding
certain combustion turbines. Because these transactions were between entities under the common control of .
EFH Corp., TCEH accounted for the transactions in a manner similar to a pooling of interests. As a result,
historical operations, financial position and cash flows of TCEH and the entities and other net assets contributed
are presented on a combined basis for all periods presented.

The following table presents the revenues, net losses from commodity hedging and trading activities and
net income (loss) of the entities contributed and the combined amounts presented in TCEH's consolidated
income statements. ’

Predecessor
Three Months Nine Months
Ended Ended
September 30, September 30,
2007 2007
Revenues: . '
TCEH ..ottt s st s s sas $ 2,569 $ 6,618
Contributed subsidiaries.. -3 6
COMDBINEd ...ttt st aberene s $ 2,572 $ 6,624
Net gain (loss) from commodity hedging and trading activities (a):.
TCEH ..ottt e sre b fraasnes . $ 320 $ (317D
Contributed subsidiaries.. 142 (290
COMBINE ...ttt et e saene $ 462 $  (607)
Net income (loss):
TCEH ...ttt SO UUTTUUTUUTUPUPURUI $ 902 % 1,382
Contributed subsidiaries.............ccoevvverrcniveneenns ettt e eaene S 72 202
Combined .....ooeevvivieieiiiene e et ens e ereeaas h 974 $ 1,180

fa

(a) Commodity hedging and trading activities were previoﬁsly reported within revenues. See Note 1.
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5. OTHER INCOME AND DEDUCTIONS

Successor
“Three Months
Ended
September 30,
2008
Other income:
Mineral rights royalty income ........ccccoocvcevnnnceernennnees $ 1
Penalty received for nonperformance under a
coal transportation agreement..............c.cooovvrerennenen -
Net gain on sale 0f aSSEtS.......c.occcvervenerninrenriernenieene -
1
Total other income £ 2
Other deductions:

Impairment of emission allowances intangible
assets (Note 3) $ 499
Charge related to Lehman bankruptcy (a) 26
Charge related to termination of rail car lease (b)........ -
Credit related to impaired leases (c) -
Litigation/regulatory settlements -
3
3
Total other deductions.. 3531

Predecessor Successor Predecessor
Three Months Nine Months Nine Months
Ended Ended Ended
September 30, September 30, September 30,
2007 2008 2007
3 3 $ 3 $ 7

3 - 6

1 - 1

i 5 5

32 __8 § 8 £ 19
3 - $ 501 $ -
- 26 -

10 - 10
(48) - (48)

- 7 5

2 8 5

2 8 8

§ (34 § 550 § (20

(a) Represents reserve established against amounts due (excluding termination related costs) from subsidiaries of Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc.
arising from commodity hedging and tradmg activities. There are no open positions with these subsxd:anes

(b) Represents costs associated with termination and refinancing of a rail car lease.

(©) In 2004, TCEH recorded a liability of $157 million for leases of certain natural gas-fueled combustion turbmes net of estimated sublease revenues,
that were no longer operated for its own benefit. In the third quarter of 2007, a reduction in the liability was recorded to reflect new subleases
entered into in October 2007. The remaining $59 million liability was eliminated as part of purchase accounting as TCEH operates these assets for

its own benefit after the Merger.
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6. TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND SALE OF RECEIVABLES PROGRAM
Sale of Receivables

TCEH participates in an accounts receivable securitization program established by EFH Corp. for its
subsidiaries engaged in retail sales of electricity, the activity under which is accounted for as a sale of accounts
receivable in accordance with SFAS 140. Under the program, such subsidiaries (originators) sell trade accounts
receivable to TXU Receivables Company, a consolidated wholly-owned bankruptcy-remote direct subsidiary of
EFH Corp., which sells undivided interests in the purchased accounts receivable for cash to special purpose
entities established by financial institutions (the funding entities).

As of September 30, 2008, the program funding to the originators totaled $700 million, which is the
maximum amount currently available under the accounts receivable securitization program. The amount of
customer deposits held by the originators can reduce the amount of undivided interests that can be sold, thus
reducing funding available under the program, during periods in which TCEH’s long-term senior unsecured debt
rating is lower than investment grade. Funding availability for all originators can be reduced by 100% of the
originators’ customer deposits if TCEH's credit rating is lower than Ba3/BB-; 50% if TCEH's credit rating is
between Ba3/BB- and Bal/BB+; and zero % if TCEH's credit rating is at least Baa3/BBB-. Although TCEH's
credit ratings were lower than Ba3/BB- as of September 30, 2008, the originators' customer deposits, which
totaled $111 million, did not reduce funding availability at that date since the amount of undivided interests that
otherwise could be sold exceeded the $700 million program limit.

All new trade receivables under the program generated by the originators are continuously purchased by
TXU Receivables Company with the proceeds from collections of receivables previously purchased. Changes in
the amount of funding under the program, through changes in the amount of undivided interests sold by TXU
Receivables Company, reflect seasonal variations in the level of accounts receivable, changes in collection
trends as well as other factors such as changes in sales prices and volumes. TXU Receivables Company has
issued subordinated notes payable to the originators for the difference between the face amount of the
uncollected accounts receivable purchased, less a discount, and cash paid to the originators that was funded by
the sale of the undivided interests. The balance of the subordinated notes issued to TCEH, which is reported in
trade accounts receivable, totaled $340 million and $296 million at September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007,
respectively.

The discount from face amount on the purchase of receivables principally funds program fees paid by TXU
Receivables Company to the funding entities. The discount also funds a servicing fee paid by TXU Receivables
Company to EFH Corporate Services Company, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of EFH Corp. The program
fees, also referred to as losses on sale of the receivables under SFAS 140, consist primarily of interest costs on”
the underlying financing. The servicing fee compensates EFH Corporate Services Company for the collection
agent services being performed, including the maintenance of detailed accounts receivable collection records.
The program and servicing fees represent essentially all the net incremental costs of the program to TCEH and
are reportgd in SG&A expenses. Fee amounts were as follows:

Successor ’ Predecessor Successor Predecessor
Three Months Three Months Nine Months Nine Months
Ended Ended Ended Ended
September 30, September 30, September 30, September 30,
2008 2007 2008 - 2007
Program fees ... lvvccnciiniccnnns $ 7 $ 8 $ 18 $ 25
Program fees as a percentage of average
funding (annualized)..........cccouvvvennene. 4.2% 6.0% 52% 6.3%
Servicing fees........oovuvenirivrninencicnenenenen 1 1 : 3 3
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The accounts receivable balance reported in the September 30, 2008 consolidated balanceé sheet has been
reduced by $1.040 billion face amount of trade accounts receivable sold to TXU Receivables Company, partially
offset by the inclusion of $340 million of subordinated notes receivable from TXU Receivables Company.
Funding under the program increased $337 million and $47 million for the nine month periods ending September
30, 2008 and 2007, respectively. Funding increases or decreases under the program are reflected as operating
cash flow activity in the statement of cash flows. The carrying amount of the retained interests in the accounts -
receivable balance approximated fair value due to the short-term nature of the collection period.

Activities of TXU Receivables Company related to TCEH were as follows:

Successor Predecessor
Nine Months Nine Months
Ended Ended
September 30, September 30,
2008 2007
Cash collections on accounts receivable ..........cooeeeiriniineivenrecee e $ 4,881 $ 5,015
Face amount of new receivables purchased ................... (5,263) (5,322)
Discount from face amount of purchased receivables.... . 22 28
Program fees paid ... . (18) (25)
Servicing fees paid.......c.c..cocoeeerveveeninns . 3) 3)
Increase in subordinated notes payable ...........cooceeviveereeninnn . 44 260
Operating cash flows provided to TCEH under the program..........c.....ccocecun... $ (33D s (47

The program may be terminated upon the occurrence of a number of specified events, including if the
delinquency ratio (delinquent for 31 days) for the sold receivables, the default ratio (delinquent for 91 days or
deemed uncollectible), the dilution ratio (reductions for discounts, disputes and other allowances) or the days
collection outstanding ratio exceed stated thresholds, and the financial institutions do not waive such event of
termination. The thresholds apply to the entire portfolio of sold receivables, not separately to the receivables of
each originator. In addition, the program may be terminated if TXU Receivables Company or EFH Corporate
Services Company, as collection agent, shall default in any payment with respect to debt in excess of $50,000 in
the aggregate for TXU Receivables Company and EFH Corporate Services Company, or if TCEH, any affiliate
of TCEH acting as collection agent under the program other than EFH Corporate Services Company, any parent
guarantor of an originator or any originator shall default in any payment with respect to debt (other than hedging
obligations) in excess of $200 million in the aggregate for such entities.

Upon termination of the program, cash flows would be delayed as collections of sold receivables would be
used by TXU Receivables Company to repurchase the undivided interests from the funding entities instead of
purchasing new receivables. The level of cash flows would normalize in approximately 16 to 30 days.

The subordinated notes issued by TXU Receivables Company are subordinated to the undivided interests
of the financial institutions in the purchased receivables.
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Trade Accounts Receivable

Successor
September 30, 2008 December 31, 2007
Gross trade accounts receivable . $ 1,767 $ 1,214
Undivided interests in accounts receivable sold by TXU Receivables Company ....... (1,040) (659)
Subordinated notes receivable from TXU Receivables Company..........cccococecrercecnnnn 340 296
Allowance for uncollectible accounts.............ccovviiiii e (61) 24)
Trade accounts receivable — reported in balance SHEEL vt $ 1,006 $ 827

Gross trade accounts receivable at September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007 included unbilled revenues
of $445 million and $404 million, respectively.

Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts Receivable

Successor Predecessor
Nine Months Nine Months
Ended Ended
September 30, September 30,
2008 2007
Allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable as of beginning of period........... 3 24 $ 8
Increase for bad debt expense...... 57 42
Decrease for account writeoffs ..... (46) 45)
Charge related to Lehman bankruptcy. 26 -
Changes related to receivables sold................icccooeennn. - 11
Allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable as of end of perio $ 61 $ 16

Allowances related to undivided interests in receivables sold totaled $14 million at September 30, 2007,
and this amount was reported in current liabilities.
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7. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS AND LONG-TERM DEBT
Short-Term Borrowings

At September 30, 2008, TCEH had outstanding short-term borrowings of $2.470 billion at a weighted
average interest rate of 5.99%, excluding certain customary fees, at the end of the period. At December 31,
2007, TCEH had outstanding short-term borrowings of $438 million at a weighted average interest rate of
4.47%, excluding certain customary fees, at the end of the period.

Credit Facilities

TCEH’s credit facilities with cash borrowing and/or letter of credit availability at September 30, 2008 are
presented below. These are all senior secured facilities.

At September 30, 2008

. Maturity Facility Letters of Cash
Authorized Borrowers and Facility ' Date Limit Credit Borrowings  Availability
TCEH Delayed Draw Term Loan Facility (a) ........... October 2014 $ 4,100 $ - $ 3,154 $ 946
TCEH Revolving Credit Facility (b) .......................... October 2013 2,700 102 1,910 688
TCEH Letter of Credit Facility (€)}.......c.coceececerrncne October 2014 1,250 - 1.250 -
SUBLOLAL . .vvvvvevveerss e $ 8050 $ 10 $ 6314 $ 1634
TCEH Commodity Collateral Posting Facility (d).... December2012  Unlimited $ - $ 969 Unlimited

(a)  Facility to be used during the two-year period commencing on October 10, 2007 to fund expenditures for constructing certain new
generation facilities and environmental upgrades of existing generation facilities, including previously incurred expenditures not
yet funded under this facility. Borrowings are classified as long-term debt.

(b)  Facility to be used for letters of credit and borrowings for general corporate purposes. Borrowings are classified as short-term
borrowings.

(c)  Facility to be used for issuing letters of credit for general corporate purposes, including, but not limited to, providing collateral
support under hedging arrangements and other commodity transactions that are not eligible for funding under the TCEH
Commodity Collateral Posting Facility. The borrowings, all of which were drawn at the closing of the Merger and are classified as
long-term debt, have been retained as restricted cash. Letters of credit totaling $1.131 billion issued as of September 30, 2008 are
supported by the restricted cash, and the remaining letter of credit availability totals $119 million. )

(d)  Revolving facility to be used to fund cash collateral posting requirements for specified volumes of natural gas hedges. At
September 30, 2008, cash borrowings of $409 million are classified as long-term debt and $560 million are classified as short-term
borrowings.

The availability amounts shown above include unfunded commitments from a subsidiary of Lehman
Brothers Holdings Inc. (Lehman) that has filed for bankruptcy under Chapter 11 of the US Bankruptcy Code. As
of September 30, 2008, the aggregate amounts of such unfunded commitments were $79 million under the
TCEH Revolving Credit Facility and $16 million under the TCEH Delayed Draw Term Facility. In addition, the
amount of letters of credit shown above for the TCEH Revolving Credit Facility include approximately $12
million for the account of the Lehman subsidiary, and the amount of cash borrowings shown above for the
TCEH Revolving Credit Facility include approximately $80 million funded by a fronting bank on behalf of the
Lehman subsidiary that had not been reimbursed to the fronting bank as of September 30, 2008.

Pursuant to PUCT rules, TCEH is required to maintain available capacity under its credit facilities in order
to permit TXU Energy to return retail customer deposits, if necessary. As a result, at September 30, 2008, the
total availability under the TCEH credit facilities should be further reduced by $120 million.
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Long-Term Debt
At September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, the long-term debt of TCEH consisted of the following:

Successor
. September 30, December 31,
2008 2007

Pollution Control Revenue Bonds:
Brazos River Authority:
5.400% Fixed Series 1994A due May 1, 2029.........cooonvvvvceemeeinonesesesmsmesnsssssssssssssessassssesssossmsssesseoseesseesose $ 39 $ 39
7.700% Fixed Series 1999A due April 1 2033 . 111 111

6.750% Fixed Series 1999B due September 1, 2034, remarketing date April 1, 2013 (@.... 16 16
7.700% Fixed Series 1999C due March 1, 2032 50 50
8.250% Fixed Series 2001 A due October 1, 2030...... .. 71 -
2.300% Floating Series 2001A due October 1, 2030 (b) ...cvoererivneieeciieeeceensccreseesets e ssveenens - 71
5.750% Fixed Series 2001C due May 1, 2036, remarketing date November 1, 2011 (a) ............................. 217 217
8.250% Fixed Series 2001D-1 due May 1,2033 171 -
2.300% Floating Series 2001D-1 due May 1, 2033 (b). - 171
8.230% Floating Series 2001D-2 due May 1, 2033 (¢) ..... N 97 97
8.000% Floating Taxable Series 20011 due December 1, 2036 (c). 62 62
8.230% Floating Series 2002A due May 1, 2037 (c) 45 45
6.750% Fixed Series 2003A due April 1, 2038 remarketing date April 1, 2013 (a) 44 44
6.300% Fixed Series 2003B due July 1, 2032 39 39
6.750% Fixed Series 2003C due October 1,2038 . 52 52
5.400% Fixed Series 2003D due October 1, 2029, remarketing date October 1, 2014 (G} JE T 31 31
5.000% Fixed Series 2006 due March 1, 2041 .............................................................................................. 100 100

Sabine River Authority of Texas: .
6.450% Fixed Series 2000A due JUNE 1, 202 1......ccoovciiieiiiiieeccesse et s e b b seas s tns 51 51

5.500% Fixed Series 2001 A due May 1, 2022, remarketing date November 1, 2011 (a)... 91 91
5.750% Fixed Series 2001B due May 1, 2030, remarketing date November 1, 2011 (a)... 107 107
5.200% Fixed Series 2001C due May 1, 2028. . 70 .70
5.800% Fixed Series 2003A due July 1,2022 ..... . 12 12
6.150% Fixed Series 2003B due August 1, 2022 ..o eeccensasers e esen e 45 45
Trinity River Authority of Texas:

6.250% Fixed Series 2000A due May 1, 2028..........ccocevrreirireeiernierss s sesessssssessssese e sss s sessnsesnes 14 14
Unamortized fair value discount related to pollution control revenue bonds (d).......ccocccveererervireeenieenens (165) (175)

Senior Secured Facilities:
6.248% TCEH Initial Term Loan Facility maturing October 10, 2014 (€)(f) -..ccecoceerrrrrrrrrrirrrireireierenns 16,286 16,409
6.222% TCEH Delayed Draw Term Loan Facility maturing October 10, 2014 (e)(f) . 3,154 2,150
5.989% TCEH Letter of Credit Facility maturing October 10, 2014 (f) ......cooviinovvninnreccreiieieei 1,250 1,250
3.831% TCEH Commodity Collateral Posting Facility maturing December 31, 2012 (8)......corevvevrereranas 409 382
Other: .

10.25% Fixed Senior Notes due November 1, 2015 ......cccoviiiieiieeeee et ese s vsrssaeae e 3,000 3,000
10.25% Fixed Senior Notes Series B due November 1, 2015 .. . 2,000 2,000
10.50 / 11.25% Senior Toggle Notes due November 1, 2016 .. 1,750 1,750
6.125% Fixed Senior Notes due March 15, 2008 ..... - 3
7.000% Fixed Senior Notes due March 15, 2013 5 5
7.100% Promissory Note due January 5, 2009 65 65

7.460% Fixed Secured Facility Bonds with amortizing payments through January 2015.......cccccccooeernan. 67- 78
Capital lease obligations
Unamortized fair value discount (d)...

Less amount due currently
Total long-term debt

(a) These series are in the multiannual interest rate mode and are subject to mandatory tender prior to maturity on the mandatory remarketing
date. On such date, the interest rate and interest rate period will be reset for the bonds.

(b) Interest rates in effect at March 31, 2008. These series were remarketed in June 2008, resulting in a fixed rate to maturity.

(¢) Interest rates in effect at September 30, 2008. These series are in a weekly interest rate mode and are classified as long-term as they are
supported by long-term irrevocable letters of credit.

(d) Amount represents unamortized fair value adjustments recorded under purchase accounting.

(e) Interest rates swapped to fixed on $16.55 billion principal amount.

(f) Interest rates in effect at September 30, 2008.

(g) [Interest rates in effect at September 30, 2008, excluding quarterly maintenance fee discussed below. See "Credit Facilities" above for more
information.
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Debt-Related Activity in 2008 — Retirements of long-term debt in 2008 totaling $397 million represented
principal payments at scheduled maturity dates as well as the remarketing of $242 million principal amount of
pollution control revenue bonds discussed below. Payments at scheduled maturity dates included $123 million
repaid under the TCEH Initial Term Loan Facility. ‘ -

Issuances of long-term debt in 2008 totaling $1.277 billion represented borrowings under the TCEH
Delayed Draw Term Loan Facility of $1.004 billion to fund expenditures related to the development of new
generation facilities and the environmental retrofit program for existing lignite/coal-fueled generation facilities,
the remarketing of $242 million principal amount of pollution control revenue bonds discussed immediately
below and $31 million of additional borrowings under the TCEH Commodity Collateral Posting Facility (under
which additional borrowings in 2008 totaling $122 million are classified as short-term debt).

In June 2008, TCEH remarketed the Brazos River Authority Pollution Control Revenue Bonds Series
2001A due in October 2030 and Series 2001D-1 due in May 2033 with aggregate principal amounts of $71 -
million and $171 million, respectively. The bonds were previously in a floating rate mode that reset weekly and
were backed by two letters of credit in an aggregate amount of $247 million. As a result of the remarketing, the
bonds were fixed to maturity at an interest rate of 8.25%, and the two letters of credit were cancelled. The bonds
are redeemable at par beginning July 1, 2018 and are redeemable with a make-whole premium prior to July 1,
2018. These bonds were remarketed with a covenant package similar to the notes discussed below under “TCEH
Notes Issued Subsequent to the Merger.”

TCEH Senior Secured Facilities — Borrowings under the TCEH Initial Term Loan Facility, the TCEH
Delayed Draw Term Loan Facility, the TCEH Revolving Credit Facility and the TCEH Letter of Credit Facility,
which totaled $22.600 billion at September 30, 2008, bear interest at per annum rates equal to, at TCEH’s option,
(i) adjusted LIBOR plus 3.50% or (ii) a base rate (the higher of (1) the prime rate as announced from time to
time by the administrative agent of the facilities and (2) the federal funds effective rate plus 0.50%) plus 2.50%.
There is a margin adjustment mechanism in relation to term loans, revolving loans and letter of credit fees under
which the applicable margins may be reduced based on the achievement of certain leverage ratio levels; there
was no such reduction based upon September 30, 2008 levels. The applicable rate on each facility as of
September 30, 2008 is provided in the table above and reflects LIBOR-based borrowings.

A commitment fee is payable quarterly in arrears and upon termination of the TCEH Revolving Credit
Facility at a rate per annum equal to 0.50% of the average daily unused portion of such facility. The
commitment fee is subject to reduction, based on the achievement of certain leverage ratio levels; there was no
such reduction based upon September 30, 2008 levels.

With respect to the TCEH Deléyed Draw Term Loan Facility, a commitment fee is payable quarterly in
arrears and upon termination of the undrawn portion of the commitments of such facility at a rate per annum
equal to, prior to October 10, 2008, 1.25% per annum, and thereafter, 1.50% per annum.

Letter of credit fees under the TCEH Revolving Facility are payable quarterly in arrears and upon
termination at a rate per annum equal to the spread over adjusted LIBOR under the TCEH Revolving Facility,
less the issuing bank’s fronting fee. Letter of credit fees under the TCEH Letter of Credit Facility are equal to
the difference between interest paid.on each outstanding letter of credit at a rate of LIBOR plus 3.50% per
annum and the interest earned on the total $1.25 billion TCEH Letter of Credit Facility restricted cash at a rate of
LIBOR minus 0.12% per annum yielding a currently effective rate of 3.62% per annum on each outstanding
letter of credit under that facility.

TCEH will pay a fixed quarterly maintenance fee of approximately $11 million through maturity for having
procured the TCEH Commodity Collateral Posting Facility regardless of actual borrowings under the facility. In
addition, TCEH will pay interest at LIBOR on actual borrowed amounts under the TCEH Commodity Collateral
Posting Facility partially offset by interest earned on collateral deposits to counterparties.
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The TCEH Senior Secured Facilities are unconditionally guaranteed jointly and severally on a senior
secured basis, by EFC Holdings, and each existing and subsequently acquired or organized direct or indirect
wholly-owned US restricted subsidiary of TCEH (other than certam subsidiaries as prov1ded in the TCEH Senior
Secured Facilities), subject to certain other exceptions.

The TCEH Senior Secured Facilities, including the guarantees thereof, certain commodity hedging
transactions and the interest rate swaps described under “TCEH Interest Rate Hedges” below are secured by (a)
substantially all of the current and future assets of TCEH and TCEH’s subsidiaries who are guarantors-of such
facilities as described above, and (b) pledges of the capital stock of TCEH and each current and future material
wholly-owned restricted subsidiary of TCEH directly owned by TCEH or any guarantor.

The TCEH Senior Secured Facilities contain customary negative covenants, restricting) sub_lect to certain
exceptions, TCEH and TCEH’s restricted subsidiaries from, among other things:

incurring additional debt;

incurring additional liens;

entering into mergers and consolidations;

selling or otherwise disposing of assets;

making dividends, redemptions or other distributions in respect of capital stock
making acquisitions, investments, loans and advances, and

paying or modifying certain subordinated and other material debt.

In addition, the TCEH Senior Secured Facilities contain a maintenance covenant that prohibits TCEH and
its restricted subsidiaries from exceeding a maximum consolidated secured leverage ratio and to observe certain
customary reporting requirements and other affirmative covenants.

The TCEH Initial Term Loan Facility is required to be repaid in equal quarterly installments in an
aggregate annual amount equal to 1% of the original principal amount of such facility ($41 million quarterly),
with the balance payable on October 10, 2014. The TCEH Delayed Draw Term Loan Facility is required to be
repaid in equal quarterly installments beginning on December 31, 2009 in an aggregate annual amount equal to
1% of the actual principal outstanding under the TCEH Delayed Draw Term Loan Facility as of such date, with
the balance payable on October 10, 2014. Amounts borrowed under the TCEH Revolving Facility may be
reborrowed from time to time from and after the closing date until October 10, 2013. The TCEH Letter of Credit
Facility will mature on October 10, 2014, The TCEH Commodity Collateral Posting Fa0111ty will mature on
December 31, 2012,

The TCEH Senior Secured Facilities contain certain customary events of default for senior leveraged
acquisition financings, the occurrence of which would allow the lenders to accelerate all outstanding loans and
terminate their commitments.

TCEH Notes Issued Subsequent to the Merger — Pursuant to an indenture entered into in October 2007
(the TCEH Indenture), TCEH and TCEH Finance (the Co-Issuers) issued and sold $3.0 billion aggregate
principal amount of 10.25% Senior Notes due November 1, 2015. In December 2007 under a supplemental
indenture, the Co-Issuers issued and sold $2.0 billion aggregate principal amount of 10.25% Series B Senior
Notes due November 1, 2015. Interest on these notes (referred to as the TCEH Cash-Pay Notes) is payable in
cash semiannually in arrears on May 1 and November 1 of each year at a fixed rate of 10.25% per annum, and
the first interest payment was made on May 1, 2008.

Pursuant to the supplemental indenture, the Co-Issuers also issued and sold $1.75 billion aggregate
principal amount of 10.50%/11.25% Senior Toggle Notes due November 1, 2016. The initial interest payment
on these notes (referred to as the TCEH Toggle Notes) was paid in cash. 'For any interest period thereafter until
November 1, 2012, the Issuer may elect to pay interest on the notes, at the Issuer’s option (i) entirely in cash; (ii)
by increasing the principal amount of the notes or by issuing new TCEH Toggle Notes (Payment-in-Kind or PIK

" Interest); or (iii) 50% in cash and 50% in PIK Interest. Interest on the notes is payable semi-annually in arrears
on May 1 and November 1 of each year at a fixed rate of 10.50% per annum for cash interest and at a fixed rate of
11.25% per annum for PIK Interest, and the first interest payment was made on May 1, 2008.
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The $6.75 billion principal amount of notes issued under the TCEH Indenture and its supplement (the
TCEH Cash-Pay Notes and the TCEH Toggle Notes) are collectively referred to as the TCEH Notes.

The TCEH Notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by TCEH’s direct parent, EFC Holdings (which
owns 100% of TCEH and its subsidiary guarantors), and by each subsidiary that guarantees the TCEH Senior
Secured Facilities (the TCEH Guarantors). The TCEH Notes are the Co-Issuers’ senior unsecured debt and rank
senior in right of payment to any future subordinated indebtedness of the Co-Issuers, equally in right of payment
with all of the Co-Issuers’ existing and future senior unsecured indebtedness, and structurally subordinated in
right of payment to all existing and future indebtedness and other liabilities of the Co-Issuers’ non-guarantor
subsidiaries, including trade payables (other than indebtedness and liabilities owed to the Co-Issuers or the
TCEH Guarantors). The TCEH Notes rank effectively junior in right of payment to all existing and futuré senior
secured indebtedness of the Co-Issuers, including the TCEH Senior Secured Facilities to the extent of the value
of the collateral securing such indebtedness. ' '

The guarantees are joint and several guarantees of the TCEH Notes, are the TCEH Guarantors’ senior
unsecured obligations and rank equal in right of payment with all existing and future senior unsecured
indebtedness of the relevant TCEH Guarantor and senior in right of payment to any existing or future
subordinated indebtedness of the relevant TCEH Guarantor. The guarantees rank effectively junior to all
secured indebtedness of the TCEH Guarantors to the:extent of the assets securing that indebtedness. EFC
Holdings’ guarantee of the TCEH Notes ranks equally with its guarantee of the EFH Corp. Cash-Pay Notes and
the EFH Corp. Toggle Notes (discussed below). The guarantees of the TCEH Notes are structurally junior to all
indebtedness and other liabilities of the Co-Issuers’ subsidiaries that do not guarantee the notes.

The TCEH Indenture contains a number of covenants that, among other things, restrict, subject to certain
exceptions, the Co-Issuers’ and their restricted subsidiaries’ ability to:

e make restricted payments;

e incur debt and issue preferred stock;

s create liens;

e enter into mergers or consolidations;

o sell or otherwise dispose of certain assets;

e permit dividend and other payment restrictions on restricted subsidiaries, and
e engage in certain transactions with affiliates. :

The TCEH Indenture also contains customary events of default, including failure to pay principal or
interest on the TCEH Notes or the guarantees when due, among others. If an event of default occurs under the
TCEH Indenture, the trustee or the holders of at least 30% in principal amount of the Required Debt (as such
term is defined in the TCEH Indenture) may declare the principal amount on the TCEH Notes to be due and
payable immediately.

The Co-Issuers may redeem the TCEH Cash-Pay Notes, in whole or in part, at any time on or after
November 1, 2011, or the TCEH Toggle Notes, in whole or in part, at any time on or after November 1, 2012, at
specified redemption prices, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any. In addition, before November 1, 2010, the
Co-Issuers may redeem with the cash proceeds of certain equity offerings up to 35% of the aggregate principal
amount of TCEH Cash-Pay Notes from time to time at a redemption price of 110.250% of the aggregate
principal amount of the TCEH Cash-Pay Notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, or 110.500% of the
aggregate principal amount of the TCEH Toggle Notes, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any. The Co-Issuers
may also redeem the TCEH Cash-Pay Notes at any time prior to November 1, 2011 or the TCEH Toggle Notes
at any time prior to Nevember 1, 2012 at a price equal to 100% of their principal amount, ptus accrued and
unpaid interest and a “make-whole” premium. Upon the occurrence of a change in control of TCEH, the Co-
Issuers must offer to repurchase the TCEH Notes at 101% of their principal amount, plus accrued and unpaid
interest, if any.



The TCEH Notes were issued in a private placement and have not been registered under the Securities Act. .

The Co-Issuers have agreed to use their commercially reasonable efforts to register with the SEC notes having
substantially identical terms as the TCEH Notes as part of an offer to exchange freely tradable exchange notes
for the TCEH Notes. The Co-Issuers have agreed to use commercially reasonable efforts to cause the exchange
offer to be completed or, if required, to have one or more shelf registration statements declared effective, within
360 days after the issue date of the TCEH Notes. If this obligation is not satisfied (a TCEH Registration
Default), the annual interest rate on the TCEH Notes will increase by 0.25% per annum for the first 90-day
period during which a TCEH Registration Default continues, and thereafter the annual interest rate on the TCEH
Notes will increase by 0.50% per annum over the original interest rate for the remaining period during which the
TCEH Registration Default continues. If the TCEH Registration Default is cured, the applicable interest rate on
such TCEH Notes will revert to the original level.

On September 26, 2008, EFC Holdings and TCEH filed a registration statement with the SEC to register
notes to exchange for the TCEH Notes.

Intercreditor Agreement — In October 2007, in connection with the Merger, TCEH entered into an
Intercreditor Agreement (the Intercreditor Agreement) with Citibank, N.A. and five secured commodity hedge
counterparties (the Secured Commodity Hedge Counterparties). The Intercreditor Agreement provides that the
lien granted to the Secured Commodity Hedge Counterparties will rank pari passu with the lien granted with
respect to the collateral of the secured parties under the TCEH Senior Secured Facilities. The Intercreditor
Agreement also provides that the Secured Commodity Hedge Counterparties will be entitled to share, on a pro..
rata basis, in the proceeds of any liquidation of such collateral in connection with a foreclosure on such collateral
in an amount provided in the TCEH Senior Secured Facilities. The Intercreditor Agreement also provides that
the Secured Commodity Hedge Counterparties will have voting rights with respect to any amendment or waiver
of any provision of the Intercreditor Agreement that changes the priority of the Secured Commodity Hedge
Counterparties’ lien on such collateral relative to the priority of lien granted to the secured parties under the
TCEH Senior Secured Facilities or the priority of payments to the Secured Commodity Hedge Counterparties
upon a foreclosure and liquidation of such collateral relative to the priority of the lien granted to the secured
parties under the TCEH Senior Secured Facilities.

TCEH Interest Rate Swap Transactions — In 2007, subsequent to the Merger, TCEH entered into interest
rate swap transactions pursuant to which payment of the floating interest rates on an aggregate of $15.05 billion
of senior secured term loans of TCEH were exchanged for interest payments at fixed rates of between 7.3% and
8.3% on debt maturing from 2009 to 2014. Prior to ‘August 29, 2008, the interest rate swaps were being
accounted for as cash flow hedges related to variable interest rate cash flows. As of August 29, 2008, these
swaps were dedesignated as cash flow hedges as a result of the intent to change the variable interest rate terms of
the hedged debt (from three-month LIBOR to one-month LIBOR) in connection with the planned execution of
interest rate basis swaps (discussed immediately below) to further reduce the fixed borrowing costs. Based on
the fair value of the positions, the cumulative unrealized mark-to-market net losses related to these interest rate
swaps totaled $431 million (pre-tax) at August 29, 2008 and was recorded in accumulated other comprehensive
income. This balance will be reclassified into net income as interest on the hedged debt is reflected in net
income. No ineffectiveness gains or losses were recorded. After August 29, 2008, changes in the fair value of
these swap transactions are being reported in the income statement in interest expense and related charges.

In September 2008, TCEH entered into interest rate swap transactions pursuant to which payment of the
floating interest rates on an aggregate of an additional $1.5 billion of senior secured term loans of TCEH were
exchanged for interest payments at fixed rates of between 7.3% and 7.6% on debt maturing from 2013 to 2014.
These swap transactions are also being marked-to-market in net income as interest expense and related charges.
The interest rate swap counterparties are secured proportionally with the lenders under the TCEH Senior Secured
Facilities.
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In May 2008, TCEH entered into an interest rate swap transaction pursuant to which semiannual payment
(settled quarterly) of the floating interest rates at LIBOR on an aggregate of $2.095 billion of senior secured term
loans of TCEH were exchanged for floating interest rates of LIBOR plus 0.21% receivable monthly. In
September 2008, TCEH entered into interest rate basis swap transactions pursuant to which quarterly payment of
the floating interest rates at LIBOR on an aggregate of $7.95 billion of senior secured term loans of TCEH were
exchanged for floating interest rates of LIBOR plus spreads ranging from 0.076% to 0.145% receivable monthly.
The interest rate swap counterparties are secured proportionally with the lenders under the TCEH Semor Secured
Facilities. -

As of September 30, 2008, all active interest rate swap transactions are being marked-to-market in net
income. A total of $36 million in unrealized mark-to-market net gains related to interest rate swap transactions
are included in interest expense and related charges for the quarter and year-to-date 2008 periods.

8. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Generation Development

EPC agreements have been executed for the development of three lignite-fueled generation units in Texas.
In connection therewith, orders have been placed for critical long lead-time equipment, including boilers, turbine
generators and air quality control systems for the two units at Oak Grove and one unit at Sandow, and
construction of the three units is underway.

In September 2007, a subsidiary of TCEH acquired from Alcoa Inc. the air permit related to the Sandow
facility that had been previously issued by the TCEQ. However, the air permit is the subject of lltlgatlon as
discussed below under “Litigation Related to Generatlon Development.” :

A subsidiary of TCEH has received the air permit for the Oak Grove units, which was approved by the
TCEQ in June 2007. However, the air permit is the subject of litigation as discussed below under “Litigation
Related to Generation Development.”

Construction work-in-process assets balances for the three generation units totaled approximately $3.75
billion as of September 30, 2008, which includes the effects of the fair value adjustments related to purchase
accounting and capitalized interest. If construction-related agreements for the three generation units had been
cancelled as of that date, subsidiaries-of EFH Corp., including TCEH, would have incurred an estimated
termination obligation of up to approximately $350 million. This estimated gross cancellation exposure of
approximately $4.10 billion at September 30, 2008 excludes any potential recovery values for assets acquired to
date and for assets already owned prior to executmg such agreements that are intended to be utilized for these
projects.

Litigation Related to Generation Development

An administrative appeal challenging the order of the TCEQ issuing the air permit for construction and
operation of the Oak Grove generation facility in Robertson County, Texas to a subsidiary of EFH Corp. was
filed in September 2007 in the State District Court of Travis. County, Texas. Plaintiffs asked that the District
Court reverse TCEQ's approval of the Oak Grove air permit and the TCEQ’s adoption and approval of the TCEQ
Executive Director's Response to Comments, and remand the matter back to the TCEQ for further proceedings.
The TCEQ has filed the administrative record with the District Court. Mo further activity has occurred in the
~ appeal. In addition to this administrative appeal, two other petitions were filed in Travis County District Court
by non-parties to the administrative hearing before the TCEQ and the State Office of Administrative Hearings
(SOAH) seeking to challenge the TCEQ’s issuance of the Oak Grove air permit and asking the District Court to .
remand the matter to the SOAH for further proceedings. Finally, the plaintiffs in these two additional lawsuits
filed a third, joint petition claiming insufficiencies in the Oak Grove application, permit, and process and seeking
. party status and remand to the SOAH for further proceedings. EFH Corp. and TCEH believe the Oak Grove air
permit granted by the TCEQ is protective of the environment and that the application for and the processing of
the air permit by the TCEQ was in accordance with law. There can be no assurance that the outcome of these
matters would not result in an adverse impact on the Oak Grove project.
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In December 2006, a lawsuit was filed in the US District Court for the Western District of Texas against
Luminant Generation Company LLC (then known as TXU Generation Company LP), Oak Grove Management
Company LLC (both wholly-owned subsidiaries of TCEH) and EFH Corp. (then known as TXU Corp.).. The
complaint sought declaratory and'injunctive relief, as well as the assessment of civil penalties, with respect to the
permit application for the construction and operation of the Oak Grove generation facility in Robertson County,
Texas. The plaintiffs alleged violations of the Federal Clean Air Act, Texas Health and Safety Code and Texas
Administrative Code and sought to temporarily and permanently enjoin the construction and operation of the
Oak Grove generation plant. The complaint also asserted that the permit application was deficient in failing to
comply with various modeling and analyses requirements relative to the impact of emissions from the Oak
Grove plant. Plaintiffs further requested that the District Court enter an order requiring the defendants to take
other appropriate actions to remedy, mitigate and offset alleged harm to the public health and environment. EFH
Corp. and TCEH believe the Oak Grove air permit granted by the TCEQ in-June 2007 is protective of the
environment and that the application for and the processing of the air permit by Oak Grove Management
Company LLC with the TCEQ has been in accordance with applicable law. EFH Corp. and the other defendants
filed a Motion to Dismiss the litigation, which was granted by the District Court in May 2007. The plaintiffs
appealed the District Court’s dismissal of the case to the US Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals, and in July 2008, the
US Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals upheld the District Court’s dismissal of the case. The plaintiffs have appealed
that decision by the US Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals to the US Supreme Court. EFH Corp. and TCEH believe
that the US Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals properly upheld the District Court’s decision, and will continue to
defend that decision because EFH Corp and TCEH believe that the claims made by the plaintiffs are without
merit. EFH Corp. and TCEH are unable to estimate any possible loss or predict the outcome of this litigation.
There can be no assurance that the outcome of this matter would not result in an adverse impact on the Oak
Grove project.

In May 2008, the Sierra Club announced that it may sue Oak Grove Management Company LLC for
violating federal Clean Air Act provisions regarding hazardous air pollutants. Similarly, in July 2008, the Sierra
Club announced that it may sue Luminant, after the expiration of a 60-day waiting period, for violating federal
Clean Air Act provisions in connection with its Martin Lake generation facility. TCEH believes that, contrary to
Sierra Club’s allegations, it obtained lawful permits for constructing the Oak Grove generation facility and that it
is in compliance with emissions requirements applicable to the Martin Lake generation facility. TCEH cannot
predict whether the Sierra Club will actually file suit or the outcome of any such proceedings.

In September 2007, a subsidiary of TCEH acquired from Alcoa Inc. the air permit related to the Sandow 5
facility that had been previously issued by the TCEQ. Although a federal district court approved a settlement
pursuant to which TCEH acquired the permit, environmental groups opposed to the settlement appealed the
district court’s decision to the US Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals. In June 2008, the US Fifth Circuit Court of
Appeals upheld the district court’s decision. TCEH believes the claims are without merit and will vigorously
defend any further appeal. There can be no assurance that the outcome of this matter would not result in an
adverse impact on the Sandow 5 project or TCEH.

Other Litigation

In July 2008, Alcoa Inc. filed a lawsuit in Milam County, Texas district court against Luminant Generation
Company LLC, Luminant Mining Company LLC, Sandow Power Company LLC, Luminant Energy Company
LLC (each of which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of TCEH) and EFH Corp. The lawsuit makes various claims
concerning operation of the Sandow Unit 4 generation facility and the Three Qaks lignite mine and construction
of the Sandow 5 unit, including claims for breach of contract, breach of fiduciary duty, fraud and conversion,
and requests money damages in an unspecified amount, declaratory judgment, an accounting and rescission. A
federal district court in Austin, Texas has ordered Alcoa Inc. to amend its Milam County complaint to remove
any references to a federal consent decree relating to Sandow Units 4 and 5. Alcoa Inc. has not yet filed its
amended complaint. While EFH Corp. and TCEH are unable to estimate any possible loss or predict the
outcome of this litigation, EFH Corp. and TCEH believe the claims made in this litigation are without merit and,
accordingly, intend to vigorously defend this litigation.
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Regulatory Investigations and Reviews

In March 2007, the PUCT issued a Notice of Violation (NOV) stating that the PUCT Staff was
recommending an enforcement action, including the assessment of administrative penalties, against EFH Corp.
and certain affiliates for alleged market power abuse by its power generation affiliates and Luminant Energy in
ERCOT-administered balancing energy auctions during certain periods of the summer of 2005. In September
2007, the PUCT issued a revised NOV in which the proposed administrative penalty amount was reduced from
$210 million to $171 million. The revised NOV was necessary, according to the PUCT Staff, to correct
calculation errors in the initial NOV. As revised, the NOV is premised upon the PUCT Staff's allegation that
Luminant Energy's bidding behavior was not competitive and increased market participants' costs of balancing
energy by approximately $57 million, including approximately $19 million in incremental revenues to EFH
Corp. A hearing requested by Luminant Energy to contest the alleged occurrence of a violation and the amount
of the penalty in the NOV was scheduled to start in April 2008 but was stayed pending resolution of discovery
disputes and Luminant Energy's motion to dismiss, which was filed in November 2007. That motion was denied
by the state administrative law judges, and in February 2008 the PUCT declined to hear Luminant Energy's
appeal of that denial. In March 2008, Luminant Energy submitted to the administrative law judges its motion for
summary decision on the discrete legal issue of what the maximum lawful penalty calculation could be in this
proceeding. In April 2008, PUCT Staff submitted its cross-motion on the same issue. .In July 2008, the
administrative law judges issued their order on the cross-motions for summary decision. The order held that the
PUCT Staff’s proposed penalty calculation is unlawful and ruled partially in Luminant Energy’s favor holding
that the proper maximum penalty calculation should be based on the number of allegedly improper bid curves
submitted to ERCOT during the relevant time period. The order also holds that a fact issue exists with respect to
the number of bid curves submitted during the relevant period. Based upon this order and the PUCT Staff's
alleged number of bid curves, TCEH believes the maximum penalty would have been less than $16 million. The
PUCT Staff appealed the administrative law judges' ruling on this maximum penalty issue to the PUCT, and at
the August 14, 2008 PUCT open meeting, the PUCT Commissioners determined that it was inappropriate to
decide the issue of how to calculate the potential maximum penalty at this point in the case. Instead, the PUCT
indicated that the maximum penalty issue should be.determined as part of the final resolution of the entire
proceeding, after a full hearing on the merits. EFH Corp. and TCEH believe Luminant Energy's conduct during
the period in question was consistent with the PUCT's rules and policies, and no market power abuse was
committed. However, in the interest of potentially resolving this matter in an expeditious manner, the NOV
proceeding is currently abated while the PUCT Staff and Luminant Energy engage in settlement discussions. If
the proceeding is not resolved through settlement, EFH Corp. and TCEH will continue to vigorously contest the
NOV. EFH Corp. and TCEH are unable to predict the outcome of this matter. :

In June 2008, the EPA issued a request for information to Luminant Energy under EPA’s authority under
Section 114 of the Clean Air Act. The stated purpose of the request is to obtain information necessary to
determine compliance with the Clean Air Act, including New Source Review Standards and air permits issued
by the TCEQ for the Big Brown, Monticello and Martin Lake generation facilities. TCEH is cooperating with
the EPA and is responding in good faith to the EPA’s request. TCEH is unable to predict the outcome of this
matter. .

Other Proceedings
In addition to the above, TCEH and its subsidiaries are involved in various other legal and administrative
. proceedings in the normal course of business, the ultimate resolution of which, in the opinion of management,
should not have a material effect on its financial position, results of operations or cash flows. )

Guarantees

As discussed below, TCEH and its subsidiaries have entered into contracts that contain guarantees to
outside parties that could require performance or payment under certain conditions.
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Residual value guarantees in operating leases — TCEH is the lessee under various operating leases that
guarantee the residual values of the leased assets. At September 30, 2008, the aggregate maximum amount of
residual values guaranteed totaled approximately $53 million with an estimated residual recovery of
approximately $59 million. These leased assets consist primarily of mining equipment and rail cars. The
average life of the lease portfolio is approximately four years.

See Note 7 for discussion of guarantees and security for certain TCEH indebtedness.
Letters of Credit

At September 30, 2008, TCEH had outstanding letters of credit under its credit facilities totaling $1.233
billion as follows:

e  $829 million to support risk management and trading margin requirements in the normal course
of business, including over-the-counter hedging transactions;

e $208 million to support (and available to fund payment of) floating rate pollution control revenue
bond debt of $204 million principal amount. The letters of credit are available to fund the
payment of such debt obligations and expire in 2014;

e $121 million to support obligations under the lease agreement for an EFH Corp. office building,
and

e  $75 million for miscellaneous credit support requirements.

Nuclear Insurance
As a result of the US Terrorism Risk Insurance Program Reauthorization Act of 2007 that was effective
January 1, 2008, under the American Nuclear Insurers liability policy, the liability arising out of terrorist acts

that was previously subject to one industry aggregate limit of $300 million is no longer subject to an aggregate
limit.
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9. MEMBERSHIP INTERESTS

Dividend Restrictions

The TCEH Senior Secured Facilities and Indenture include covenants that, among other things and subject
to certain exceptions, restrict TCEH's ability to pay dividends or make other distributions in respect of its
membership interests. Thus, all of TCEH's net income is restricted from being used to make distributions or
loans to its parent companies, EFC Holdings or EFH Corp., unless such distributions or loans are expressly
permitted under the TCEH Senior Secured Facilities and Indenture. Those agreements generally permit TCEH
to make unlimited distributions or loans to its parent companies for corporate overhead costs, SG&A expenses,
taxes and principal and interest payments and contain certain investment and dividend baskets that would allow
TCEH to make additional distributions and/or loans to its parent companies up to the amount of such baskets.
The TCEH Senior Secured Facilities generally restrict TCEH from making any distribution to any of its parent
companies for the ultimate purpose of making a distribution to Texas Holdings unless at the time, and after
giving effect to such distribution, TCEH's consolidated total debt (as defined in the TCEH Senior Secured
Facilities) to TCEH's Adjusted EBITDA would be equal to or less than 6.5 to 1.0.

Membership Interests

The following table presents the changes in membership interests for the nine months ended September 30,
2008: '

Accumulated
Other Total -
Capital Comprehensive Membership
Accounts Income (Loss) Interests
Balance at December 31, 2007............cccovvvvennene. $6,393 $ (177 $6,216
NEELOSS .ttt ettt e et sneven (811) - 811)
Net effects of cash flow hedges (net of tax).......cccovvvreenene - 99) 99)
Effects of employee stock-related activities (€)) - 1)
Purchase accounting adjustments .............coeceevevevrcninieneens 26 - 26
OBNET ..ottt ettt saaenes 1 - 1
Balance at September 30, 2008..................cccooen J— © 85,608 276 $5,332

25



10. COMMODITY AND OTHER DERIVATIVE CONTRACTUAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The following table provides detail of commodity and other derivative contractual assets and liabilities as
presented in the balance sheet: '

Successor
September 30, 2008
Commodity Total — Balance
contracts Other derivatives Reclassification (a) Sheet amount
Assets:
CUrTent aSSEES.....vevvvveeeieeernenens $ 1,531 3 17 s (10) $ 1,538
Noncurrent assets...........cccevenn. 325 i5 — 340
Total ..o $ 1.856 $ 32 $§ (0 $ 1.878
Liabilities: . ]
Current liabilities ...........ccccceurnne $ 1,784 5 182 o $ (10 $ 1,956
Noncurrent liabilities ................. 2,213 243 - - 2.456
Total cooveeieiiireeeeercceseene $ 3997 ) $ 425 $ (10 $4412
Net assets (liabilities)............. $(2,141) $ (393) g - $2,534)

(a) Represents the effects of reclassification of the assets and liabilities to conform to the balance sheet presentation of current and long-
term assets and liabilities.

Successor
December 31, 2007
Commodity Total — Balance
contracts Other derivatives Sheet amount
Assets:
© Current assets .......cooc.oevvereeenenns $ 1,118 $ 8 $ 1,126
Noncurrent assets ........ccoeeeenenes ' 239 : S 244
TOtAl eovereveveriieeererecere e $ 1357 s 13 $ 1370
Liabilities: ]
Current liabilities.. e - % 1,042 $ 66 $ 1,108
Noncurrent liabilities . 2,232 220 2,452
Total .ot $ 3274 $ 286 $ 3.560
Net assets (liabilities) ............ $01.917) 3 @n3) $ (2,190

Margin deposits net assets of $618 million and $445 million under master netting arrangements at
September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively, were not netted with derivative assets and liabilities
since TCEH has elected to present the amounts of derivative assets and liabilities on a gross basis in the balance
sheet as provided in FIN 39-1. See discussion in Note 1 under “Changes in Accounting Standards.”

This presentation can result in significant volatility in commodity contract assets and liabilities because
TCEH enters into positions with the same counterparties that result in both assets and liabilities, and the
underlying commodity prices can change significantly from period to period.

'

Commodity Contract Assets and Liabiiities

Commodity contract assets and liabilities primarily represent fair values of natural gas and electricity
derivative instruments that have not been designated as cash flow hedges or “normal” purchases or sales under
SFAS 133. These instruments are marked-to-market in net income and reported in the income statement in net
losses from commodity hedging and trading activities.
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Results for the three months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007 include net "day one" losses of $10
million and $58 million, respectively. Results for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007 include
net "day one" losses of $68 million and $192 million, respectively, primarily associated with commodity
contracts entered into at below market prices. Substantially all of these amounts represent losses associated with
related series of transactions involving natural gas financial instruments intended to hedge exposure to future
changes in electricity prices. The losses are reported in the income statement in net losses from commodity
hedging and trading activities, consistent with other mark-to-market hedging and trading gains and losses.

Other Derivative Assets and Liabilities

Other derivative assets and liabilities primarily represent fair values of interest rate swaps and also include
fair values of commodity contracts that have been designated as cash flow hedges.

A significant portion of natural gas derivatives entered into to hedge future changes in electricity prices had
previously been designated and accounted for as cash flow hedges. In March 2007, these instruments were
dedesignated as cash flow hedges as allowed under SFAS 133, thus becoming subject to mark-to-market
accounting in net income as the fair values change. See Note 7 for details of interest rate swaps previously
designated as cash flow hedges.

A summary of transactions comprising other derivative assets and liabilities follows:

Successor
September 30, December 31,
2008 2007
Current and noncurrent assets:
Interest rate SWaps (2) ......ocoecevrnerereninireiereserensnenns $ 18 $ 5
Commodity-related cash flow hedges ...........c....... 14 8
TOAl..co ettt ees s 32 3 13
.
Current and noncurrent liabilities:
Interest rate Swaps () ......occeveirirenne $ 414 $ 285
Commodity-related cash flow hedges . 11 1
TOE oottt e $ 425 $ 286

(a) September 30, 2008 amount includes $404 million in net liabilities related to interest rate
hedges on $16.55 billion principal amount of debt and $8 million in net assets related to
interest rate basis swaps on $10.045 billion principal amount of debt, both entered into after
the Merger. As of August 29, 2008 changes in fair value of these swaps are marked-to-
market in net income. .

Other Cash Flow Hedge Information — TCEH experienced cash flow hedge ineffectiveness of zero and
$4 million in net losses for the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2008, respectively. For the
corresponding periods of 2007, the amounts were $1 million in net losses and $111 million in net gains,
respectively. These amounts are pretax ‘and are reported in the income statement in net gain (loss) from
commodity hedging and trading activities.

The net effect of recording unrealized mark-to-market gains and losses arising from hedge ineffectiveness
(versus recording gains and losses upon settlement) includes the above amounts as well as the effect of reversing
unrealized ineffectiveness gains and losses recorded in previous periods to offset realized gains and losses in the
current period. Such net unrealized effect totaled zero and $4 million in net losses for the three and nine month
periods ended September 30, 2008, respectively, and $2 million in net losses and $92 million in net gains for the
three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2007, respectively.
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Accumulated other comprehensive income related to cash flow hedges at September 30, 2008 totaled $276
million in net losses (after-tax), substantially all of which relates to interest rate swaps. TCEH expects that $119
million of net losses related to cash flow hedges included in accumulated other comprehensive income as of
September 30, 2008 will be reclassified into net income during the next twelve months as the related hedged
transactions affect net income.

11. PENSION AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

TCEH is a participating employer in the EFH Retirement Plan, a defined benefit pension plan sponsored by
EFH Corp. TCEH also participates with EFH Corp. and certain other affiliated subsidiaries of EFH Corp. to
offer certain health care and life insurance benefits to eligible employees and their eligible dependents upon the
retirement of such employees. The net allocated pension and OPEB costs applicable to TCEH totaled $4 million
and $11 million for the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2008, respectively, and $3 million
and $13 million for the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2007, respectively.

The discount rate reflected in net pension and OPEB costs in 2008 is 6.55%. The expected rate of return
on plan assets reflected in the 2008 cost amounts is 8.25% for the pension plan and 7.90% for the OPEB plan.

For the full year 2008, TCEH expects to make no required contributions to EFH Corp.’s pension plan and
to provide an estimated $687 thousand in funding for EFH Corp.’s OPEB plan. TCEH provided contributions of
$163 thousand and $455 thousand to the OPEB plans in the three and nine month periods ended September 30,
2008, respectively.
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12. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS 157, which defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS 157 applies in situations
where other accounting pronouncements either permit or require fair value measurements, including purchase
accounting. SFAS 157 does not require any new fair value measurements. However, SFAS 157 supersedes a
previous accounting rule that prohibited the recognition of day one gains or losses on derivative instruménts
unless the fair value of those instruments were derived from an observable market price. Additionally, SFAS
157 requires an entity to take its own credit risk (nonperformance risk) into consideration when measuring the
fair value of liabilities. TCEH adopted SFAS 157 effective with the closing of the Merger. The adoption of
SFAS 157 reflects the application of FSP 157-2, "Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157,” which was issued
by the FASB in February 2008 and delays until financial statements issued after December 15, 2008 the effective
date of SFAS 157 for all nonfinancial assets and liabilities, except for those recognized or disclosed at fair value
in the financial statements on a recurring basis (at least annually).

. SFAS 157 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. With the adoption of SFAS 157,
TCEH uses a “mid-market” valuation convention (the mid-point price between bid and ask prices) as a practical
expedient to measure fair value for the majority of its assets and liabilities subject to fair value measurement
under SFAS 133 and other accounting rules that require such measurement on a recurring basis. TCEH
pnmarlly uses the market approach for recurring fair value measurements and uses valuation techmques to
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

TCEH categorizes its assets and liabilities recorded at fair value based upon the followmg fair value
hierarchy established by SFAS 157: :

e Level 1 valuations use quoted prices in active ‘markets for identical assets or liabilities that are
accessible at the measurement date. An active market is a market in which transactions for the asset
or liability occur with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing
basis. TCEH's Level 1 assets and liabilities normally include exchange traded commodity contracts.
For example, TCEH has a significant number of derivatives that are NYMEX futures and swaps
transacted through clearing brokers for which the pricing is actively quoted.

o Level 2 valuations use inputs other than actively quoted market prices included within Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. Level 2 inputs include: (a) quoted
prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, (b) quoted prices for identical or similar assets
or liabilities in markets that are not active, (c) inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for
the asset or liability such as interest rates and yield curves observable at commonly quoted intervals
and (d) inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by
correlation or other means. TCEH's Level 2 assets and liabilities utilize over the counter broker
quotes, quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities that are corroborated by correlations or other
“mathematical means and other valuation inputs. For example, TCEH's Level 2 assets and liabilities
include forward commodlty positions at locations for which over-the-counter broker quotes are
.available.

e Level 3 valuations use unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. Unobservable inputs are used to
the extent observable inputs are not available, thereby allowing for situations in which there is little,
if any, market activity for the asset or liability at the measurement date. TCEH uses the most
meaningful information available from the market .combined with its own internally developed
valuation methodologies to develop its best estimate of fair value. For example, certain derivative
assets or liabilities are derived from pricing models that utilize multiple inputs to the valuatioas,
including inputs that are not observable or easily corroborated through other means.

. TCEH utilizes several different valuation techniques to measure the fair value of assets and liabilities,
relying primarily on the market approach of using prices and other market informatior. for identical and/or
comparable assets and liabilities for those items that are measured on a recurring basis. These methods include,
among others, the use of broker quotes and statistical relationships between different price curves.
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In utilizing broker quotes, TCEH attempts to obtain multiple quotes from brokers that are active in the
commodity markets in which it participates (and requires at least two quotes to determine a pricing input as
observable); however, not all pricing inputs are quoted by brokers. The number of broker quotes that TCEH
receives for certain pricing inputs varies depending on the depth of the trading market, each individual broker’s
publication policy, recent trading volume shifts and various other factors. Broker quotes received are generally
binding where markets are actively traded. In addition, for valuation of interest rate hedges, TCEH uses a
combination of dealer provided market valuations (generally non-binding) and Bloomberg valuations based on
month-end interest rate curves and standard rate swap valuation models.

Certain derivatives and financial instruments are valued utilizing option pricing models that take into
consideration multiple inputs including commodity prices, volatility factors, discount rates and other inputs.
Additionally, when there is not a sufficient amount of observable market data, valuation models are developed
that incorporate proprietary views of market factors. Those valuation models are generally used in developing
long-term forward price curves for certain commodities. TCEH believes that development of such curves is
consistent with industry practice; however, the fair value measurements resulting from such curves are classified
as Level 3.

With respect to amounts presented in the following fair value hierarchy table, the fair value measurement
of an asset or liability (e.g. a contract) is required under SFAS 157 to fall in its entirety in one level, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Certain assets and liabilities would be
classified in Level 2 instead of Level 3 of the hierarchy except for the effects of credit reserves and non-
performance risk adjustments, respectively. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value
measurement in its entirety requires judgment, considering factors specific to the asset or liability being
measured.

At September 30, 2008, assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis consisted of the
following: -

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Reclassify (a) Total
Assets:
Commodity-related contracts................... $ 587 $ 1,005 $ 177 $ 91 $ 1,860
Interest rate SWaps.........cccccoeevvcrcveererinens - 18 - - i8
Nuclear decommissioning trust (b).......... 135 299 - - 434
Salary deferral plan investments (b)......... 2 20 - = 22
Total aSSetS .....coocovrirrcrirccrrceeeeenens 5 724 $ 1342 3 177 b 91 $ 2334
Liabilities: .
Commodity-related contracts................... $ 865 $ 2,673 $ 369 $ 91 $ 3,998
Interest rate swaps h - ~ 414 - - 414
Total liabilities......ccooovciiiinincccnnn, b 865 3,087 b 369 3 91 $ 4412

(a)  Represents the effects of reclassification of the assets and liabilities to conform to the balance sheet presentation of current
and long-term assets and liabilities.

(b) TCEH's nuclear decommissioning trust and salary deferral plan investments are included m the Investments line on the
balance sheet.

Commodity-related contracts consist primarily of natural gas and electricity derivative instruments entered
into for hedging purposes and include physical contracts that have not been designated “normal” purchases or
sales under SFAS 133.

Interest rate swaps consist largely of variable-to-fixed rate swap instruments that are economic hedges of
interest on long-term debt. .

Nuclear decommissioning trust assets represent securities held for the purpose of funding the future

retirement and decommissioning of TCEH's nuclear generation units. These investments include equity, debt
and other fixed-income securities consistent with investment rules established by the NRC and the PUCT.
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Salary deferral plan assets represent securities held for the purpose of funding the liabilities of EFH Corp.’s
Salary Deferral Program. These investments include life insurance contracts, equity, debt and other fixed-
income securities.

The following table presents the changes in fair value of TCEH's Level 3 assets and liabilities (all related to
commodity contracts) for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008:

Three Months Nine Months

Ended Ended
September 30, September 30,
2008 2008
Balance at beginning of period (net liability) ........cocooviiieniiiriecennerrrce e $ (539 $  Q73)
Total realized and unrealized gains (losses) (a): .
Included in net INCOME (10SS) ... .vcuiiiieeiiiniieeiiie ettt es et s ene s 395 82)
Included in other comprehensive INCOME ..........ccc.veuconriiiierecnnmeeernrceeeer e 8) 7
Purchases, sales, issuances and settlements (N€t) (B) ..cccoovvveermrerernnrrvirrencnslesnennaes (€2)) 49
Net transfers in and/or out of Level 3 (€).cccvuirrnncccenrcreeetereece e searennens (9) 7
Balance at September 30, 2008 (net Hability)........c..oceeeerniririiiine e $  (192) $ (192
Net change in unrealized gains (losses) included in net income relating to instruments
held at September 30, 2008 (8)..........ccoevirirereererirreereerer et neesee b iiens $ 435 ) 10

(a)  Substantially all changes in values of commodity-related contracts are reported in the income statement in net gain (loss)
from commodity hedging and trading activities.

(b)  Purchases, sales and issuances represent amounts for new transactions entered into during the period and any unrealized
gains (losses) that occurred during the period for those transactions. Settlements represent amounts included in the
beginning balance for the period. Amount also includes fair values of transactions with Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc.
that were terminated and therefore were reclassified from commodity and other derivative contractual assets to accounts
receivable, which was reserved for as a charge reported in other deductions (see Notes 5 and 6). .

(¢) Includes transfers due to changes in the observability of significant inputs. Amounts transferred in and/or out represent
September 30, 2008 values.
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13. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The following represent the significant related-party transactions of TCEH:

e TCEH incurs electﬁcity delivery fees charged by Oncor. These fees totaled $292 million and $778
million for the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2008, respectively, and $302 million
and $799 million for the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2007, respectively.

¢ Oncor’s bankruptcy-remote financing subsidiary has issued securitization (transition) bonds to recover
generation-related regulatory assets through a transition surcharge to its customers. Oncor’s
incremental income taxes related to the transition surcharges it collects are being reimbursed by TCEH.
Therefore, TCEH's financial statements reflect a noninterest bearing note payable to Oncor of $298
million ($35 million reported as trade accounts and other payables to affiliates) at September 30, 2008
and $323 million ($34 million reported as trade accounts and other payables to affiliates) at December
31,2007. . :

e TCEH reimburses Oncor for interest expense on Oncor’s bankruptcy-remote financing subsidiary’s
transition bonds. This interest expense totaled $11 million and $35 million for the three and nine month
periods ended September 30, 2008, respectively, and $12 million and $37 million for the three and nine
month periods ended September 30, 2007, respectively.

¢ In December 2005, TCEH received a $1.5 billion note from EFH Corp. in partial settlement of
outstanding advances. EFH Corp. settled the note in connection with the Merger. The note carried
interest at a rate based on the weighted average cost of TCEH’s short-term borrowings. Interest income
related to this note totaled $25 million and $71 million for the three and nine month periods ended
September 30, 2007. In addition, interest income on outstanding advances to EFH Corp., which were
also settled in connection with the Merger, totaled $74 million and $197 million for the three and nine
month periods ended September 30, 2007.

e  Subsequent to the Merger, TCEH receives notes payable on demand from EFH Corp. in exchange for
cash to be used for working capital and general corporate purposes of EFH Corp. The notes totaled
$407 million at September 30, 2008 and $25 million at December, 31, 2007, and the average daily
balance of the notes for the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2008 were $480 million
and $365 million, respectively. The notes carry interest at a rate based on the one-month LIBOR rate
plus 5.00%, and interest income totaled $9 million and $22 million for the three and nine month periods
ended September 30, 2008. TCEH also receives notes from EFC Holdings in exchange for cash to be
used for woiking capital and general corporate purposes of EFC Holdings. The notes totaled $6 million ..
at September 30, 2008, and the average daily balance of the notes from the issuance date until
September 30, 2008 was $3 million. The notes carry interest at a rate based on the one-month LIBOR
rate plus 5.00%, and interest income totaled $91 thousand and $155 thousand for the three and nine
month periods ended September 30, 2008.

e An EFH Corp. subsidiary charges TCEH for financial, accounting, environmental and other
administrative services at cost. These costs, which are primarily reported in SG&A expenses, totaled
$15 million and $46 million for the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2008,
respectively, and $14 million and $43 million for the three and nine month periods ended September 30,
2007, respectively. - '
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Under Texas regulatory provisions, the trust fund for decommissioning TCEH's Comanche Peak
nuclear generation facility, reported in investments.on TCEH's balance sheet, is funded by a delivery
fee surcharge billed to REPs by Oncor and remitted to TCEH, with the intent that the trust fund assets
will be sufficient to fund the decommissioning liability, reported in noncurrent liabilities on TCEH's
balance sheet. Income and expenses associated with the trust fund and the decommissioning liability
incurred by TCEH are offset by a net change in the intercompany receivable/payable with Oncor, which
in turn results in a change in the net regulatory asset/liability. At September 30, 2008, the excess of the
decommissioning liability over the trust fund balance resulted in a regulatory asset of $67 million,
which is reported on Oncor's balance sheet. At December 31, 2007, the excess of the trust fund balance
over the estimated decommissioning liability resulted in a regulatory liability of $13 million, which is
reported on Oncor's balance sheet.

TCEH has a 53.1% limited partnership interest, with a carrying value of $21 million and $28 million at
September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively, in an EFH Corp. sub81d1ary holding
Capgemini-related assets. Equity losses related to this interest totaled $2 million and $7 million for the
three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2008, respectively, and $2 million and $5 million for
the three and nine month periods ended September 30, 2007, respectively. These losses primarily
represent amortization of software assets held by the subsidiary. The equity losses are reported as other
deductions.

EFH Corp. files a consolidated federal income tax return; however, TCEH’s federal income tax and
Texas margin tax expense and related balance sheet amounts, including income taxes payable to or
receivable from EFH Corp., are recorded as if the entity is a stand-alone corporation. As a result,
TCEH had an income tax receivable from EFH Corp. of $259 million and $190 million at September
30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively.

As of September 30, 2008, TCEH had cash collateral of $15 million posted with Oncor related to
interconnection agreements for three generation units being developed by Luminant.

Certain transmission and distribution utilities in Texas have tariffs in place to assure adequate credit
worthiness of any REP to support the REP’s obligation to collect securitization bond-related (transition)
charges on behalf of the utility. Under these tariffs, as a result of TCEH’s credit rating being below
investment grade, TCEH is required to post collateral support in an amount equal to estimated transition

_charges over specified time periods. TCEH has posted a letter of credit in the amount of $14 million for
the benefit of Oncor.

Oncor and Texas Holdings agreed to the terms of a stipulation with major interested parties to resolve
all outstanding issues in the PUCT review related to the Merger. As part of this stipulation, TCEH will
post a letter of credit in an amount equal to $170 million to secure TXU Energy’s payment obligations
to Oncor if two or more of Oncor’s credit ratings are below investment grade. As of September 30,
2008, Oncor maintains an investment grade rating with edch of the credit rating agencies.

At the closing of the Merger, TCEH entered into the TCEH Senior Secured Facilities with a syndicate
of financial institutions and other lenders. This syndicate included affiliates of GS Capital Partners,
Affiliates of GS Capital Partners have from time to time engaged in commercial banking and financial
advisory transactions with TCEH in the normal course of business.

Affiliates of Goldman Sachs & Co. are party to certain commodity and interest rate hedging
transactions with TCEH in the normal course of business.

From time to time affiliates of the Sponsor Group may acquire debt or debt securities issued by TCEH
in open market transactions or through loan syndications.

See Note 4 for contributions of entities and net assets to TCEH, Note 6 for information regarding the
accounts receivable securitization program and related subordinated notes receivable from TXU
Receivables Company, Note 7 for guarantees and Note 11 for information regardmg pension and other
postretirement employee benefits.
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14. SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Stock-Based Compensation

Under the terms of the EFH Corp. 2007 Stock Incentive Plan, options to purchase 2 million and 13 million
shares of EFH Corp. common stock were issued to certain TCEH management employees in the three and nine
months ended September 30, 2008. Vested awards must be exercised within 10 years of the grant date. The
terms of the options were fixed at grant date. Options to purchase 1 million and 2 million shares were forfeited
during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008, respectively.

Expenses recognized for options granted totaled $4 million and $7 million for the three and nine month

periods ended September 30, 2008, respectively.

Interest Expense and Related Charges

Successor Predecessor Successor Predecessor
Three Months Three Months Nine Months Nine Months
Ended Ended Ended Ended
September 30, September 30, September 30, September 30,
2008 2007 2008 2007
INEEPESE. oo ceeee e s n b sbeee s $ 646 $ 128 $ 1,910 $ 337
Amortization of fair value debt discounts
resulting from purchase accounting...... 4 - . 11 -
Amortization of debt issuance cost,
premiums and discounts ..........cc.cccovene. 41 3 91 10
Unrealized mark-to-market net (gain) loss
On interest rate SWaps.....c.c.cccvevvenennnss 36) — (36) -
Interest capitalized in accordance with : '
SFAS 34 ..ol (19 . (14) L1220 an
Total interest expense and rglated charges. $ 581 N § 117~ $1,756 3 310
Restricted Cash
Successor
At September 30, 2008 At December 31, 2007
Current Noncurrent Current Noncurrent
- Assets Assets Assets Assets
Amounts related to Letter of Credit Facility (See Note 7) .......cccceuene. $ - $ 1,250 $ - $ 1,250
Amounts related to margin deposits held...........c.ocoovvivieivininn. 20 - - -
Pollution control revenue bond funds held by trustee (See Note 7)....... - - = 29
Total restricted cash.........cccoeivenevrrinerenei et $ 20 $ 1,250 b - 5 1,279

Inventories by Major Category

Materials and SUPPIES ....cccvvvrririreee et sa e
FUET SEOCK ...ciiririimiceccecrieectrir et reae bbbt ra e s s s s st
Natural gas in SLOFAZE.....c.cooeriiiiiieiici s e

TOta] INVENLOTIES.......vovriieetiisiceetene ettt a s s s s benan
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September 30, December 31,
2008 2007
§ 132 $ 121
144 138
65 93
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Investments Held in Money Market Fund

As of September 30, 2008, TCEH held a $242 million interest in The Reserve's US Government Fund,
which began liquidation proceedings in September 2008 due to the credit crisis and withdrawal demands. In
September 2008, TCEH attempted to redeem its interest in the US Government Fund, but due to the liquidation
process, the funds were not immediately made available. TCEH expects to receive its funds by the end of the -
fourth quarter.

Investments
Successor
September 30, December 31,

- 2008 2007

Nuclear decOmMMISSIONING TUSE .....v.t.vvcceeririririicrerercrcaeeee et s eessesessssreesesesesraessssreses $ 434 $ 484
Assets related to employee benefit plans, including employee savings programs ........ 38 54
LN ... et e bbbt ea e 42 42
Investment in affiliate holding Capgemini-related assets 21 28
Wind investment project... 3 3
Miscellaneous other ...... M - 1
TOtAl INVESLITIENIES ..ot ere vttt st ettt es st atastets s st etontses e eesemaean $ 538 $ 612

Property, Plant and Equipment

As of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, property, plant and equipment of $21.1 billion and
$20.5 billion, respectively, is stated net of accumulated depreciation and amortization of $1.1 billion and $288

million, respectively. Property, plant and equipment was fair-valued in connection with purchase accounting for
the Merger. ’

Asset Retirement Obligations

Asset retirement obligations primarily relate to nuclear generation plant decommissioning, land
reclamation related to lignite mining, removal of lignite/coal-fueled plant ash treatment facilities and generation
plant asbestos removal and disposal costs. There is no earnings impact with respect to the recognition of the--
asset retirement costs for nuclear decommissioning, as all costs are recoverable through the regulatory process as
part of Oncor’s rates. ’

The following table summarizes the changes to the asset retirement liability, reported in other noncurrent
liabilities and deferred credits in the balance sheet, during the nine months ended September 30, 2008:

Successor
Asset retirement liability at Jaﬁuary 1,2008 ..o $ 773
Additions:
Accretion and incremental reclamation COSS ...................ooeveeeorererreee. : 38
Reductions:
Mining reclamation payments..........cocoovvveccnmeereeneinuniecnisisieesseeeees (15)
Asset retirement liability at September 30, 2008 ..........ccccovvrvriinecnnnns $ 796
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Other Noncurrent Liabilities and Deferred Credits

The balance of other noncurrent liabilities and deferred credits consists of the following:

Successor
September 30, December 31,
2008 - 2007
Unfavorable purchase and sales contracts $ 735 § 751
Uncertain tax positions (including accrued interest) 803 - 798
Asset retirement OblIZAtIONS ........coiviiiiiiiiiieec et 796 ) 773
63 50
35 ' 52

245 . 3 2424

Unfavorable Purchase and Sales Contracts — Unfavorable purchase and sales contracts primarily represent
the extent to which contracts on a net basis were unfavorable to market prices as of the date of the Merger.
These are contracts for which: 1) TCEH has made the “normal” purchase or sale election allowed or 2) the
contract did not meet the definition of a derivative under SFAS- 133. Under purchase accounting, TCEH
recorded the value as of October 10, 2007 as a deferred credit. Amortization of the deferred credit related to
unfavorable contracts is primarily on a straight-line basis, which approximates the economic realization, and is
recorded as revenues or a reduction of purchased power costs as appropriate. The amortization amount totaled
$6 million and $23 million in the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008, respectively. Favorable
purchase and sales contracts are recorded as intangible assets (see Note 3).

The estimated amortization of unfavorable purchase and sales contracts for each of the five succeeding
fiscal years from December 31, 2007 is as follows:

Successor
Amount
$30
28
27
27
27
i .
Supplemental Cash Flow Information
Successor Predecessor
Nine Months Nine Months
Ended Ended
September 30, September 30,
2008 2007
Cash payments related to: :
Interest paid $1,731 $ 337
Capitalized interest (220) (37)
Interest paid (net of capitalized interest).........cccoevennnnene. 1,511 300
INCOME LAXES ..ottt 34 916
Noncash investing and financing activities:
Noncash construction expenditures (a) .......cccccocovrvrerverecennes 155 128
Promissory note issued in conjunction with acquisition
of mining-related assets..........occcrerrervecennineiineieninns - 65
Capital 16aSES ........ovvreeiniiice s 13 59
Purchase accounting adjustments 26 -

(a)  Represents end-of-period accruals.
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS’ REVIEW REPORT
To the Board of Managers of Texas Competitive Electric Holdings Company LLC:

We have reviewed the accompanying condensed consolidated balance sheet of Texas Competitive Electric
Holdings Company LLC and subsidiaries (a wholly-owned subsidiary of Energy Future Competitive Holdings
Company, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Energy Future Holdings Corp.) (“TCEH”) as of September 30,
2008, and the related condensed statements of consolidated income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss) for
the three-month and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2008 and 2007, and of cash flows for the nine-
month periods ended September 30, 2008 and 2007. These interim financial statements are the responsibility of
TCEH's management.

We conducted our reviews in accordance with standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the auditing standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) for
reviews of interim financial information. A review of interim financial information consists principally of
applying analytical procedures and of making inquiries of persons responsible for financial and accounting
matters. It is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards as established by the Auditing Standards Board (United States) and with the auditing standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the objective of which is the expression of an
opinion regarding the financial statements taken as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Based on our reviews, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to such condensed
consolidated interim financial statements for them to be in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. o

As discussed in Note 1 to the condensed consolidated financial statements, TCEH reclassified the results of its
commodity hedging and trading activities. Also, as discussed in Note 1 to the condensed consolidated financial
statements, TCEH accounted for the contribution of certain subsidiaries, assets, and liabilities from Energy
Future Holdings Corp. in a manner similar to a pooling of interests. o

We have previously audited, in accordance with-generally accepted auditing standards as established by the
Auditing Standards Board (United States) and in accordance with the auditing standards of the Public
Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheet of Texas Competitive Electric
Holdings Company LLC and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007, and the related statements of consolidated
income (loss), comprehensive income (loss), cash flows, and membership interests for the period from October
11, 2007 through December 31, 2007 (successor) and the period from January 1, 2007 through October 10, 2007
(predecessor) (not presented herein); and in.our report dated April 14,2008 (June 2, 2008 as to the effects of the
adoption of FASB Staff Position No. FIN 39-1) (which report includes an explanatory paragraph related to
TCEH's change in basis of accounting beginning October 11, 2007, and the contribution of certain subsidiaries,
assets, and liabilities from Energy Future Holdings Corp. in a manner similar to a pooling of interests), we
expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements. In our opinion, the information set
forth in the condensed consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2007 is fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the consolidated balance sheet from which it has been derived.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Dallas, Texas
November 5, 2008
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ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

BUSINESS

TCEH is a Dallas-based holding company- for subsidiaries engaged in competitive electricity market
activities largely in Texas, including Luminant, which is engaged in electricity generation, development and
construction of new generation facilities, wholesale energy sales and purchases and commodity risk
management and trading activities and TXU Energy, which is engaged in retail electricity sales. Commodity
risk management and allocation of financial resources are performed-at the TCEH level; therefore, there are no
reportable business segments. TCEH is a wholly-owned subsidiary of EFC Holdings, which is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of EFH Corp. While TCEH is a wholly-owned subsidiary of EFH Corp. and EFC Holdings, TCEH
is a separate legal entity from EFH Corp. and EFC Holdings and all of their other affiliates with its own assets
and liabilities.

In connection with the Merger, which closed on October 10, 2007, certain wholly-owned subsidiaries of
EFH Corp. established for the purpose of developing and constructing new generation facilities became
subsidiaries of TCEH, and certain assets and liabilities of other such subsidiaries were transferred to TCEH and
its subsidiaries. Those subsidiaries holding impaired construction work-in-process assets related to eight
canceled coal-fueled generation units did not become subsidiaries of TCEH. (In addition, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of EFC Holdings representing a lease trust holding certain combustion turbines became a subsidiary
of TCEH.) Because these transactions were between entities under the common control of EFH Corp., TCEH
accounted for the transactions in a manner similar to a pooling of interests. As a result, historical operations, -
financial position and cash flows of TCEH and the entities and other net assets contributed are presented on a
combined basis for all periods presented.

Significant Activities and Events

Uncertain Financial Markets — While TCEH believes its cash on hand and cash from operations
combined with availability under its existing credit facilities provides sufficient liquidity to fund current
obligations, projected working capital requirements and capital spending, there can be no assurance, considering
the current uncertainty in financial markets, that counterparties to its credit facilities will perform as expected
through the maturity dates and counterparties in the natural gas hedging program will meet their obligations, or
that material unexpected changes in financial markets or the economy will not result in liquidity constraints or
require increased funding, including related to pension and OPEB obligations. In light of current market
conditions, TCEH reviewed the quality of its investments in money market funds and determined there are no
- indications that these investments should be valued at less than carrying value at September 30, 2008.

Also see Note 3 to Financial Statements regarding potential impairment of goodwill and ‘Note 5 to
Financial Statements regarding a charge related to the filing by Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc. for bankruptcy:
under Chapter 11 of the US Bankruptcy Code, Note 14 to Financial Statements for discussion of an investment
in a money market fund that is being liquidated, and “Liquidity and Capital Resources” (below) for discussion of
actions taken in response to the uncertain financial markets.
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Long-Term Hedging Program — TCEH has a long-term hedging program designed to reduce exposure to
changes in future electricity prices due to changes in the price of natural gas. Under the program, subsidiaries of
TCEH have entered into market transactions involving natural gas-related financial instruments. As of October
24, 2008, these subsidiaries have effectively sold forward approximately 2.1 billion MMBtu of natural gas
(equivalent to the natural gas exposure of approximately 280,000 GWh at an assumed 7.5 MMBtw/MWh market
heat rate) over the period from 2008 to 2014 at average annual sales prices ranging from $7.20 per MMBtu to
$8.35 per MMBtu. TCEH currently expects to hedge approximately 80% of the equivalent natural gas price
exposure of its expected baseload generation output on a rolling five-year basis. For the period from 2008 to
2014, and taking into consideration the estimated portfolio impacts of TXU Energy's retail electricity business,
the hedging transactions described in the previous sentence result in TCEH having effectively hedged
approximately 77% of its expected baseload generation natural gas price exposure for such period (on an average
basis for such period). The hedges were entered into with the continuing expectation that wholesale electricity
prices in ERCOT will be highly correlated with natural gas prices. If market heat rates decline in the future,
which would indicate a lessening of such correlation, TCEH expects that the cash flows targeted under the long-
term hedging program may not be achieved.

Beginning in the second quarter of 2008, TCEH entered into related put and call transactions (referred to as
collars), primarily for outer years of the program, that effectively hedge natural gas prices within a range. These
transactions represented approximately 5% of the positions in the program at October 24, 2008, with the
approximate weighted average strike prices under the collars being a floor of $7.80 per MMBtu and a ceiling of
$11.75 per MMBtu. TCEH expects to employ both collars and, as has been the case, swap transactions for
future hedging activity under its long-term hedging program. Under the terms of the collars, if forward natural
gas prices are lower than the floor price, unrealized mark-to-market gains related to the hedges would be
recognized in net income, and if forward prices are higher than the ceiling price, unrealized mark-to-market
losses related to the hedges would be recognized in net income.

Prior to March 2007, a significant portion of the instruments under the long-term hedging program were
designated and accounted for as cash flow hedges. In March 2007, these instruments were dedesignated as
allowed under SFAS 133. Subsequent changes in the fair value of these instruments are being recorded as
unrealized gains and losses in net income, which has and could continue to result in significantly increased
volatility in reported net income. Based on the size of the long-term hedging program as of October 24, 2008, a
$1.00/MMBtu change in natural gas prices across the period from 2008 through 2014 would result in the
recognition by TCEH of up to approximately $2.1 billion in pretax unrealized mark-to-market gains or losses. -

Reported unrealized mark-to-market net gains associated. with the long-term hedging program were
significant in the three months ended September 30, 2008 ($6.2 billion) due to net decreases in forward natural
gas prices. Reported unrealized mark-to-market net gains in the nine months ended September 30, 2008 totaled
$133 million. Given the volatility of natural gas prices, it is not possible to predict future reported unrealized
mark-to-market gains or-losses and the actual gains or losses that will ultimately be realized upon settlement of
the hedge positions in future years. If natural gas prices at settlement are lower than the prices of the hedge
positions, the hedges are expected to mitigate the otherwise negative effect on earnings of lower wholesale -
electricity prices. However, if natural gas prices at settlement are higher than the prices of the hedge positions,
the hedges are expected to dampen the otherwise positive effect on earnings of higher wholesale electricity
prices and will in this context be viewed as having resulted in an opportunity cost. The cumulative unrealized
mark-to-market net losses related to positions in the long-term hedging program totaled $1.8 billion at December
31, 2007, $1.7 billion at September 30, 2008 and $44 million at October 24, 2008. These values can change
materially as market conditions change.

As of September 30, 2008, more than 95% of the long-term hedging transactions were secured by a first-
lien interest in TCEH's assets (including the transactions supported by the TCEH Commodity Collateral Posting
Facility — see discussion below under "Liquidity And Capital Resources") thereby reducing the cash and letter of
credit collateral requirements for the hedging program.
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Interest Rate Swap Transactions — See discussion in Note 7 to Financial Statements regarding various
interest rate swap transactions entered into since the Merger. As of September 30, 2008, TCEH had entered into
a series of interest rate swaps that effectively fix the interest rates at between 7.3% and 8.3% on $16.55 billion
principal amount of its senior secured debt maturing from 2009 to 2014. Taking into consideration these swap
transactions, approximately 16% of TCEH's total long-term debt portfolio at September 30, 2008 was exposed to
variable interest rate risk. On August 29, 2008, swaps in effect at that time were dedesignated as cash flow
hedges in accordance with SFAS 133, and subsequent changes in their fair value are being marked-to market in
net income (reported in interest expense and related charges.) These swaps were dedesignated as a result of the
intent to change the variable interest rate terms of the hedged debt (from three-month LIBOR to one-month
LIBOR) in connection with the planned execution of interest rate basis swaps to further reduce the fixed
borrowing costs. In October 2008, TCEH entered into interest rate swaps that effectively fix the interest rates at
between 7.5% and 7.6% on an additional $1 billion principal amount of the TCEH Senior Secured Facilities;
these swaps will also be marked-to-market in net income. TCEH may enter into additional interest rate hedges
from time to time. The cumulative unrealized mark-to-market net losses related to all interest rate swaps totaled
$280 million at December 31, 2007 (all reported in accumulated other comprehensive income) and $404 million
at September 30, 2008 ($432 million of which was reported in accumulated other comprehensive income) due to
changes in market interest rates. These fair values can change materially as market conditions change.

Environmental Regulatory Matters — See discussion in Note 3 to Financial Statements regarding the
invalidation of the EPA’s Clean Air Interstate Rule and the related impairment of intangible assets representing
NOx and SO, emission allowances in the third quarter of 2008.

Texas Generation Facilities Development — Luminant is developing three lignite-fueled generation units
(2 units at Oak Grove and 1 unit at Sandow) in the state of Texas with a total estimated capacity of
approximately 2,200 MW. Agreements have been executed with EPC contractors to engineer and construct the
units; design and procurement activities for the three units are essentially complete, and construction is well
underway. Air permits for construction of all three units have been obtained. Aggregate cash capital
expenditures for these three units are expected to total approximately $3.25 billion including all construction, site
preparation and mining development costs, of which approximately $2.6 billion was incurred as of September
30, 2008. Total recorded costs, including purchase accounting fair value adjustments and capitalized interest, are
expected to total approximately $5.0 billion upon completion of the units. The expected commercial operation
dates of the units remain as follows: Sandow in 2009 and Oak Grove's two units in 2009 and 2010. See
discussion in Note 8 to Financial Statements under "L1t1gat10n Related to Generation Development” regarding
pending litigation related to the new units.

The development program includes up to $500 million for investments in state-of-the-art emissions
controls for the three new units. The development program -also includes an environmental retrofit program
under which Luminant will install additional environmental control systems at its existing lignite/coal-fueled
generation facilities. Estimated capital expenditures associated with these additional environmental control
systems total approximately $1.0 billion to $1.3 billion. Luminant has not yet completed all detailed cost and
engineering studies for the additional environmental systems, and the cost estimates could materially change as
Luminant determines the details of and further evaluates the engineering and construction costs related to these
investments.

Nuclear Generation Development — In September 2008, Luminant filed a combined operating license
application with the NRC for two new nuclear generation facilities, each with approximately 1,700 MW (gross
capacity), at its existing Comanche Peak nuclear generation site. In connection with the filing of the application,
Luminant and Mitsubishi Heavy Industries Ltd. entered into an agreement to form a joint venture to further the
development of the two new nuclear generation units using Mitsubishi Heavy Industry Ltd.’s US—Advanced
Pressurized Water Reactor technology. TCEH anticipates that closing of the joint venture will occur prior to the
end of 2008.

In September 2008, Luminant filed Part I of its loan guarantee application with the US Department of
Energy (DOE) for financing related to the proposed units. Luminant is currently preparing Part II of the
application and expects to submit it to the DOE by mid-December 2008.
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Cities Aggregation Power Project — In September 2008, Luminant and certain of its affiliates entered into
a 24-year agreement to sell electricity to Cities Aggregation Power Project (CAPP), a non-profit organization
that makes bulk electricity purchases on behalf of its member cities and local subdivisions. Under the terms of
the contract, CAPP will prepay Luminant approximately $465 million for the fixed cost portion of the electricity.
The agreement is contingent upon (i) CAPP successfully issuing bonds to finance a prepayment to Luminant on
behalf of participating cities, (ii) adoption of an ordinance by each of the participating cities that, among other
things, authorizes the payment of each such participating city’s share of the electricity cost under the agreement
and (iii) CAPP entering into back-to-back contracts with the participating cities for 150 MW of electricity.
Given the conditions to closing that are outside of Luminant’s control, there can be no assurance that CAPP will
purchase electricity (or make the prepayment) under the agreement. '

PRESENTATION AND ANALYSIS OF RESULTS

The accompanying condensed statements of consolidated income (loss) and comprehensive income (loss)
are presented for four periods: three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 (Successor) and three and nine
months ended September 30, 2007 (Predecessor), which relate to periods after and before the Merger,
respectively, and the accompanying condensed statements of consolidated cash flows are presented for the same
nine month periods. While the results of operations of the Predecessor and Successor are not comparable due to
the change in basis resulting from the application of purchase accounting for the Merger, the effects of purchase
accounting on the results of the Successor are discussed in the comparison of results for the 2008 and 2007
periods. ' '

See Note 1 to Financial Statements under “Basis of Presentation” for discussion of a change in
classification of results from commodity hedging and trading activities. ' :

All dollar amounts in Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations (including the tables) are stated in millions of US dollars unless otherwise indicated.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Sales Volume and Customer Count Data

Sales volumes:

Retail electricity sales volumes - gigawatt hours (GWh):
Residential
Small bUSINESS (B)...c.eoireceireriirirtceriree et
Large business and other customers

Total retail electricity

Wholesale electricity sales volumes.........cc..cccvveeeerennnnne

Net sales (purchases) of balancing electricity
to/from ERCOT ....coveviiriimieccririicnicreeeececnieeeans

Total sales VOIUMES...........ccecernimrimrviniieriieecniniceen

Average volume (kWh) per retail customer (b):

Residential ......c.oovveeceiiic
Small business .........cccoouevnennn
Large business and other customers.............coovuvneen.

Weather (service territory average) — percent of
normat (c):

Percent of normal:
Cooling degree days...........cccocvcuriiniinininicecnnennnne
Heating degree days

Customer counts:

Retail electricity customefs (end of period and in thousands) (d):

Residential
Small business (a)
Large business and other customers

Total retail electricity customers

Successor  Predecessor Successor  Predecessor
Three Three Nine Nine
Months Months Months Months
Ended Ended Ended Ended
September  September Septemb Septemb
30, 2008 30,2007 Change % 30, 2008 30,2007 Change %
9,098 8,789 35 22,153 21,256 42
2,241 2,313 3.1 5,802 5,861 (1.0)
4.038 3.902 _35 10951 10,946 _ -
15,377 15,004 2.5 38,906 38,063 22
12,472 9,938 25.5 35,529 27,914 27.3
145 (4) _ - (1,335) 622 -
—21,994 —24,938 2.3 13,100 —66,599 28
7/
4,757 4,764 0.1) 11,654 11,399 22
8,732 8,969 (2.6) 22,578 22,421 0.7
145,802 109,115 33.6 361,554 276,764 30.6
100.7% 97.2% 109.0% 94.2%
93.7% 106.2%
1,927 1,858 3.7
258 256 - 0.8
27 35 (22.9)
—2.212 —2.149 —29

(a)  Customers with demand of less than 1 MW annually.

(b)  Calculated using average number of customers for period.

(¢)  Weather data is obtained from Weatherbank, Inc., an independent company that collects and archives weather data from reporting stations
of the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (a federal agency under the US Department of Commerce).

(d)  Based on number of meters.
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Revenue and Market Share Data

Successor Predecessor Successor Predecessor
Three Months Three Months Nine Months Nine Months
Ended Ended Ended Ended
September 30, September 30, September 30, September 30,
2008 2007 2008 2007
Operating revenues:
Retail electricity revenues:
Residential ... $ 1,258 $ 1,221 $ 2,966 $ 2,954
Small business (a)........cccceecurrrirmimrrecrenerererie e ensesereranne 335 335 852 849
Large business and other customers........cc.c.coeveceeceeurunne 447 368 1,143 1,025
Total retail electricity TEVENUES ......ocovcerriiniiriniereneeineeaiennas 2,040 1,924 4,961 4,828
Wholesale electricity reVENUES......coceevvevrceriieieiereeineaenns 1:1 34 589 2,797 1,571
Net sales (purchases) of balancing electricity
t0/from ERCOT ..o e seeieaenens (44) 19) 227 (1)
Amortization of intangibles (b) 26 - (15) -
Other operating revenues....... 102 78 293 236
Total operating revenues $ 3,258 . 32572 3;1& $ 6,624

Commodity hedging and trading activities:
Unrealized net gains (losses), including cash flow
hedge ineffectiveness..........occiveiiiiieecnvonrnenerneenes $ 6,068 $ 479 5 (237 $ (695
Unrealized net gains (losses) representing reversals v
of previously recognized fair values of positions

settled in the current period ........cccocoiivecieveeniieeenennans 20 ) - (68) ®)
Realized net gains (losses) on settled positions (¢)......... (43) (17) 57 96
NEL ZAIN (0S8 -..eoeeeicereriseesie s benaenae $ 6,045 3 462 3 (248) $ (607)

Average revenues per MWh: .
Residential ........c..ccvcvemiiincnenciccnneeere s § 13832 $138.96 ) $ 13390 § 13899

Estimated share of ERCOT retail markets (d) (e) (f):

Residential : 37% 36%
BUSINESS MATKELS. ......couiiiiiiii e reb ettt ets bt cas e s e e s s s s et s s s s ssss e nre s rsnsnsasre s 26% - 27%
(a) Customers with demand of less than 1 MW annually.
(b) Represents amortization of the intangible net asset value of retail and whoiesalc power salcs agreements resulting from purchase accounting.
©) Includes physical commodity trading activity not subject to mark-to-market accounting of $11 million and $7 million in net losses in the three months
ended September 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively, and $29 and $13 million in net losses in the nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007,
respectively. )
(d) Based on number of meters at end of period. .
(e) Estimated market share is based on the number of customers that have choice.
() Calculations based on TXU Energy customer segmentation and ERCOT total customer counts.
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 Production, Purchased Power and Delivery Cost Data

‘Successor Predecessor Successor Predecessor
Three Months Three Months Nine Months Nine Months
Ended Ended Ended Ended
. September 30, September 30, September 30, September 30,
ot 2008. 2007 2008 2007
Fuel, purchased power costs and delivery '
fees ($ millions): ’
Nuclear 3 25 $ 24 $ 69 $ 63
Lignite/coal 172 161 485 451
Total baseload fuel ..........cccviiiieecnncninree 197 185 554 514
Natural gas fuel and purchased power 1,161 559 2,532 1,377
Amortization of intangibles (a) 87 - 246 -
Oher COSIS ..ottt e eas 94 57 304 203
Fuel and purchased power costs .......cccoeveerrerrrienes 1,539 801 3,636 2,094
Delivery fees.....ocoiiiciiccceeee e 384 383 1,010 992
TOLAL ...ttt $ 1923 3 1,184 $ 4646 | 3 3,086
Fuel and purchased power costs (which excludes
generation plant operating costs) per MWh: .
Nuclear fuel .......oociivcvcenicirccener et $ 4.88 $ 4.68 $ 4.75 $ 4.59
Lignite/coal (B) ..c...oevirerieren i $ 15.39 $ 1418 $ 15.83 $ 14.31
Natural gas fuel and purchased power.............ccccccoeuene $  104.02 § 63.71 $ 91.55 3 62.29
Delivery fees per MWh ... $ 24.77 $ 25.09 $ 25.69 $ 25.60
(a) Represents amortization of the intangible net asset values of environmental credits, coal purchase contracts and power purchase agreements and the
stepped up value of nuclear fuel resulting from purchase accounting.
(b) Includes depreciation and amortization of lignite mining assets, which is reported in the depreciation and amortization expense line item, but is part of
overall fuel costs. ’
Successor  Predecessor Successor  Predecessor
Three Three Nine Nine
Months Months ) Months Months
. Ended Ended : Ended Ended
September  September September  September

30, 2008 30, 2007 Change % 30, 2008 30, 2007 Change %

Production and purchased power volumes (GWh); .

LT L SO 4,996 s110 0 77 @2y 14,448 13,664 57
Lignite/Coal.....c.ccoevniiiiiiirinriinieissieecee e eserens 12.240 12,353 (0.9) 33.697 34,297 (1.7)
Total baseload generation .............cccoveveveveririerennnns 17,236 17,463 (1.3) 48,145 47,961 " 04
Natural gas-fueled LENETALION ..ovvvvcertiee s 2,124 2,108 0.8 3,843 3,491 10.1
Purchased pOWeT...........cocucuiccvcornrcriccn e 9,042 - 6,662 357 23816 18,619 27.9

Total energy supply ........ocoeceeeeevvnceceennninienee 28,402 26,233 83 75,804 70,071 8.2
Less line loss and power imbalances ...............c.cc..... . 408 - 1,295 (68.5) 2,704 3472 (22.1)
Net energy supply VOIUMES .......ccocvriiereieerinernns _27,994 24,938 123 13,100 66,599 —928
Baseload capacity factors (%): : .
Nuclear 98.4% 100.6% 2.2) 95.6% 90.8% 5.3
Lignite/coal............... 95.0% 95.8% 0.8) 87.7% 89.7% 2.2)
Total baseload generation 95.5% 97.2% 1.7) 89.8% 90.0% 0.2)
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Financial Results

Three Months Ended September 30, 2008 Compared to Three Months Ended September 30, 2007

Successor  Predecessor

Three Months . : Three Months
Ended Ended
September 30, 2008 September 30, 2007
Total retail electricity revenues'..........oevevvcoriencnenecrerecrcnenns $ 2,040 ) 3 1,924
Wholesale electricity revenues 1,134 589
Wholesale balancing activities ... (44) (19)
Amortization of intangibles (a)... 26 -
Other operating revenues............ 102 : 78
Total operating revenues ... $ 3,258 ‘ $§ 2572
(a) Represents amortization of the intangible values of retail and wholesale power sales agreements resulting from

purchase accountmg
Operating revenues increased $686 niillion, or 27%, to $3.258Abillion in 2008, as shown in the tablé above.
The $116 million, or 6%, increase in retail electricity revenues reflected the following:

e Higher average pricing contributed $68 million to the revenue increase. Higher average retail
pricing reflected higher prices in the business markets driven by higher natural gas prices, partially
offset by an approximate $5 million effect of lower pricing in the residential customer market.
Lower residential pricing reflected the effect of a five percent price discount in October 2007 to
those residential customers in EFH Corp.’s historical service territory with month-to-month
service plans and a rate equivalent to the former price-to-beat.

o A two percent increase in retail sales volumes contributed $48 million to the revenue increase.
Residential volumes increased four percent, primarily due to an increase in residential customer
counts and the effects of slightly warmer weather in 2008 compared to 2007. Business and other
customer volumes increased 1%.

s Total retail electricity customer counts at September 30, 2008 increased three ‘percent from
September 30, 2007. Competitive activity resulted in a four percent increase in residential
customers and a one percent increase in small business customers.

Wholesale electricity revenues increased $545 million, or 93%. A 53% increase in average wholesale
electricity prices, driven by higher natural gas prices, contributed $395 million to revenue growth, and a 25%
increase in sales volumes contributed $150 million. Higher wholesale sales and purchase volumes reflected
several factors, including increased demand (due to warmer weather)-and congestion, as well as increased near-
term bilateral power contracting activity due in part to increased demand and market volatility in 2008. The
higher natural gas prices also contributed to the increase in fuel and purchased power costs.

Wholesale sales and purchases of electricity are reported gross in the income stateraent only if the .
transactions are scheduled for physical delivery with ERCOT. In ERCOT’s grid management activities, all
scheduled transactions may not result in physical delivery, but TCEH has no visibility into those activities.

Wholesale balancing activity comparisons are generally not meaningful because the activity represents
intraday purchases and sales transactions with ERCOT for real-time balancing purposes, as measured in 15-

minute intervals, which are highly variable.

Other operating revenues increased $24 million, or 31%, to $102 mllllon primarily due to higher retail
natural gas revenues reflecting increased prices.

45



Fuel, purchased power costs and delivery fees increased $739 million, or 62%, to $1.923 billion.- The
increase was driven by higher purchased power costs, reflecting 36% growth in purchased power volumes as
well as the effect of higher natural gas prices on wholesale power prices. The increase also reflected a 53%
increase in fuel costs per MWh in natural gas-fueled generation facilities due to the higher natural gas prices.
Higher fuel costs also reflected higher usage and prices (including transportation costs) of purchased coal. The
increase reflects $87 million of net expense recorded in the 2008 period representing amortization of the
intangible net asset values of environmental credits, coal purchase contracts and power purchase agreements and
the stepped-up value of nuclear fuel resulting from purchase accounting. Other cost increases included $37
million related primarily to congestion-related charges and $14 million in higher cost of natural gas for resale.

Results from commodity hedging and trading activities include realized and unrealized gains and losses
associated with financial instruments used for commodity hedging and trading purposes, as well as gains and
losses on physical sales and purchases of commodities for trading and certain commodity hedging purposes. A"
substantial majority of the commodity hedging activities are intended to mitigate the risk of commodity price
movements on future revenues and involve natural gas positions entered into as part of the long-term hedging
program. The results of these activities have been volatile because of the effects of movements in forward
natural gas prices on unrealized mark-to-market valuations. Following is an analysis of activities for the three
months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007:

Three Months Ended September 30, 2008 — Unrealized mark-to-market net gains totaling $6.088 billion
include:

e $6.091 billion in net gains related to hedge positions, which includes $6.074 billion in net gains from
changes in fair value and $17 million in net gains that represent reversals of previously recorded fair
values of positions settled in the period. These net gains are driven by the effect of decreases in natural -
gas prices in forward periods on positions in the long-term hedging program;

¢  $10 million in "day one" losses related to large hedge positions (see Note 10 to Financial Statements),
and )

¢ $7 million in net gains related to trading positions, which includes $4 million in net gains from changes

in fair value and $3 million in net gains that represent reversals of prev1ously recorded fair values of
positions settled in the period.

Realized net losses totaling $43 million include:

o $105 million in net losses related to hedge positions that primérily offset hedged electricity revenues
recognized in the period, and
e  $62 million in net gains related to trading positions.

Three Months Ended September 30, 2007 — Unrealized mark-to-market net gainé tdtaling $479 million
include:

e  $539 million in net gains related to hedge positions, which includes $542 million in net gains from
changes in fair value and $3 million in net losses that represent reversals of previously recorded fair
values of positions settled in the period, and

e a $58 million "day one" loss on a related series of commodity price hedges (see Note 10 to Financial
Statements).

Reaiized net losses totaling $17 million include:
e $4 million in net losses related to hedge positions that offset hedged electricity revenues recognized in

the period, and
o  $13 million in net losses related to trading positions.
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Operating costs increased $19 million, or 14%, to $157 million in 2008. The increase reflects $16 million
in higher maintenance costs related to the timing and scope of planned and unplanned outages in baseload
generation facilities, $4 million in costs related to combustion turbines now being operated for TCEH's own
benefit, $4 million in higher property taxes and $4 million of expenses associated with operational readiness at
the generation units under construction, partially offset by $7 million in costs in 2007 for utilization of SO,
credits for the coal/lignite-fueled generation plants. ‘

Depreciation and amortization increased $212 million to $296 million. The increase includes $170 million
of incremental depreciation expense from stepped-up property, plant and equipment values and $13 million in
incremental amortization expense related to the intangible value of customer relationships, each resulting from
the effects of purchase accounting. The remaining increase primarily reflects normal additions and replacements
of equipment in generation operations.

SG&A expenses increased $22 million, or 15%, to $172 million in 2008. The increase reflects:

e $11 million in higher expenses in the retail operations, primarily increased employees and labor costs to
support customer growth initiatives and computer system enhancement costs, net of a $1 million
decrease in fess associated with the sale of accounts receivable program,
$7 million in higher retail customer bad debt expense, and
$4 million in higher salaries in generation operations driven by construction development and reflecting
the transfer of employees to Luminant who were previously assigned to gensration plants being
developed by other EFH Corp. subsidiaries.

Other income totaled $2 million in 2008 and $8 million in 2007. Other deductions totaled $531 million in
2008 and a net credit of $34 million in 2007. The 2008 amount includes $499 million in impairment charges
related to NO, and SO, environmental allowances intangible assets discussed in Note 3 to Financial Statements
and $26 million in charges to reserve for net receivables (excluding termination related costs) from terminated
hedging transactions with subsidiaries of Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc., which has filed for bankruptcy under
Chapter 11 of the US Bankruptcy Code. The 2007 amount includes a $48 million reduction in the liability

+ previously recorded for leases related to gas-fueled combustion turbines that TCEH had ceased operating for its

own benefit and a $10 million charge related to the termination of a railcar operating lease. See Note 5 to the
Financial Statements for details of other income and deductions. :

Interest income-decreased $77 million to $20- million in 2008 reflecting lower average balances of
notes/advances to parent.

Interest expense and related charges increased $464 million to $581 million in 2008. The increase reflects
$494 million due to higher average borrowings driven by the Merger-related financings, and $30 million due to
higher average interest rates, including a $36 million unrealized mark-to-market gain related to interest rate
swaps and $4 million of amortization of debt fair value discount resulting from purchase accounting, partially

" offset by $60 million in increased capitalized interest. -

Income tax expense on pretax income totaled $2.010 billion in 2008 and $501 million in 2007. The
effective income tax rates increased to 35.6% in 2008 from 34.0% in 2007. The effective rates reflect the
application of EFH Corp.’s statutory tax rate to the unrealized mark-to-market net losses in 2007 and 2008 and
impairment of SO, and NO, environmental allowance in 2008. The increase in the effective tax rate is driven by
the effect of a higher lignite depletion benefit in 2007 on a smaller income base and the absence in 2008 of the
production deduction due to forecasted net operating losses.

Net income increased $2.655 billion te $3.629 billion in 2008 driven by unrealized mark-to-market gains

on positions in the long-term hedging program, partially offset by higher net interest expense, the impairment of
environmental allowances intangible assets and the effects of purchase accounting.
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Financial Results

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2008 Compared to Nine Months Ended September 30, 2007

Successor ' Predecessor
Nine Months Ended Nine Months Ended
: September 30, 2008 September 30, 2007
Total retail electricity TEVENUES .....ccceoveireereiirieieireeereens - $ 4,961 $ 4,828
Wholesale electricity revenues ..........ooovcriieieierereeceisiereeenneens 2,797 1,571
Wholesale balancing activities ...........cccoceciieiiecincenceineenceenans 227) (11)
Amortization of intangibles (a).. (15) -
Other operating revenues........... 293 : 236
Total Operating reVENUES ........cccccervmrneeriercrernreenierereennnenes $ 7,809 § $ 6624

(a) Represents amortization of the intangible values of retail and wholesale power sales agreements resulting from
purchase accounting. :

Operating revenues increased $1.185 billion, or 18%, to $7.809 billion in 2008, as shown in the table
above.

The $133 million, or 3%, increase in retail electricity revenues reflected the following: '
J .

e A two percent increase in retail sales volumes contributed $107 million to the revenue increase.
Residential volumes increased four percent reflecting the effects of warmer than normal weather
in 2008 combined with the cooler than normal weather experienced in 2007 and an increase in
residential customer counts as discussed in the analysis of third quarter results. Business and
other customer volumes were comparable with 2007.

¢ Higher average pricing increased revenues by $26 million. Higher average retail pricing reflected
higher prices in the business markets driven by higher natural gas prices, partially offset by an
approximate $108 million effect of lower pricing in the residential customer market. Lower
residential pricing reflected the effect of a six percent price discount in March 2007, an additional
four percent price discount in June 2007 and another five percent price discount in October 2007
to those residential customers in TCEH’s historical service territory with month-to-month service
plans and a rate equivalent to the former price-to-beat.

Wholesale electricity revenues increased $1.226 billion, or 78%. A 40% increase in average wholesale
electricity prices driven by higher natural gas prices contributed $797 million to revenue growth and a 27%
increase in sales volumes contributed $429 million. The rise in natural gas prices through July 2008 reflected the
overall trend of higher energy prices and increased demand in natural gas-fueled generation due to warmer
weather in 2008. Higher wholesale sales and purchase volumes reflected several factors, including increased
demand (due to warmer weather), baseload plant outages and congestion, as well as increased near-term bilateral
power contracting activity due in part to increased demand and market volatility in 2008. The higher natural gas
prices also contributed to the increase in fuel and purchased power costs.

Wholesale balancing activity comparisons are not generally meaningful because the activity represents
intraday purchases and sales transactions with ERCOT for real-time balancing purposes, as measured in 15-
minute intervals, which are highly variable. The relatively large amount in 2008 reflects weather-driven
volatility, generation facility outages and congestion effects.

Other operating revenues increased $57 million, or 24%, to $293 million primarily due to higher retail
natural gas revenues reflecting increased prices.
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Fuel, purchased power costs and delivery fees increased $1.560 billion, or 51%, to $4.646 billion. The
increase was driven by higher purchased power costs, reflecting 28% growth in purchased power volumes as
well as the effect of higher natural gas prices on wholesale power prices. The increase also reflected greater -
utilization of natural gas-fueled generation facilities to meet peak demand and a 56% increase in fuel costs per
MWh in those facilities due to higher natural gas prices. Higher fuel costs also reflected higher usage and prices
(including transportation costs) of purchased coal. The increase reflects $246 million of net expense recorded in
the 2008 period representing amortization of the intangible net asset values of environmental credits, coal
purchase contracts and power purchase agreements and the stepped-up value of nuclear fuel resulting from
purchase accounting. Other cost increases included $101 million related primarily to congestion-related charges
and $41 million in higher costs of natural gas for resale.

Following is an analysis of results from commodity hedging and trading activities for the nine months
ended September 30, 2008 and 2007:

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2008 — Unrealized mark-to-market net losses totaling $305 million
include:

e  $250 million in net losses related to hedge positions, which includes $248 million in net losses from
changes in fair value and $2 million in net losses that represent reversals of previously recorded fair
values of positions settled in the period;

e $69 million in "day-one" net losses related to large hedge positions (see Note 10 to Financial
Statements), and '

e $13 million in net gains related to trading positions, which includes $79 million in net gains from
changes in fair value and $66 million in net losses that represent reversals of previously recorded fair
values of positions settled in the period.

Realized net gains totaling $57 million include:

e $76 million in net losses related to hedge positions that primanly offset hedged electricity revenues
recognized in the period, and

®  $133 million in net gains related to trading positions.

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2007 — Unreahzed mark—to market- net losses totaling $703 ‘million

include: - .

e  $557 million in net losses related to hedge positions which includes $585 million in net losses from
changes in fair value and $28 million in net gains that represent reversals of previously recorded fair
values of positions settled in the period,;

e 5218 million in "day one" losses related to large hedge positions and a $30 millicn “day one” gain on'a
long-term power purchase agreement (see Note 10 to Financial Statements);

o 392 million in hedge ineffectiveness net gains, which includes $111 million in net gains from changes
in fair value and $19 million in net losses that represent reversals of previously recorded unrealized net
gains related to positions settled in the period. These amounts relate to positions accounted for as cash -
flow hedges, and

o $46 million in net losses related to trading positions, which includes $29 million in net losses from
changes in fair value and $17 million in net losses that represent reversals of previously recorded fair
values of positions settled in the period. .

Realized net gains totaling $96 million include:
e 370 million in net gains related to hedge positions that offset hedged electricity revenues recognized in

the period, and
o  $26 million in net gams related to trading positions.
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Operating costs increased $49 million, or 11%, to $501 million in 2008. The increase reflects $36 million
in higher maintenance costs related to the.timing and scope of planned and unplanned outages in baseload
generation facilities, $11 million in costs related to combustion turbines now being operated for TCEH's own
benefit, $10 million in higher property taxes and $5 million of expenses associated with operational readiness at
the generation units under construction, partially offset by $7 million in costs in 2007 for utilization of SO,
credits for the lignite/coal-fueled generation plants and $3 million in individually insignificant items.

Depreciation and amortization increased $582 million to $827 million. The increase includes $502 million
of incremental depreciation expense from stepped-up property, plant and equipment values and $38 million in
incremental amortization expense related to the intangible value of customer relationships, each resulting from
the effects of purchase accounting. The remaining increase primarily reflects normal additions and replacements
of equipment in generation operations. ' '

SG&A expenses increased $60 million, or 14%, to $496 million in 2008. The increase reflects:

e  $26 million in higher expenses in the retail operations, primarily increased employees and labor costs to
support customer growth initiatives and increased marketing and computer systems enhancement costs,
net of a $6 million decrease in fees associated with the sale of accounts receivable program; _

o $14 million in higher salaries in generation operations driven by construction development and
reflecting the transfer of employees to Luminant who were previously assigned to generation plants
being developed by other EFH Corp. subsidiaries, and

e  $16 million in higher retail customer bad debt expense.

Other income totaled $8 million in 2008 and $19 million in 2007. Other deductions totaled $550 million in
2008 and a net credit of $20 million in 2007.- The 2008 amount includes $501 million in impairment charges
related to NO, and SO, environmental allowances intangible assets discussed in Note 3 to Financial Statements
and $26 million in charges to reserve for net receivables (excluding termination related costs) from terminated
hedging transactions with subsidiaries of Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc., which has filed for bankruptcy under
the US Bankruptcy Code. The 2007 amount includes a $48 million reduction in the liability previously recorded
for leases related to gas-fueled combustion turbines that TCEH had ceased operating for its own benefit and a
$10 million charge related to the termination of a railcar operating lease. See Note 5 to Financial Statements for
details of other income and deductions.

Interest income decreased $215 million to $45 million in 2008 reflecting lower average notes
receivable/advances.

Interest expense and related charges increased by $1.446 billion to $1.756 billion in 2008. The increase
reflects $1.363 billion due to higher average borrowings driven by the Merger-related financings, and $266
million due to higher average interest rates, including a $36 million mark-to-market gain related to interest rate
swaps and $11 million of amortization of debt fair value discount resulting from purchase accounting, partially
offset by $183 million in increased capitalized interest.

Income tax benefits on pretax losses totaled $425 million in 2008 and income tax expense on pretax
income totaled $529 million in 2007. The 2007 amount includes a deferred tax benefit of $30 million related to
an amendment of the Texas margin tax by the Texas legislature. Excluding the effect of this 2007 item, the
effective income tax rates were 34.4% on a loss in 2008 compared to 32.7% on income in 2007. (The unusual
deferred tax benefit in 2007 distorts the comparison; therefore it has been excluded for purposes of a more
meaningful discussion). The effective rates reflect the application of EFH Corp.’s statutory tax rate to the
unrealized mark-to-market net losses in 2007 and 2008 as well as the 2007 impairment charge related to the
cancellation of certain generation facility development activities and the impairment of SO, and NO,
environmental allowances intangible assets in 2008. The increase in the effective tax rate is driven by the effect
of a lower lignite depletion benefit in 2008 on a smailer income base and the absence in 2008 of the production
deduction due to forecasted net operating losses. The impact on the rate is also dus to the effect of the Texas
margin tax on pretax losses in 2008, under which interest expense is ot deductible.
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Net income (loss) decreased $1.991 billion to a net loss of $811 million in 2008 driven by higher net
interest expense, the impairment of environmental allowances intangible assets and the effects of purchase
accounting, partially offset by the decrease in unrealized mark-to-market losses on positions in the long-term
hedging program,

Energy-Related Commodity Contracts and Mark-to-Market Activities

The table below summarizes the changes in commodity contract assets and liabilities for the nine months
ended September 30, 2008. The net changes in these assets and liabilities, excluding “other activity” as
described below, represent the pretax effect of mark-to-market accounting on net income for positions in the
commodity contract portfolio that are not subject to cash flow hedge accounting (see discussion below and in
Note 10 to Financial Statements). For the nine months ended September 30, 2008, this effect totaled $217
million in unrealized net losses, which represented $233 million in net losses from changes in fair value and $16
million in net gains representing reversals of previously recognized fair values of positions settled in the current
period. These positions represent both economic hedging and trading activities.

Successor
Nine Months Ended
September 30, 2008
Commodity contract net asset (liability) at beginning of period.........cccccevrveveunrninn $ (1,917)
3 Settlements Of POSItIONS (B).....covvvrriruceeenmiiiiiie i sessesessaseb et bscenias 16
Unrealized mark-to-market valuations of POSIIONS (D) vvvvvvveeeereee vt (233)
Other aCtiVIty (€) ..oovverveerriiecccner e (N
Commodity contract net asset (liability) at end of period..........c.coceeevivereniireens $ (2,141)

(a) Represents reversals of fair values previously recognized to offset gains and losses realized upon
settlement of the positions in the current period. Includes settlements of positions entered into in the
current period and the expiration of option premiums during the current period.

(b) Primarily represents mark-to-market effects of positions in the long-term hedging program (see discussion
above under "Long-Term Hedging Program"). Of this amount, $82 million in net losses relates to
positions not settled as of the end of the period. Includes $68 million in net losses recorded at contract
inception dates (see Note 10 to Financial Statements). :

(c) These amounts do not represent unrealized gains or losses. Includes mmal values of positions involving
the receipt or payment of cash or other consideration.

Note: Of the $217 million in unrealized net losses for the period, $301 million in net losses are reported in
the income statement as net loss from commodity hedging and trading activities. The difference of $84
million in net gains relate to physically settled sales and purchase transactions, with $155 million in net
gains reported in revenues and $71 million in net losses reported in fuel, purchased power costs and
delivery fees, as required by accounting rules.
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In addition to the effect on net income of recording unrealized mark-to-market gains and losses that are
reflected in the table above, similar effects arise in the recording of unrealized ineffectiveness gains and losses
associated with commodity-related positions accounted for as cash flow hedges. These effects on net income,
which include reversals of previously recorded unrealized ineffectiveness gains and losses to offset realized
gains and losses upon settlement, are included in net gain (loss) from commodity hedging and trading activities
and reflected in the balance sheet as changes in commodity and other derivative contractual assets and liabilities
(see Note 10 to Financial Statements). The total pretax effect of recording unrealized gains and losses in net
income related to commodity contracts under SFAS 133 is summarized as follows:

v Successor Predecessor Successor Predecessor
Three Months Three Months Nine Months Nine Months
Ended Ended Ended Ended
September 30, September 30, September 30, September 30,
2008 2007 2008 2007
Unrealized gains (losses) related to contracts
MArked-t0-Market ........cooviiiieriiicrrecic e s $ 6,142 $ 481 : $ @17 $ (795)
Ineffectiveness gains (losses) related to contracts
accounted for as cash flow hedges (@) .........ccccoovcrnience. - 2) @ 92
Total unrealized gains (losses) related to commodity
COMUTACES ...eceeeeeeceree e s st e . $ 6,142 § 479 3 (221 3.0y,

(a) See Note 10 to Financial Statements.

. Maturity Table — Following are the components of the net commodity contract liability at September 30,
2008: ‘

Net commodity contract Hability ..........covveueeiiiiienere et essss e snae e esenecen $(2,141)
Net receipts of natural gas under physical swap trahsactions... 33
Amount of net liability arising from recognition of fair values..........c.cccooeecvrirreveiiinien. $2.108)
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The following table presents the net commodity contract liability arising from recognition of fair values as
of September 30, 2008, scheduled by the source of fair value and contractual settlement dates of the undetlying
positions. See Note 12 to Financial Statements for fair value disclosures required under SFAS 157.

Maturity dates of unrealized commodity contract liabilities at September 30, 2008

Less than Excess of
1 year 1-3 years 4-5 years S years Total
Source of fair value (a
Prices actively quoted.........cccocociuninecne. $ (158) $ (89 3 o) 58 - $ (267)
Prices provided by other external .
SOUTCES wvcvveinninivisisen e escmecseen 50 (808) (806) (75) (1,639)
Prices based on models..........ccovieinnan (1) (53) 40) (102) 202
Total oo $ 415 $ (950) $ (866) $ (17 $(2,108)

Percentage of total fair value.................... ) 6% 45% 41% 8% 100%

(a) Under this analysis, a contract can have more than one source of fair value. In such cases, the value of the contract is segregated by source
of value.

A

The “prices actively quoted” category\reﬂects only exchange traded contracts for which active quotes are
readily available. The “prices provided by other external sources” category represents forward commodity
positions valued using prices for which over-the-counter broker quotes are available. Over-the-counter quotes
for power in ERCOT generally extend through 2012 and over-the-counter quotes for natural gas generally extend
through 2015, depending upon delivery point. The “prices based on models” category contains the value of all
over-the-counter traded options, valued using option pricing models. In addition, this category contains other
contractual arrangements that may have forward and option components, as well as other contracts that are
valued using proprietary long-term pricing modeis that utilize certain market based inputs. In many instances, '
these contracts can be broken down into their component parts and each component valued separately.
Components valued as forward commodity positions are included in the “prices provided by other external
sources” category. Components valued as options are included in the “prices based on models” category.
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COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Cash flow hedge activity reported in other comprehensive income included (all amounts after-tax):

Net increase (decrease) in fair value of cash flow hedges:
CommMOMItIES. ... e

Derivative value net losses (gains) reported in net
income that relate to hedged transactions recognized
in the period:
CommOdities..........ccveuvimririiiii s
Financing - interest rate SWaps.............cccoorvesverserseens
Total loss effect of cash flow hedges reported in
other comprehensive income

Successor

Three Months

Ended
September 30,
2008

(131)
(139)

o
N

[

Predecessor Successor Predecessor
Three Months Nine Months Nine Months
Ended Ended Ended
September 30, September 30, September 30,
2007 2008 2007
) 7 $ () $ (290)

- (175) -

7 (182) 290

[€B)) 7 (90)

2 76 6
9 83 (84)
Q) 3 (099 § _(374)

EFH Corp. has historically used, and expects to continue to use, derivative instruments that are effective in
offsetting future cash flow variability in interest rates and energy commodity prices. Amounts in accumulated
other comprehensive income include (i) the value of unsettled transactions accounted for as cash flow hedges
(for the effective portion), based on current market conditions, and (ii) the value of dedesignated and terminated
cash flow hedges at the time of such dedesignation, less amounts-reclassified to earnings as the original hedged
transactions are recognized, unless the hedged transactions become probable of not occurring. The effects of the
hedge will be recorded-in the statement.of income as the hedged transactions are actually settled and affect
earnings. Also see Note 10 to Financial Statements.
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FINANCIAL CONDITION
LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash Flows — Cash provided by opefating activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2008
totaled $863 million compared to cash provided of $731 million in 2007. The increase in cash provided of $132
million reflects:

e 2 $532 million favorable change in margin deposits primarily due to the effect of lower forward natural
gas prices on positions in the long-term hedging program. ' The majority of the margin deposits are
funded by borrowings from the TCEH Commodity Collateral Posting Facility as discussed in Note 10
to Financial Statements; '

e a $882 million decrease in cash income taxes paid to EFH Corp. reflecting payment in 2007 of 2006
taxes, and

e a $102 million premium paid in 2007 related to a structured natural gas-related option transaction
entered into as part of TCEH's long-term hedging program,

partially offset by a $1.394 billion increase in cash interest payments.

Cash provided by financing activities increased $1.957 billion as summarized below:

Successor Predecessor
Nine Months Nine Months
Ended Ended
September 30, September 30,
2008 2007
Net issuances, repayments and repurchases of borrowings..........cccovvceccoreniniiieerevecnns $ 2,912 $ 1,849
Decrease in income tax-related note payable to Oncor (see Note 13 to Financial
Statements) (25) (24)

. Distributions paid to parent : — 851)
Debt discount, financing and reacquisition expenses T ) 8)
OHET ...ttt bbbt : 40 —

- Total provided by financing activities . £ 2,923 $ 966

Cash used in investing activities increased $1.053 billion as summarized below:

Successor Predecessor
R Nine Months Nine Months
- Ended Ended
September 30, September 30,
2008 2007
Net (advances to) repayments from affiliates...........cccococovvriiiicininicicii $ (388) $ 322
Capital expenditures, including nuclear fuel ..............ccceconevvmnnncciccicirrre e (1,514) _ (1,584)
Investment held in money market fund ..o (242) —
Net reduction of restricted cash ... 9 197
ORET et ekt [N 6 ) an
Total used in INVESHING ACHVILIES.......viiiiiirieeenncreeeer et cse s serese e serns $.(2,129) $(1,076)

Depreciation and amortization expense reported in the statement of cash flows exceeds the amount reported
in the statement of income by $326 million and $49 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 and
2007, respectively. The 2008 difference represents amortization of intangible net assets and debt fair value
discounts arising from purchase accounting that is reported in various other income statement line items
including operating revenues, fuel, purchased power costs and delivery fees and interest expense and related
charges. The 2008 and 2007 differences also reflect the amortization of nuclear fuel, which is reported as fuel
cost in the statement of in?ome consistent with industry practice.
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Debt Financing Activity — Long-term borrowings for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 totaled
$1.277 billion and included $1.004 billion of borrowings under the TCEH Delayed Draw Term Loan Facility to
fund expenditures, principally related to the construction of the new generation facilities and the remarketing of
$242 million principal amount of pollution control revenue bonds. Retirements for the nine months ended
September 30, 2008 totaled $397 million and included the remarketing of $242 million principal amount of
pollution control revenue bonds and $123 million repaid under the TCEH Initial Term Loan Facility. Short-term -
borrowings increased $2.032 billion in the nine months ended September 30, 2008 driven by $1.910 billion of
cash borrowings from the TCEH Revolving Credit Facility, the vast majority of which is being held in highly
liquid short-term investments as discussed below, and an increase of $122 million in borrowings under the
Commodity Collateral Posting Facility.

See Note 7 to Financial Statements for further detail of long-term debt and other financing arrangements.

TCEH may from time to time purchase its outstanding debt securities for cash in open market purchases,
privately negotiated transactions or other transactions. TCEH will evaluate any such transactions in light of
market prices of the securities, taking into account its liquidity requirements and prospects for future access to
capital, contractual restrictions and other factors. The amounts involved in any such transactions, individually or
in the aggregate, may be material. :

Credit Facilities — The following table summarizes changes in liquidity available under TCEH’s
committed credit facilities for the year-to-date period ended October 31, 2008:

Availability -

December 31, 2007 October 31, 2008 (a) Change
TCEH Delayed Draw Term Loan Facility.................... $ 1,950 $ 842 $ (1,108)
TCEH Revolving Credit Facility ...........ccccoevvrvveernnnns b 2,636 $ 1.166 $  (1470)

TOUL v § 4586 § 2008 $  (2.578)

(a) The TCEH Delayed Draw Term Loan Facility includes $14 million of undrawn commitraents from a subsidiary of Lehman
Brothers Holdings Inc. and excludes $2 million of requested draws by TCEH that have not been funded by the Lehmai subsidiary
as of October 31, 2008. The TCEH Revolving Credit Facility includes $134 million of undrawn commitments from the Lehman
subsidiary and excludes $35 million of requested draws by TCEH that have not been funded by the Lehman subsidiary as of
October 31, 2008. ’ .

The TCEH Delayed Draw Term Loan Facility is used to fund certain specified expenditures, principally
related to the construction of the new generation facilities, and related expenses. The TCEH Revolving Credit
Facility is used for working capital and other general corporate purposes. The TCEH Letter. of Credit Facility is
used for issuing letters of credit for general corporate purposes and had availability of $347 million of letters of
credit as of October 31, 2008. During September and October 2008, TCEH borrowed approximately $2.3 billion
under its Revolving Credit Facility, of which approximately $1 billion was repaid from October 28 through
October 31, 2008. As of October 31, 2008, TCEH held cash and cash equivalents totaling $1.320 billion and a
$242 million investment in a money market fund being liquidated (as described in Note 14 to Financial
Statements). TCEH has unlimited availability under the committed TCEH Commodity Collateral Posting
Facility to fund the collateral posting requirements for specified natural gas hedging transaction volumes. (See
discussion below under “Liquidity Effects of Commodity Hedging and Trading Activities.”)
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Although TCEH did not have any immediate needs for the additional liquidity from the cash borrowings
from the TCEH Revolving Credit Facility, the borrowings were made as a precautionary measure due to
significant dislocation in the financial markets as evidenced by, among other matters, the bankruptcy filing by
Lehman as well as a substantial widening of credit default swap spreads of other institutional banks, a significant
increase in the LIBOR rate, a significant halt in commercial paper markets and a significant widening of TED
(the price difference between 3-month T-Bill futures and 3-month Eurodollar futures) spreads (collectively,
“Key Market Metrics”). TCEH anticipated repaying some or all of these borrowings upon seeing an
improvement in financial market conditions. Given the enactment of federal legislation that is intended to
support the solvency of institutional banks, significant improvement in each of the Key Market Metrics and the
mcreased interest cost associated with having these borrowings remain outstanding, TCEH has repaid a portion
of these borrowings. TCEH will continue to monitor financial market conditions, and TCEH anticipates
repaying the remaining borrowings to the extent financial market conditions continue to improve. If, however,
financial market conditions worsen, TCEH may continue to retain these borrowings and may borrow repaid
funds. TCEH expects to maintain the cash proceeds from the borrowings in highly liquid short-term investments
pending use for liquidity needs or repayment.

Bankruptcy Filing of Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc. - In September 2008, Lehman Brothers Holdings
Inc. (Lehman) filed for bankruptcy under the US Bankruptcy Code. TCEH and its subsidiaries have business
relationships with Lehman and its subsidiaries. '

Subsidiaries of TCEH were counterparties with subsidiaries of Lehman with respect to wholesale energy
marketing transactions, including natural gas hedging transactions that were part of TCEH's corporate hedging
program. The obligations of these Lehman subsidiaries are guaranteed by Lehman, and the Lehman bankruptcy
filing gave TCEH’s subsidiaries the right to terminate the transactions. TCEH’s subsidiaries provided notice to
the Lehman subsidiaries terminating these transactions effective on September 15, 2008 (the “Termination
Date”) pursuant to its rights under the master agreement for the transactions. As of the Termination Date, its
subsidiaries’ direct net financial position with respect to these transactions was $26 million (excluding
termination related costs), which was reserved for as a charge reported in other deductions in the three months
ended September 30, 2008. TCEH's overall corporate hedging program was not materially impacted by this
termination. : : R

A subsidiary of Lehman that filed for bankruptcy under the US Bankruptcy Code in October 2008 is a
leridér under-the TCEH Senior Secured Facilities. The aggregate amount of unfunded commitments under the
TCEH Delayed Draw Term Loan Facility as of October 31, 2008 was approximately $842 million, which
amount includes approximately $14 million of availability attributable to the Lehman subsidiary's aggregate
funding commitment but excludes approximately $2 million of draw requests by TCEH that have not been
funded by the Lehman subsidiary as of October 31, 2008. In addition, as of October 31, 2008, TCEH had
outstanding cash borrowings under its Revolving Credit Facility of approximately $1.481 billion in the
aggregate, including approximately $139 million funded by the Lehman subsidiary, and outstanding letters of

- credit under its Revolving Credit Facility of approximately $18 million in the aggregate, of which approximately

$2 million was for the account of the Lehman subsidiary. The aggregate amount of unfunded commitments
under the TCEH Revolving Credit Facility as of October 31, 2008, was approximately $1.166 billion, which
amount includes approximately $134 million of availability attributable to the Lehman subsidiary's aggregate
funding commitment but excludes approximately $35 million of draw requests by TCEH that have not been
funded by the Lehman subsidiary as of October 31, 2008. TCEH does not believe the potential reduction in
available capacity under these credit facilities will have a significant impact on its liquidity or the liquidity of its
subsidiaries.

Commodity Hedging and Trading Activities — With the tightening of credit markets, there has been somie
decline in the number of market participants in the energy commodities markets, resulting in less liquidity
particularly in the ERCOT wholesale electricity market. Participation by financial institutions and other
intermediaries (including investment banks) has declined. However, traditional counterparties with physical
assets to hedge continue to participate in the markets. ' TCEH continues to monitor liquidity and credit risk in the
markets to assess-any impacts on its overall hedging strategy.
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PIK Interest Election — TCEH has the option every six months until November 1, 2012, at its election, to
use the payment-in-kind (PIK) feature of its Toggle Notes in lieu of making cash interest payments. While
TCEH has sufficient liquidity to meet its anticipated ongoing needs without use of this PIK feature, the company
has elected to do so for the May 1, 2009 interest payment date as an efficient and cost-effective method to further
enhance liquidity, in light of the substantial dislocation in the financial markets. Moreover, the incremental
liquidity obtained by using the PIK feature of the Toggle Notes for this specific payment period partially offsets
the liquidity that was effectively lost as a result of the default by affiliates of Lehman under TCEH’s Senior
Secured Facilities. In the future, TCEH will evaluate this option at each election period, taking into account
market conditions and other relevant factors at such time.

As a result, on October 31, 2008, TCEH delivered notice to The Bank of New York, in its capacity as
trustee under the indenture for the TCEH Toggle Notes, that, with respect to the interest that will be due on such
notes on the May 1, 2009 interest payment date in the amount of approximately $92 million, TCEH will make
such interest payment by using the PIK feature of the TCEH Toggle Notes instead of paying cash.

Liquidity Needs, Including Capital Expenditures — Capital expenditures, including capitalized interest,
for 2008 are expected to total approximately $2.2 billion and include investments in TCEH generation facilities,
including:

e approximately $1.3 billion for construction of one generation unit at Sandow and two generation units
and mine development at Oak Grove;
approximately $700 million for major maintenance, primarily in existing generation operations, and
approximately $200 million for environmental expenditures related to existing generation units.

Because its businesses are capital intensive, TCEH expects to rely over the long-term upon access to
financial markets as a significant source of liquidity for capital requirements not satisfied by cash-on-hand or
operating cash flows. The inability to raise capital on favorable terms or failure of counterparties to perform
under credit, hedging or other financial agreements, particularly considering the current uncertainty in the
financial markets, could impact TCEH's ability to sustain and grow its businesses and would likely increase
capital costs. TCEH expects cash flows from operations combined with availability under its credit facilities
discussed in Note 7 to Financial Statements to provide sufficient liquidity to fund its current obligations,
projected working capital requirements, any restructuring obhgatlons and capital spending for a period that
includes the next twelve months.

"Notes Receivable from Parent — On November 5, 2008, Oncor issued and sold a 19.75% minority stake to
an investor group to further enhance Oncor's separation from Texas Holdings, EFH Corp., and EFH Corp.'s other
subsidiaries. The proceeds received by Oncor from this sale were ultimately distributed to EFH Corp. Under the
terms of certain financing arrangements of EFH Corp. and TCEH, upon such distribution, under certain
circumstances, EFH Corp. is required to repay certain outstanding intercompany loans from TCEH As of
November 5, 2008, $837 million of such intercompany loans were outstanding.

Liquidity Effects of Commodity Hedging and Trading Activities — Commodity hedging and trading
transactions typically require a counterparty to post collateral if the forward price of the underlying commodity
moves such that the hedging or trading instrument held by such counterparty has declined in value. TCEH and
its subsidiaries use cash and letters of credit and other collateral structures to satisfy such collateral obligations.
In addition, TCEH's Commodity Collateral Posting Facility, an uncapped senior secured revoiving credit facility
funds the cash collateral posting requirements for a significant portion of the positions in the long-term hedging
program not otherwise secured by a first-lien in the assets of TCEH. The aggregate principal amount of this
facility is determined by the exposure arising from higher forward market prices, regardless of the amount of
such exposure, on a portfolio of certain natural gas hedging transaction volumes. Including those hedging
transactions where margin deposits are covered by unlimited borrowings under the TCEH Commodity Collateral
Posting Facility, at October 24, 2008, more than 95% of EFC Holdings’ long-term natural gas hedging program
transactions were secured by a first-lien interest in the assets of TCEH that is pari passu with the TCEH Senior
Secured Facilities, the effect of which is a significant reduction in TCEH's liquidity exposure associated with
collateral requirements for those hedging transactions. See Note 7 to Financial Statements for more information
about this facility.
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As of September 30, 2008, TCEH has received or posted cash and letters of credit for commodlty hedging
and trading activities as follows:

e  $302 million in cash has been posted with counterparties for exchange cleared transactions (including
initial margin), as compared to $79 million posted as of December 31, 2007,

e  $464 million in cash has been posted with counterparties for over-the-counter and other non-exchanged
cleared transactions, as compared to $429 million posted as of December 31, 2007, and

e $829 million in letters of credit have been posted with counterparties, as compared to $592 million
posted as of December 31, 2007.

Borrowings under the TCEH Commodity Collateral Posting Facility funded the substantial majority of the
above cash postings. The posted letters of credit were largely supported by restricted cash borrowed under the
TCEH Letter of Credit Facility. See Notes 7 and 8 to Financial Statements.

With respect to exchange cleared transactions, these transactions typically require initial margin (i.e. the
upfront cash and/or letter of credit posted to take into account the size and maturity of the positions and credit
quality) in addition to variance margin (i.e. the daily cash margin posted to take into account changes in the
value of the underlying commodity). The amount of initial margin required is generally defined by exchange
rules. Clearing agents, however, typically have the right to request additional initial margin based on various
factors including market depth, volatility and credit quality, which may be in the form of cash, letters of credit, a
guaranty or other forms as negotiated with the clearing agent. With respect to cash collateral that is received,
such cash collateral is either used by TCEH for working capital and other corporate purposes, including reducing
short-term borrowings under credit facilities, or it is required to be deposited in a separate account and restricted
from being used for working capital and other corporate purposes. On over-the-counter transactions, such
counterparties generally have the right to substitute letters of credit for such cash collateral. In such event, the
cash collateral previously posted would be returned to such counterparties thereby reducing TCEH liquidity in
the event that it was not restricted. As of September 30, 2008, cash collateral received totaled $20 million. See
Note 14 to Financial Statements regarding restricted cash.

As a result of the long-term hedging program, increases in natural gas prices result in increased cash
collateral and letter of credit margin requirements. As a representative example, as of October 24, 2008, for each
$1.00 per MMBtu increase in forward natural gas prices across the period from 2008 through 2014, TCEH's cash
collateral posting requirements associated with the long-term hedging program would increase by approximately
$820 million, essentially all of which would be funded by the TCEH Commodity Collateral Posting Facility.

Sale of Accounts Receivable — TCEH participates in an accounts receivable securitization program
established by EFH Corp., the activity under which is accounted for as a sale of accounts receivable in
accordance with SFAS 140. Under the program, subsidiaries of TCEH (originators) sell trade accounts
receivable to TXU Receivables Company, a consolidated whoily-owned bankruptcy-remote direct subsidiary of
EFH Corp., which sells undivided interests in the purchased accounts receivable for cash to special purpose
entities established by financial institutions. All new trade receivables under the program generated by the
originators are continuously purchased by TXU Receivables Company with the proceeds from collections of
receivables previously purchased. Funding to TCEH under the program totaled $700 million and $363 million at
September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively. See Note 6 to Financial Statements for a more
complete description of the program including the impact of the program on the financial statements for the
periods presented and the contingencies that could result in a reduction of funding available under the program.

Covenants and Restrictions under Financing Arrangements — Each of the TCEH Senior Secured
Facilities and the TCEH Indenture contains covenants that could have a material impact on the liquidity and
operations of TCEH and its subsidiaries. A brief description of certain of these covenants is provided below.
See also Note 7 to Financial Statements for additional discussion of the covenants contained in these financing
arrangements. Certain series of TCEH's pollution control revenue bonds, which were remarketed in June 2008,
include covenants discussed below regarding the TCEH indenture.
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When the term “Adjusted EBITDA” (see Glossary) is referenced in the covenant description below, it is a
reference to, and generally synonymous with, the term “Consolidated EBITDA™ that is used in the TCEH Senior
Secured Facilities and a reference to, and generally synonymous with, the term “EBITDA” that is used in the
TCEH Indenture. Adjusted EBITDA (as used in the restricted payments covenants for the TCEH Indenture), for
the twelve months ended September 30, 2008 totaled $3.5 billion for TCEH. See Appendix B for a
reconciliation of net income to Adjusted EBITDA for TCEH for the nine and twelve months ended September
30, 2008 and 2007.

Maintenance Covenant — Under the TCEH Senior Secured Facilities, TCEH and its restricted subsidiaries
are required to maintain a consolidated secured debt to Adjusted EBITDA ratio (as defined in the TCEH Senior
Secured Facilities) measured over a rolling four-quarter measurement period, which cannot exceed 7.25 to 1.00
for the first measurement period ending September 30, 2008, declining over time to 5.75 to 1.00 for the
measurement periods ending March 31, 2014 and thereafter. In the event that TCEH fails to comply with this
_ ratio, it has the right to cure its non-compliance by soliciting a cash investment in an amount necessary to
become compliant. The ratio for the period ending September 30, 2008 was 4.59 to 1.0.

Debt Incurrence Covenants — Under the indenture governing the EFH Corp. Notes, TCEH and its
restricted subsidiaries are not permitted to incur indebtedness or issue certain classes of preferred stock unless,
on a pro forma basis, after giving effect to such incurrence or issuance, the fixed charge coverage ratio (as
defined in the indenture) on a consolidated basis for TCEH and its restricted subsidiaries is at least 2.0 to 1.0 or -
such incurrence or issuance is otherwise permitted by specified exceptions in the indenture. The fixed charge
coverage ratio for that purpose is generally defined as the ratio of Adjusted EBITDA of TCEH to fixed charges
of TCEH, in each case, on a consolidated basis. The fixed charge coverage ratio for TCEH as of September 30,
2008 was 1.4 to 1.0.

Under the TCEH Senior Secured Facilities, TCEH and its restricted subsidiaries are generally not permitted
to incur indebtedness unless, on a pro forma basis, after giving effect to such incurrence, the Adjusted EBITDA
to consolidated interest expense ratio (as defined in the TCEH Senior Secured Facilities) is at least 2.0 to 1.0 or
such incurrence is otherwise permitted by specified exceptions in the TCEH Senior Secured Facilities. This ratio
was 1.4.to 1.0 for the twelve months ended September 30, 2008. -

Under the TCEH .Indenture, TCEH and substantially all of its subsidiaries are not permitted to incur
indebtedness or issue certain classes of preferred stock unless, on a pro forma basis, after giving effect to such
incurrence or issuance, the fixed charge coverage ratio (as defined in the Indenture) on a consolidated basis for
TCEH and its restricted subsidiaries is at least 2.0 to 1.0 or such incurrence or issuance is otherwise permitted by
specific exceptions in the Indenture. The fixed charge coverage ratio is generally defined as the ratio of*
Adjusted EBITDA of TCEH to fixed charges (as defined in the Indenture) of TCEH, in each case, on a
consolidated basis. The ratio was 1.4 to 1.0 for the twelve months ended September 30, 2008.

Under the TCEH Senior Secured Facilities and indenture governing the TCEH Notes, TCEH and its
restricted subsidiaries have limitations (subject to certain exceptions) on making restricted payments or
investments (as defined in the applicable debt agreements), including certain dividends, equity repurchases, debt
repayments, extensions of credit and certain types of investments.

Financial Covenants, Credit Rating Provisions and Cross Default Provisions — The terms of certain
financing arrangements of TCEH contain financial covenants that require maintenance of leverage ratios and/or
contain a minimum net worth covenant. As of September 30, 2008, TCEH was in compliance with all such
applicable covenants.

Credit Ratings — The rating agencies assign issuer credit ratings for TCEH and its subsidiaries. The issuer

credit ratings as of November 3, 2008 for TCEH and its subsidiaries are B-, B2 and B by S&P, Moody’s and
Fitch, respectively.
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Additionally, the rating agencies assign credit ratings on certain debt securities issued by TCEH. The
~ credit ratings assigned for debt securities issued by TCEH as of October 24, 2008 are presented below:

S&P Moody’s -Fitch
TCEH (Senior Secured) B+ Ba3 BB
TCEH (Senior Unsecured) (a) .. ccc B3 B+
TCEH (Unsecured) .........ocovevucuverenennne. CcCC Caal B-

(a) Cash Pay and Toggle Notes

S&P and Fitch have placed the ratings for EFH Corp. and its subsidiaries on “stable outlook.” On
November 3, 2008, Moody’s announced that it changed the rating outlook for EFH Corp. and TCEH to negative
from stable.

A rating reflects only the view of a rating agency, and is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold
securities. Ratings can be revised upward or downward at any time by a rating agency if such rating agency
decides that circumstances warrant such a change.

Material Credit Rating Covenants and Credit Worthiness Effects on Liquidity — As a result of TCEH’s
non-investment grade credit rating and considering collateral thresholds of certain retail and wholesale
commodity contracts, as of September 30, 2008 counterparties to those contracts could have required TCEH to
post up to an aggregate of $100 million in additional collateral. This amount largely represents the below market
terms of these contracts as of September 30, 2008; thus, this amount will vary depending on the value of these
contracts on any given day.

Certain transmission and distribution utilities in Texas have tariffs in place to assure adequate credit
worthiness of any REP to support the REP’s obligation to collect securitization bond-related (transition) charges
on behalf of the utility. Under these tariffs, as a result of the previous downgrade of TCEH's credit rating to
below investment grade, TCEH is required to post collateral support in an amount equal to estimated transition
charges over specified time periods. The amount of collateral support required to be posted, as weli as the time
period of transition charges covered, varies by utility. Based on requests to post collateral support from utilities
that have been received by TCEH and its subsidiaries as of September 30, 2008, TCEH has posted collateral
support in the form of letters of credit to the applicable utilities in an aggregate amount equal to $24 million,
with $14 million of this amount posted for the benefit of Oncor.

The PUCT has rules in place to assure adequate credit worthiness of any REP. Under these rules, TCEH
maintains availability under its credit facilities of an amount no less than the aggregate amount of customer
deposits and any advanced payments received from customers, and maintains equity in an amount that exceeds
the minimum required by PUCT rules. As of September 30, 2008, the amount of customer deposits received
from customers held by TCEH's REP subsidiaries totaled approximately $120 million.

The RRC has rules in place to assure adequate credit worthiness of parties that have mining reclamation
obligations. Under these rules, should the RRC determine that the credit worthiness of Luminant Generation
Company LLC is not sufficient to support Luminant's reclamation obligations, TCEH may be required to post
cash or letter of credit collateral support in an amount currently estimated to be approximately $600 million to
$800 million. This amount would vary depending upon numerous factors, including Luminant Generation
Company LLC’s credit worthiness and the level of mining reclamation obligations. :

ERCOT also has rules in place to assure adequate credit worthiness of parﬁes that schedule power on the
ERCOT System. Under these rules, TCEH has posted collateral support, predominantly in the form of letters of
credit, totaling $77 million as of September 30, 2008 (which is subject to periodic adjustments).

Oncor and Texas Hoidings agreed to the terms of a stipulation with major interested parties to resclve all
outstanding issues in the PUCT review related to the Merger. As part of this stipulation, TCEH is required to
post a letter of credit in an amount equal to $170 million to secure TXU Energy’s payment obligations to Oncor
if two or more of Oncor’s credit ratings are below investment grade. As of November 3, 2008, Oncor maintains
an investment grade rating with each of the rating agencies.
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Other arrangements of TCEH, including the accounts receivable securitization program (see Note 6 to
Financial Statements) and certain leases, contain terms pursuant to which the interest rates charged under the
agreements may be adjusted depending on credit ratings of TCEH.

Material Cross Default Provisions — Certain financing arrangements contain provisions that may result in
an event of default if there were a failure under other financing arrangements to meet payment terms or to
observe other covenants that could or does result in an acceleration of payments due. Such provisions are
referred to as “cross default” provisions.

A default by TCEH or any restricted subsidiary in respect of indebtedness, excluding indebtedness relating
to the sale of receivables program, in an aggregate amount in excess of $200 million may result in a cross default
under the TCEH Senior Secured Facilities. Under these facilities such a default may cause the maturity of
outstanding balances ($22.651 billion at October 31, 2008) under such facility to be accelerated.

The TCEH Indenture contains a cross acceleration provision where a payment default at maturity or on
acceleration of principal indebtedness under any instrument or instruments of TCEH and any of its restricted
subsidiaries in the aggregate amount equal to or greater than $250 mllhon may cause the acceleration of the
TCEH Notes.

The accounts receivable securitization program contains a cross default provision with a threshold of $200
million that applies in the aggregate to the originators, any parent guarantor of an originator or TCEH acting as
collection agent under the program. TXU Receivables Company and EFH Corporate Services Company, as
collection agent, in the aggregate have a cross default threshold of $50,000. If any of the aforementioned
defaults on indebtedness of the applicable threshold were to occur, the program could terminate.

TCEH .and its subsidiaries enter into energy-related and financial contracts, the master forms of which
contain provisions whereby an event of default or acceleration of settlement would occur if TCEH or those
subsidiaries were to default under an obligation in respect of borrowings in excess of thresholds, which vary,
stated in the contracts. The entities whose default would trigger cross default vary depending on the contract.

"Each of TCEH's natural gas hedging agreements that are secured with a lien on its assets on a pari passu ’
basis with the TCEH Senior Secured Facilities contains a cross default prov1s1on In the event of a default by
TCEH or any of "its ‘subsidiaries relating to indebtedness (such amounts varying by contract but ranging from
$200 million to $250 million), then each counterpz}rty\under these hedging agreements would have the right to
terminate its hedge agreement with TCEH and require all\outstandmg obllgatlons under such agreement to be

settled. .

S~
~.
~

In the event of a default by TCEH relating to indebtedness in an amount equal to or greater than $200
million that results in the acceleration of such debt, then each counterparty under TCEH's .interest rate swap
agreements with a notional value totaling $27.595 billion at October 31, 2008 would have the right tc terminate
its interest rate swap agreement with TCEH and require all outstanding obligations under such agreement to be
settled. .

Other arrangements, including leases, have cross default provisions, the triggering of which would not
result in a significant effect on liquidity.
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OFF BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS
See discussion above\under ‘fSale of Accounts Receivable” and in Note 6 to Financial Statements.
Also see Note 8 to Financial Statements regarding gﬁaréntees.
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES |
See Note 8 to Financial Statements for discussion of commitments and contingencies.
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

See Note 1 to Financial Statements for a discussion of changes in accounting standards.
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REGULATION AND RATES
Regulatory Investigations and Reviews

See Note 8 to Financial Statements.
Wholesale Market Design

In August 2003, the PUCT adopted a rule that, when implemented, will alter the wholesale market design in
the ERCOT market. The rule requires ERCOT:

to use a stakeholder process to develop a new wholesale market model,

to operate a voluntary day-ahead energy market;

to directly assign all congestion rents to the resources that caused the congestion;
to use nodal energy prices for resources;

to provide information for energy trading hubs by aggregating nodes;

to use zonal prices for loads, and

to provide congestion revenue rights (but not physical rights).

e & & o o ¢ o

ERCOT currently has a zonal wholesale market structure consisting of four geographic zones. The
proposed location-based congestion-management market is referred to as a “nodal” market because wholesale
pricing would differ across the various nodes on the transmission grid. The implementation of a nodal market is
being done in conjunction with transmission improvements designed to reduce current congestion. In 2006, the
PUCT approved a set of Nodal Protocols, which was filed by ERCOT and describes the operation of a wholesale
nodal market, and set an implementation date of no later than January 1, 2009. After having delayed the start of
the nodal market beyond the January 1, 2009 implementation date, and pursuant to a request from the PUCT,
ERCOT has delayed announcement of a new schedule. for the implementation of the nodal market while it
conducts a revised cost-benefit analysis for implenientation of a nodal market design. TCEH is currently unable
to predict when a new nodal market implementation schedule will be proposed by ERCOT.

In August 20056, the PUCT adopted an interim order approving ERCOT’s application for a surcharge
imposed on all Qualified Scheduling Entities in the ERCOT market (including subsidiaries of TCEH) for the
purpose of financing 38% of ERCOT’s expected nodal implementation costs. The surcharge took effect in
October 2006. Additionally, at its January 15, 2008 meeting, the ERCOT Board of Directors agreed to request
an increase in the surcharge to be effective in June 2008. ERCOT filed this request at the PUCT in March 2008
and it was approved by the PUCT in May 2008. TCEH expects that the annual impact of the surcharge will be
approximately $10 to $11 million in additional expenses; however, TCEH is unable to predict the ultimate
impact of the proposed nodal wholesale market design on its operations or financial results.

Environmental Regulations

See discussion in Note 3 to Financial Statements regarding the invalidation of the EPA’s Clean Air
Interstate Rule and the related impairment of intangible assets representing NOx and SO, emission allowances.

Summary
TCEH cannot predict future regulatory or legislative actions or any changes in economic and securities

market conditions. Such actions or changes could significantly alter its basic financial position, results of
operations or cash ﬂows
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ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK:

Market risk is the risk that TCEH miay experience a loss in value as a result of changes in market
conditions affecting factors such as commodity prices and interest rates, to which TCEH is exposed in the
ordinary course of business. TCEH's exposure to market risk is affected by a number of factors, including the
size, duration and composition of its energy and financial portfolio, as well as the volatility -and liquidity of
markets. TCEH enters into instruments such as interest rate swaps to manage interest rate risk related to its
indebtedness, as well as exchange traded, over-the-counter contracts and other contractual commitments to
manage commodity price risk as part of its wholesale activities. TCEH's interest rate risk discussed below was
significantly affected by debt issuances in connection with the Merger. :

Risk Oversight

TCEH manages the commodity price, counterparty credit and commodity-related operational risk related
to the unregulated energy business within limitations established by senior management and in accordance with
TCEH's overall risk management policies. Interest rate risk is managed centrally by the corporate treasury
function. Market risks are monitored by risk management groups that operate independently of the wholesale
commercial operations, utilizing defined practices and analytical methodologies. These techniques measure the
risk of change in value of the portfolio of contracts and the hypothetical effect on this value from changes in
market conditions and include, but are not limited to, Value at Risk (VaR) methodologies. Key risk control
activities include, but are not limited to, transaction review and approval (including credit review), operational
and market risk measurement, validation of transaction capture, portfolio valuation and reportmg, including
mark-to-market valuation, VaR and other risk measurement metrics.

EFH Corp has a corporate risk management organization that is headed by a Chief Risk Ofﬁcer The
Chief Risk Officer, through his designees at TCEH, enforces applicable risk limits, including the respective
policies and procedures to ensure compliance with such limits and evaluates the risks inherent in the various
businesses of TCEH and their associated transactions.

Commodity Price Risk ~ -—~-""""" R ,

TCEH's businesses are subject to the inherent risks of market fluctuations in the price of electricity, natural
gas and other energy-related products they market or purchase. - TCEH's businesses actively manage their
portfolio of owned generation assets, fuel supply and retail sales load to mitigate the near-term impacts of these
risks on results of operations. These businesses, similar to other participants in the market, cannot fully manage
the long-term value impact of structural declines or increases in natural gas and power prices and spark spreads
(differences between the market price of electricity and its cost of production).

In managing energy price risk, subsidiaries of TCEH enter into a variety of market transactions including,
but not limited to, short- and long-term contracts for physical delivery, exchange traded and over-the-counter
financial contracts and bilateral contracts with customers. Activities in the wholesale operations include
hedging, the structuring of long-term contractual arrangements and proprietary trading. The wholesale operation
continuously monitors the valuation of identified risks and adjusts positions based on current market conditions.
TCEH strives to use consistent assumptions regarding forward market price curves in evaluatmg and recording
the effects of commodity price risk.

Long-Term Hedging Program — See discussion above under "Slgmﬁcant Activities and Events" for an
update of the program, including potential effects on reported results.
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VaR Methodology — A VaR methodology is used to measure the amount of market risk that exists within
the portfolio under a variety of market conditions. The resultant VaR produces an estimate of a portfolio’s
potential for loss given a specified confidence level and considers among other things, market movements
utilizing standard statistical techniques given historical and projected market prices and volatilities.

A Monte Carlo simulation methodology is used to calculate VaR and is considered by management to be
the most effective way to estimate changes in a portfolio’s value based on assumed market conditions for liquid
markets. The use of this method requires a number of key assumptions, such as use of (i) an assumed confidence
level; (ii) an assumed holding period (i.e. the time necessary for management action, such as to liquidate
positions); and (iii) historical estimates of volatility and correlation data.

Trading VaR — This measurement estimates the potential loss in fair value, due to changes in market
conditions, of all contracts entered into for trading purposes based on a 95% confidence level and an assumed
holding period of five to 60 days.

Successor

Nine Months Ended Year Ended

September 30, 2008 December 31, 2007
Month-end average Trading VaR: .............cccoovmrvermsrennrenns $ 7 $ 9
Month-end high Trading VaR:..........ccooiiccnnnn ) 15 $ 14
Month-end low Trading VaR:..........ccccoeceeenveeeeneeennans $ 3 3 6

VaR for Energy-Related Contracts Subject to Mark-to-Market (MtM) Accounting — This measurement
estimates the potential loss in fair value, due to changes in market conditions, of all contracts marked-to-market
in net income (principally hedges not accounted for as cash flow hedges and trading positions), based on a 95%
confidence level and an assumed holding period of five to 60 days.

Successor
. Nine Months Ended Year Ended
September 30, 2008 December 31, 2007
Month-end average MtM VaR: ...........c.cccovvvnereeneinennns ’ $ 2,249 $ 1,081
Month-end high MtM VaR: ..., $ 3,549 $ 1,576
Month-end low MM VaR: ......c.ccooevvivniiiiccreeeen $ 1,087 $ 322

Earnings at Risk (EaR) — This measurement estimates the potential reduction of pretax earnings for the
periods presented, due to changes in market conditions, of all energy-related contracts marked-to-market in net
income and contracts not marked-to-market in net income that are expected to be settled within the fiscal year
(physical purchases and sales of commodities). Transactions accounted for as cash flow hedges are also
included for this measurement. A 95% confidence level and a five to 60 day holding period are assumed in
determining EaR.

M

Successor
Nine Months Ended Year Ended
September 30, 2008 December 31, 2007
Month-end average EaR: ..........ccccoevvvrenvniieireerneennns $ 2,260 $ 1,070
Month-end high EaR:..........oooooovoreereceeciccrrcsrrcemsvrreenen $ 3,916 $ 1,559
Month-end 1ow EaR: ..........cccovveiviiecc e e $ 1,069 $ 318

The increases in the risk measures (MtM VaR and EaR) above were driven by higher natura! gas prices and
significant increases in market volatility.
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Interest Rate Risk

As of September 30, 2008, the potential reduction of annual pretax earnings due to a one-point increase in
interest rates totaled approximately $36 million, taking into account the interest rate swaps discussed in Note 7 to
the Financial Statements. See "Significant Activities and Events"— "Interest Rate Hedges" for discussion of
interest rate swaps transacted in October 2008.

Credit Risk

Credit Risk — Credit risk relates to the risk of loss associated with nonperformance by counterparties.
TCEH and its subsidiaries maintain credit risk policies with regard to their counterparties to minimize overall
credit risk. These policies prescribe practices for evaluating a potential counterparty’s financial condition, credit
rating and other quantitative and qualitative credit criteria and specify authorized risk mitigation tools including,
but not limited to, use of standardized master netting contracts and agreements that allow for netting of positive
and negative exposures associated with a single counterparty. TCEH has processes for monitoring and
managing credit exposure of its businesses including methodologies to analyze counterparties’ financial strength,
measurement of current and potential future exposures and contract language that provides rights for netting and
set-off. Credit enhancements such as parental guarantees, letters of credit, surety bonds and margin deposits are
also utilized. Additionally, individual counterparties and credit portfolios are managed to assess overall credit
exposure. This evaluation results in establishing exposure limits or collateral requirements for entering into an
agreement with a counterparty that creates exposure. Additionally, TCEH has established controls to determine
and monitor the appropriateness of these limits on an ongoing basis. Prospective material adverse changes in the
payment history or financial condition of a counterparty or downgrade of its credit quality result in the
reassessment of the credit limit with that counterparty. This process can result in the subsequent reduction of the
credit limit or a request for additional financial assurances.

-Credit Exposure — TCEH's gross exposure to credit risk associated with trade accounts receivable (retail
and wholesale) and net asset positions arising from hedging and trading activities totaled $1.170 billion at
September 30, 2008. The components of this exposure are discussed in more detail below.

Assets subject to credit risk as of September 30, 2008 include $853 million in accounts receivable from the
retail sale of electricity to residential and business customers. As of September 30, 2008, TCEH had cash
deposits of $111 million as collateral for these receivables. The risk of material loss (after consideration of bad
debt allowances) from nonperformance by these customers is unlikely based upon historical experience.
Allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable are established for the potential loss from nonpayment by these
customers based on historical experience, market or operational conditions and changes in the ﬁnancxal condition
of large business customers.

Most of the remaining credit exposure is with wholesale counterparties. ‘These counterparties include
energy companies, financial institutions, electric utilities, independent pcwer producers, oil and gas producers,
local distribution companies and energy trading and marketing companies. As of September 30, 2008, the
exposure to credit risk from the wholesale customers and counterparties totaled $317 million taking into account
standardized master netting contracts and agreements described above but before taking into account $32 mllllon
in credit collateral (cash, letters of credit and other security interests) held by TCEH subsidiaries.

" Of this $285 million-net exposure, 57% is with investment grade customers and counterparties, as
determined using publicly available information including major rating agencies’ published ratings and TCEH's
internal credit evaluation process. Those customers and counterparties without a S&P rating of at least BBB- or
similar rating from another major rating agercy are rated using internal credit methodologies and credit scoring
models to estimate a S&P equivalent rating. TCEH routinely monitors and manages its credit exposure to these
customers and counterparties on this basis. See discussion above under “Bankruptcy Filing of Lehman Brothers
Holdings Inc.”
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The following table presents the distribution of credit exposure as of September 30, 2008, for wholesale
counterparties. This credit exposure represents wholesale trade accounts receivable and net asset positions on the
balance sheet arising from hedging and trading activities by investment grade and noninvestment grade, credit
quality and maturity after taking into consideration netting within each contract and any master netting contracts
with counterparties: The amounts below do not include asset liens held as security for a portion of the net
exposure.

Successor
Net Exposure by Maturity
Exposure
before Greater
Credit Credit Net 2 years or Between than 5
Collateral Collateral Exposure less 2-5 years years Total
Investment grade................. $ 169 3 7 $ 162 5164 5 (69 $ 67 $ 162
Noninvestment grade.......... 148 _ 25 123 120 3 — 123
Totals....o.cceeeerrinencrnenn § 317 b 32 $ 285 $ 284 $ (66) $__67 $ 285
Investment grade................. 53%. 57%
Noninvestment grade .......... 47% -43%

In addition to the exposures in the table above, TCEH has contracts classified as “normal” purchase or sale
and non-derivative contractual commitments that are not marked-to-market in the financial statements. Such
contractual commitments may contain pricing that is favorable considering current market conditions and
therefore represent economic risk if the counterparties do not perform. Nonperformance could have a material
adverse impact on TCEH’s future results of operations, financial condition and cash flows.

TCEH has changed the presentation of this table from past disclosures by excluding large retail business
customers, the credit risk of which is managed separately as discussed above, and by excluding forward values of
contracts not reflected on the balance sheet. TCEH believes this presentation more accurately reflects its
exposure in relation to its financial position as reflected in the balance sheet and is more consistent with industry
reporting practices.

TCEH does not anticipate any material adverse effect on its financial position or results of operations due to
nonperformance by any customer or counterparty.

TCEH's subsidiaries had credit exposure to three counterparties each having an exposure greater than 10%
of the net $285 million credit exposure. These three counterparties represented 17%, 13% and 11%,
respectively, of the net exposure. TCEH views exposure to these three counterparties to be within an acceptable
level of risk tolerance due to the applicable counterparty's credit rating, collateral postings or business
relationship with TCEH. However, this concentration increases the risk that the default would have a material
effect on TCEH's net income and cash flows.

With respect to credit risk related to the long-term hedging program, over 91% of the transaction volumes
are with counterparties with an A credit rating or better. Additionally, TCEH has potential credit concentration
risk related to the limited number of counterparties in the program. The transactions with these counterparties
contain certain credit rating provisions that would require the counterparties to post collateral in the event of
significant declines in natural gas prices and a material downgrade in the credit rating of the counterparties.
TCEH views the potential concentration of risk with these counterparties to be within an acceptable risk
tolerance due to the strong financial profile of the counterparties taken as a whole.

Under the terms of the TCEH Senior Secured Facilities, the commitments of the lenders to make loans to
TCEH are several and not joint. Accordingly, if any lender fails to make loans to TCEH, TCEH’s available
liquidity could be reduced by an amount up to the-aggregate amount of such lender’s commitments under the
TCEH Senior Secured Facilities. See discussion above under “Bankruptcy Filing of Lehman Brothers Holdings
Inc.” ’
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report and other presentations made by TCEH contain “forward-looking statements”. All statements,
other than statements of historical facts, that are included in this report, or made in presentations, in response to
questions or otherwise, that address activities, events or developments that TCEH expects or anticipates to occur
in the future, including such matters as projections, capital allocation, future capital expenditures, business
strategy, competitive strengths, goals, future acquisitions or dispositions, development or operation of power
production assets, market and industry developments and the growth of TCEH's business and operations (often,
but not always, through the use of words or phrases such as “will likely result,” “are expected to,” “will
continue,” “is anticipated,” “estimated,” “projection,” “target,” and “outlook™), are forward-looking statements.
Although TCEH believes that in making any such forward-looking statement its expectations are based on
reasonable assumptions, any such forward-looking statement involves uncertainties and is qualified in its entirety
by reference to the discussion of risk factors discussed under “Risk Factors” in the 2007 Annual Report and this
Quarterly Report and the following important factors, among others, that could cause the actual results of TCEH
to differ materially from those projected in such forward-looking statements:

M«

e prevailing governmental policies and regulatory actions, including those of the Texas Legislature, the
Governor of Texas, the US Congress, FERC, the PUCT, the RRC, the NRC, the EPA and the TCEQ,
with respect to, among other things: ‘

. allowed prices;

industry, market and rate structure;

purchased power and recovery of investments;

operations of nuclear generating facilities;

operations of mines;

acquisitions and disposal of assets and facilities;

development, construction and operation of facilities;

decommissioning costs;

present or prospective wholesale and retail competition;

changes in tax laws and policies, and

changes in and compliance with environmental and safety laws and policies, including

climate change initiatives;

legal and administrative proceedings and settlements;

general industry trends;

TCEH's ability to attract and retain profitable customers;

TCEH's ability to profitably serve its customers;

restrictions on competitive retail pricing;

changes in wholesale electricity prices or energy commodity prices;

changes in prices of transportation of natural gas, coal, crude oil and refined products;

unanticipated changes in inarket heat rates in the ERCOT electricity market;

TCEH's ability to effectively hedge against changes in commodity prices, market heat rates and interest

rates;

weather conditions and other natural phenomena, and acts of sabotage, wars ‘or terrorist activities;

unanticipated population growth or decline, and changes in market demand and demographic patterns;

changes in business strategy, development plans or vendor relationships;

access to adequate transmission facilities to meet changing demands;

unanticipated changes in interest rates, commodity prices, rates of inflation or foreign exchange rates;

unanticipated changes in operating expenses, liquidity needs and capital expenditures;

commercial bank market and capital market conditions;

competition for new energy development and other business opportumtles

inability of various counterparties to meet their obligations with respect to TCEH's financial

instruments; |

changes in technology used by and services offered by TCEH;

significant changes in TCEH's relationship with its employees, including the availability of qualified

personnel, and the potential adverse effects if labor disputes or grievances were to occur;

¢ changes in assumptions used to estimate future executive compensation payments;
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significant changes in critical accounting policies;

actions by credit rating agencies;

the ability of TCEH to implement cost reduction initiatives, and

with respect to TCEH's lignite coal-fueled generation construction and development program, more
specifically, TCEH's ability to fund such investments, changes in competitive market rules, unexpected
judicial rulings, changes in environmental laws or regulations, changes in electric generation and
emissions control technologies, changes in projected demand for electricity, the ability of TCEH and its
contractors to attract and retain, at projected rates, skilled labor for constructing the new generating
units, changes in wholesale electricity prices or energy commodity prices, transmission capacity and
constraints, supplier performance risk, changes in the cost and availability of materials necessary for the
construction program and the ability of TCEH to manage the significant construction program to a
timely conclusion with limited cost overruns.

Any forward-looking statement speaks only as of the date on which it is made, and TCEH undertakes no
obligation to update any forward-looking statement to reflect events or circumstances after the date on which it is
made or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events. New factors emerge from time to time, and it is not
possible for TCEH to predict all of them; nor can TCEH assess the impact of each such factor or the extent to
which any factor, or combination of factors, may cause results to differ materially from those contained in any
forward-looking statement.

Item 4T. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

An evaluation was performed under the supervision and with the participation of TCEH’s management,
including the principal executive officers and principal financial officer, of the effectiveness of the design and
operation of the disclosure controls and procedures in effect as of the end of the current period included in this
quarterly report. Based on the evaluation performed, TCEH’s management, including the principal executive
officer and principal financial officer, concluded that the disclosure controls and procedures were effective.
During the most recent fiscal quarter covered by this quarterly report, there has been no change in TCEH's
internal control over financial reporting that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect,
TCEH's internal control over financial reporting.

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

Reference is made to the discussion in Note 8 regarding legal proceedings.

Item 1A. RISK FACTORS.

There have been no material changes from the risk factors disclosed under the heading “Risk Factors” in
Item 1A of the 2007 Annual Report and in Item 1A of TCEH's Quarterly Report for the six months ended June
30, 2008, except for information disclosed elsewhere in this Quarterly Report that provides factual updates to
risk factors contained in the 2007 Annual Report and TCEH's Quarterly Report for the six months ended June
30, 2008. .
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TEXAS COMPETITIVE ELECTRIC HOLDINGS COMPANY LLC
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED INCOME (LOSS)

(Unaudited)
(millions of dollars)

OPErating TEVENUES ........oeemimeeiecriierirectearerereeemseserrasessseesessansscecees
Fuel, purchased power and delivery fees
Income (loss) from commodity hedging and trading activities.......
OPEIAtING COBLS...ceeueurrrrrrruereeerrrerrisreesssesarebesesesassaesesesessens y
Depreciation and amortization....
Selling, general and administrative expenses...
Franchise and revenue-based taxes....
Other income......c.ccovveveenenennnee

Other deductions
Interest income............ccccrnnnnenn. .
Interest expense and related charges...........c.ocoovevevcririinnencrcenennnene

Income (loss) before iINCOME taXes ......ccceeernriiirecenrnierisieenennsiennnes
Income tax (expense) benefit.........ocoeevvereriiiiieeeeciesereeeeens

Net income (10ss) ........cceecnnne e et bbb ettt sr et '

Period from
October 1, 2007
through
September 30, 2008
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$ 9,740
(5,621)
(1,687)

(645)
(1,150)
(664)
(107)

(2,966)
1,010

£(1,956)
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Appendix B
TCEH Consolidated
Adjusted EBITDA Reconciliation

Nine Months Nine Months Twelve Months Twelve Months
Ended Ended ' Ended Ended
September 30, September 30, September 30, " September 30,
2008 2007 2008 2007
INELINCOME ...t b e teas st eae s 3 @811 $ 1,180 $ (1,956) $ 1,679
Income tax expense (benefit) (425) 529 (1,010) 791
Interest expense and related charges. 1,756 310 2,356 386
Depreciation and amortization. 827 245 1.150 - 326
EBITDA $ 1347 $ 2264 $ 540 $ 3,182
Interest income (45) (260) (66) (326)
Amortization of nuclear fuel.... 55 50 74 65
Purchase accounting adjustments (a)...........coceovenirrieceeeinnrnenennene 290 - 424 -
Unrealized net (gain) or loss resulting from hedging transactions .. 221 703 1,796 645
Impairment of assets and inventory write down (b).......cccccevvenreenne 502 - 502 -
One-time customer appreciation bonus - - - 165
Losses on sale of receivables........... eemesnens 22 28 33 38
Noncash compensation expense (SFAS 123R) (¢) 8 7 8 11
Severance expense (d) 1 - 1 2
Transition and business optimization costs (e) 30 12 39 12
Transaction and merger expenses (f)............ 1 - 1 -
Restructuring and other (g) . 32 (32) 34 (32)
Expenses incurred to upgrade or expand a generation station (h)... 100 4 100 5
Adjusted EBITDA per Incurrence Covenant..................ccouee.e. 2,564 2,776 $ 3486 3,767
Expenses related to unplanned generation station outages (h)......... 218 - 218 -
Adjusted EBITDA per Maintenance Covenant.................c........ 2,782 2,776 $ 3.704 3,767
(a)  Purchase accounting adjustments include amortization of the intangible net asset value of retail and wholesale power sales agreements, environmental
credits, coal purchase contracts and power purchase agreements and the stepped up value of nuclear fuel. Also includes certain credits not recognized in
net income due to purchase accounting.
(b)  Impairment of assets represents the impairment of emission allowances intangible assets. See Note 3 to Financial Statements.
(¢)  Noncash compensation expense excludes capitalized amounts. .
(d)  Severance expense includes amounts incurred related to outsourcing, restructuring and other amounts deemed to be in excess of normal recurring
amounts.
(e)  Transition and business optimization costs include professional fees primarily for retail billing and customer care systems enhancements and incentive
compensation.
(f)  Transaction and merger expenses include costs related to the Merger.
(g)  Restructuring and other for the 2008 periods includes the charge related to the bankruptcy of a subsidiary of Lehman Brothers Holdings, Inc. and for the
2007 periods includes credits related to impaired combustion turbine leases and other restructuring initiatives and nonrecurring activities.
(h)  Expenses incurred to upgrade or expand a generation station reflect noncapital outage costs.

'
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